Public Document Pack

Rt = |
o o]
it e
b

T™ILLINGDON
Central & SOUth To Councillors on the Committee
Plan n] ng Councillor lan Edwards (Chairman)
. Councillor David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman)
CO mmi ttee Councillor Shehryar Ahmad-Wallana

Councillor Mohinder Birah

Councillor Nicola Brightman
Time: 7.00 PM Councillor Roy Chamdal

Councillor Alan Chapman

Date: WEDNESDAY 6 JUNE 2018

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - , )
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH Counc!llor Jazz Dhillon
STREET, UXBRIDGE Councillor Janet Duncan

Meeting Members of the Public and
Details: Press are welcome to attend
this meeting

Published: Tuesday 29 May 2018
Contact: Anisha Teji

Tel: 01895 277655
Email: ateji@hillingdon.gov.uk

This Agenda is available online at:
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?Cld=123&Year=0

Putting our residents first

Lloyd White

Head of Democratic Services

London Borough of Hillingdon,

Phase I, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Useful information for
residents and visitors

Watching & recording this meetin ;

g g g Watch a [M)73 broadcast of this
You can watch the public (Part 1) part of this meeting meeting on the Council's YouTube
on the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived Channel: Hillingdon London
after the meeting. Residents and the media are also
welcome to attend in person, and if they wish, report Ehose _‘clltt?lrl\ging Shguld bf-; aware ﬂ;?t the

H H H A ouncil will Titm and recora proceeaings

on the_ pu,bllc part of the mee_tmg' Any |nq|V|duaI or for both official record and resident digital
organisation may record or film proceedings as long engagement in democracy.
as it does not disrupt proceedings.

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking o _!

Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, with

the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a short wa \)/
o .

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at the ‘fﬁh j]

away. Limited parking is available at the Civic

Centre. For details on availability and how to book
parking space, please contact Democratic Service shagging
Please enter from the Council’s main reception Centre
where you will be directed to the Committee Roon

Accessibility car purk

For accessibility options regarding this agenda
please contact Democratic Services. For those FMuzzasinu
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is o
available for use.

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarn
EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt.
Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs,
should make their way to the signed refuge locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings

Security and Safety information

Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the
fire alarm will sound continuously. If there is a
SECURITY INCIDENT follow the instructions issued
via the tannoy, a Fire Marshall or a Security
Officer.

Mobile telephones - Please switch off any mobile
telephones before the meeting.

Petitions and Councillors

Petitions - Those who have organised a petition of
20 or more people who live, work or study in the
borough, can speak at a Planning Committee in
support of or against an application. Petitions
must be submitted in writing to the Council in
advance of the meeting. Where there is a
petition opposing a planning application there is
also the right for the applicant or their agent to
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.

Ward Councillors - There is a right for local
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about
applications in their Ward.

Committee Members - The planning committee is
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet
in public every three weeks to make decisions on
applications.

How the Committee meeting works

The Planning Committees consider the most
complex and controversial proposals for
development or enforcement action.

Applications for smaller developments such as
householder extensions are generally dealt with
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated
powers.

An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which
comprises reports on each application

Reports with petitions will normally be taken at
the beginning of the meeting.

The procedure will be as follows:-

1. The Chairman will announce the report;

2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a
presentation of plans and photographs;

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant
followed by any Ward Councillors;

4. The Committee may ask questions of the
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek
clarification from officers;

6. The Committee will vote on the
recommendation in the report, or on an
alternative recommendation put forward by a
Member of the Committee, which has been
seconded.

About the Committee’s decision

The Committee must make its decisions by
having regard to legislation, policies laid down
by National Government, by the Greater London
Authority - under ‘The London Plan’ and
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and
supporting guidance. The Committee must also
make its decision based on material planning
considerations and case law and material
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s
report and any representations received.

Guidance on how Members of the Committee
must conduct themselves when dealing with
planning matters and when making their
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s
Constitution.

When making their decision, the Committee
cannot take into account issues which are not
planning considerations such a the effect of a
development upon the value of surrounding
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself
is not sufficient ground for refusal of
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to
the design of the property. When making a
decision to refuse an application, the Committee
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for
refusal based on material planning
considerations.

If a decision is made to refuse an application,
the applicant has the right of appeal against the
decision. A Planning Inspector appointed by the
Government will then consider the appeal.
There is no third party right of appeal, although
a third party can apply to the High Court for
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements

1

2
3
4
5

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting

Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

To confirm that the items of business marked Part | will be considered in

Public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART | - Members, Public and the Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the

Chairman may vary this. The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
6 | 9 Maygoods Green, Brunel Installation of vehicular crossover 9-16
Cowley and creation of hardstanding (part
retrospective). 140 — 144
73573/APP/2018/621
Recommendation: Refusal
7 | 105 Sweetcroft Lane, | Uxbridge Conversion of single dwelling (Use | 17 —30
Hillingdon North Class C3) to a 7-bed House in
Multiple Occupation (Sui Generis) | 145 — 151

2703/APP/2017/2579

Recommendation: Approval




Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page
8 | Garage Site Adjacent | Botwell Two storey building with habitable 31-48
to 45 Corwell roof space, parking and amenity
Gardens, Hillingdon space for use as 4 x 2-bed flats 152 — 157
and 2 x studio flats.
72968/APP/2018/199
Recommendation: Approval
9 | The Prince Albert PH | Brunel Variation of condition 2 (Approved 49 -70
Pield Heath Road, Plans) of planning permission Ref:
Hillingdon 704/APP/2015/1071 dated 158 — 166
05/10/2015 (Redevelopment of
704/APP/2016/3689 site with a two storey block to
provide 9 x two-bedroom flats with
associated access, parking and
landscaping) to allow internal and
external alterations to the layout
and design of the building (Part
Retrospective Application)
Recommendation: Approval
10| 28 Oakene Road, Hillingdon | Part two storey, part single storey 71-84
Hillingdon East side/rear extension and
conversion of 3-bed dwellingto 1 x | 167 — 175
4247/APP/2018/1451 3-bed and 1 x 1-bed dwellings with
associated parking and amenity
space
Recommendation: Refusal
11| Land Forming Part of | Townfield | Two storey, 2-bed, detached 85 - 96
84 Church Road, dwelling with associated parking
Hayes and amenity space 176 — 178
72944/APP/2018/1225 Recommendation: Refusal




12| Lesser Barn Hubbards
Close, Hillingdon

5971/APP/2017/4190

Yiewsley

Installation of two additional first
floor windows to east (front)
elevation, minor realignment of
ground floor openings and
increase in roof height
(Amendments to Listed Building
Consent ref:
5971/APP/2013/1839, dated
31/05/2017 (Dismantling of
existing farm outbuilding and
reconstruction to accord with
planning application Ref:
5971/APP/2016/3922 - Rebuilding
of existing barn with internal and
external alterations to create two
three-bedroom dwellings with
associated parking and
landscaping

Recommendation: Approval

97 - 112

179 — 185

13| Lesser Barn Hubbards
Close, Hillingdon

5971/APP/2017/3478

Yiewsley

Variation of Condition 2 (approved
plans) of planning permission ref:
5971/APP/2016/3922, dated
31/05/2017 (Rebuilding of existing
barn with internal and external
alterations to create two three-
bedroom dwellings with associated
parking and landscaping) for two
additional first floor windows to
east (front) elevation, minor
realignment of ground floor
openings and increase in roof
height

Recommendation: Approval

113 - 138

186 — 194

PART | - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee

139 - 194




Agenda Item 3
Minutes .

FHILLINGDON

LONDON

CENTRAL & South Planning Committee
22 May 2018

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge

Committee Members Present:

Councillors lan Edwards (Chairman), David Yarrow (Vice-Chairman), Shehryar Ahmad-
Wallana, Mohinder Birah, Roy Chamdal, Alan Chapman, Janet Duncan and

Brian Stead

LBH Officers Present:

Armid Akram (Highways Development Control Officer), Glen Egan (Office Managing
Partner - Legal Services), Meghji Hirani (Planning Contracts & Planning Information),
James Rodger (Head of Planning and Enforcement) and Luke Taylor (Democratic
Services Officer)

3. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda ltem 1)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Brightman, with Councillor Stead
substituting.

4, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING
(Agenda ltem 2)

There were no declarations of interest.

5. TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Agenda
Item 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meetings, held on 10 April 2018
and 10 May 2018, were approved as a correct record.

6. MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda ltem
4)

None.

7. TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART | WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that all items marked as Part | would be heard in public, and all items
marked as Part || would be heard on private.

8. LAND AT SANDOW CRESCENT, HAYES - 879/APP/2018/540 (Agenda Item 6)

Seven three-bed dwellings with associated parking and amenity space.

Page 1




Officers introduced the proposed application, which sought a development of seven
three-bedroom dwellings on a backland site which is currently used for light industrial
purposes.

A petitioner spoke in objection to the application and noted the narrow access road to
the site as a strong reason for refusal. The Committee heard that the turn into the
access was tight, and vehicles larger than a transit van could not fit down the road and
would have to park on Sandow Crescent, thus blocking the road. The petitioner stated
that, should the application be approved, the narrow access road would become
unsafe for pedestrians as it would also have cars using it. Furthermore, large vehicles
such as emergency services and refuse collection would not be able to use the access,
and refuse is already collected from the corner of the road as they cannot access
Sandow Crescent. Members heard that residents would be happy with a smaller
development with further trees and screening, but were opposed to the application in
its current form.

The agent for the application addressed the Committee, and stated that discussions
had taken place with the petitioner and they had hoped for extra time to address the
concerns, but the Council did not grant this. The agent confirmed that the application
could be reduced in size and landscaping added, but there was no further time for
these discussions. Members heard that the access was a longstanding access road,
with a sufficient turning circle, and both the fire service and refuse collection services
were satisfied with the access. The agent noted that the reasons for refusal were a
matter of opinion, and stated that he did not believe the application was contrary to any
policies.

The Committee sought clarification on the width of the access road, and officers
confirmed that it was between 3-3.2m in width, and as such, it would not accommodate
vehicles and pedestrians at the same time. Members heard that the concerns
regarding access for emergency services were valid, and revisions made to parking
restrictions at Sandow Crescent meant that all cars must park with four wheels on the
carriageway, which would lead to more congestion in the area if the application were
approved.

Councillors noted that the application sought the development of seven dwellings, and
these could be inhabited by families. The Committee agreed that it was a worry to have
vehicles travelling up a narrow access road that could also be used by pedestrians,
families and young people, and agreed with the concerns of the petitioners.

Members moved and seconded the officer's recommendation, and upon being put to a
vote, it was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

23 COWLEY CRESCENT, COWLEY - 11257/APP/2017/2722 (Agenda Item 7)

Two-storey, three-bed detached dwelling with habitable roof space, installation
of vehicular crossover to front and parking and amenity space.

Officers introduced the proposed application, which sought the erection of a two-storey
dwelling within the back garden of 23 Cowley Crescent.

A petition spoke in objection to the Committee, and informed Members that Nos. 1, 2
and 3 Cowley Crescent would suffer a loss of amenity if the dwelling was build, by
virtue of being in line with the front window. Councillors also heard that the concerns
surrounding parking did not take into account the number of parked cars on Cowley

Page 2




Crescent that were not residents, as the road was used by commuters, students from
Brunel University who did not have parking on campus, holiday-goers who were going
to Heathrow Airport or residents from neighbouring roads who could not park on their
road due to a lack of parking. The Committee was also informed that the horsechestnut
trees were vital to the visual amenity of the area and should not be removed.

Officers clarified that the overlooking of Nos. 1, 2 and 3 Cowley Crescent was not a
planning consideration as the proposed application faced those properties and there
was no “front-to-front” standard, and the Highways Officer confirmed that the site
required two parking spaces, which were provided in the application.

Members confirmed that they proposed tree loss was worrying, and expressed
concerns regarding the loss of amenity for neighbouring properties, due to the
overlooking of gardens, and officers confirmed that this was considered unacceptable.
The Head of Planning and Enforcement noted that the low density of properties at the
moment made the effect of the proposed development more harmful to neighbouring
properties.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and unanimously agreed at a
vote.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

10. | 843 UXBRIDGE ROAD, HAYES - 630/APP/2018/797 (Agenda Item 8)
Change of use from retail (Use Class A1) to café and shisha bar (sui generis) to
include a single-storey rear extension.
Officers introduced the proposal, which sought to change the use of the existing unit to
a sui generis (shisha bar) use and to construct a rear extension to be used as a shisha
smoking area.
Members noted their agreement with the officer’s report and moved and seconded the
recommendation contained therein. The officer's recommendation was then
unanimously agreed.
RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

11. | 14 FREDORA AVENUE, HAYES - 73491/APP/2018/299 (Agenda Item 9)
The item was withdrawn by the applicant prior to the Committee.

12. | LAND FORMING PART OF 31 RAYNTON DRIVE, HAYES - 60138/APP/2018/1235

(Agenda ltem 10)

Two-storey, one-bed detached dwelling with associated parking and amenity
space and installation / relocation of vehicular crossover to front.

Officers introduced the application, which sought to erect a two-storey, one bed
dwelling with associated parking and amenity space.

The Committee moved and seconded the officer's recommendation, which, upon being
put to a vote, was unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

Page 3




13.

1376 UXBRIDGE ROAD, UXBRIDGE - 68816/APP/2018/837 (Agenda ltem 11)

Change of use of ground floor from retail (Use Class A1) to provide one one-bed
flat (Use Class C3) to include alterations to front elevation (Part-Retrospective).

Officers introduced the proposed application, which sought part-retrospective planning
permission for the change of use of the ground floor from retail, to provide one one-bed
flat, including alterations to the front elevation.

Councillors expressed concerns that a takeaway was situated next door, and noted
that people would congregate outside or around the takeaway which would impact on
the privacy of those who lived at the site. Members agreed that this loss of amenity
could be added as a further reason for refusal.

Members sought clarification regarding the loss of retail, but officers confirmed that the
parade of shops was not protected, as it was close to other retail stores.

The officer's recommendation, subject to delegated authority to the Head of Planning
and Enforcement to confirm the final wording of an additional reason for refusal
regarding the loss of amenity, was moved, seconded, and unanimously agreed when
put to a vote.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused, subject to delegated authority to the
Head of Planning and Enforcement to confirm an additional reason for refusal
regarding the loss of amenity.

14.

23 VICTORIA AVENUE, HILLINGDON - 12211/APP/2018/509 (Agenda Item 12)

Demolition of existing property and erection of new two-storey property to
provide two two-bed self-contained flats with associated parking and amenity
space, to include new vehicular crossover to front.

Officers introduced the application, which sought the demolition of the existing property
and re-building of a two-storey property to create two flats with associated parking and
amenity, and highlighted the addendum, which included an amendment to condition 7.

Members noted that the proposed windows on the front of the building did not add to
the cohesiveness of the street scene, and suggested that the plans from the windows
be reverted to the previous scheme. The Committee agreed to delegate authority to the
Head of Planning and Enforcement to agree the application once the plans included
windows that were in keeping with the street scene, and noted that if the plans were
not changed, the application would return to the Committee.

Councillors confirmed that, with the exception of the windows, they were happy with the
application, and moved and seconded the officer's recommendation, subject to
delegated authority to the Head of Planning and Enforcement and the amendment to
Condition 7 detailed in the addendum. Upon being put to a vote, the motion was
unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be agreed, subject to delegated authority to the
Head of Planning and Enforcement to ensure the windows were in keeping with
the street scene, and the amendment to Condition 7, as detailed in the
addendum.

Page 4




15.

60 CARFAX ROAD, HAYES - 51061/APP/2017/4328 (Agenda ltem 13)

Single-storey, detached outbuilding to rear, for use as a hair salon
(Retrospective).

The application was introduced by officers, and sought retrospective permission for use
of the rear outbuilding as a hair salon. Officers also noted that non-standard reason for
refusal 3 be removed, should the Committee be minded to refuse the application.

Councillors noted their agreement with the officer’s report and comments, and moved
and seconded the officer's recommendation, subject to the removal of reason for
refusal 3. The recommendation was unanimously agreed when put to a vote.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused, subject to the removal of non-
standard reason for refusal 3.

16.

210 CENTRAL AVENUE, HAYES - 71772/APP/2018/841 (Agenda ltem 14)

Part two-storey, part single-storey rear extension and conversion of dwelling to
two, one-bed self-contained flats with associated parking and amenity space.

Officers introduced the report, which proposed the conversion of the existing dwelling
into two, one-bed flats with associated amenity space, involving the erection of a part
two-storey, part single-storey, rear extension, and highlighted the addendum, which
included the deletion of Condition 4.

Members supported the officer's report, and moved and seconded the officer’s
recommendation. Upon being put to a vote, the recommendation was unanimously
agreed.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved, subject to the removal of
Condition 4.

17.

11 BELMONT ROAD, UXBRIDGE - 34940/APP/2018/346 (Agenda Item 15)

Part change of use from restaurant (Use Class A3) to create two one-bed, and
one two-bed self-contained flats (Use Class C3).

Officers introduced the application, which sought planning permission for a part change
of use from restaurant to create three self-contained flats, and is identical to that
previously considered under an appeal against non-determination of application
reference 34940/APP/2017/593, and highlighted the addendum which amended the
head of terms.

The Head of Planning and Enforcement informed the Committee that a further
amendment to the head of terms be made to exclude blue badge holders, and
restricted future residents from parking in Council car parks or Parking Management
Schemes, as it was a car-free development.

Councillors moved, seconded and unanimously agreed the officer's recommendation at
a vote.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved, subject to amendments to the
head of terms, as detailed in the addendum, and to include reference to exclude
blue badge holders and restricted residents from parking in Council-owned car

Page 5




parks or Parking Management Schemes.

18.

66 FAIRWAY AVENUE, WEST DRAYTON - 29143/APP/2018/715 (Agenda Item 16)

Raising and enlargement of roofspace to create habitable accommodation,
including the erection of a single-storey front extension and installation of a
porch.

Officers introduced the application, which sought planning permission to raise and
enlarge the roofspace to create habitable accommodation, including the erection of a
single-storey front extension and installation of a porch.

Responding to questioning from the Committee, the Head of Planning and
Enforcement confirmed that the roof plane does not have a further impact on light to
neighbouring properties, as it is just the middle of the roof that is proposed to be higher.

Members agreed with the officer's report, and moved and seconded the
recommendation contained therein. Upon being put to a vote, the officer's
recommendation was unanimously approved.

RESOLVED: That the application be refused.

19.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 17)
RESOLVED:

1. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer's report was
agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in the report into the public domain, solely for the purposes of issuing
the formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and b) contains information which reveals that the authority
proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue of which
requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the public interest in
withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

20.

ENFORCEMENT REPORT (Agenda Item 18)
RESOLVED:

1. That the enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s report was
agreed.

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for it
outlined in the report into the public domain, solely for the purposes of issuing
the formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part Il as it contains information which a) is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual and b) contains information which reveals that the authority
proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue of which

Page 6




requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the public interest in
withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 8.19 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the
resolutions please contact Luke Taylor on 01895 250 693. Circulation of these minutes
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube

Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes
remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.

Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 9 MAYGOODS GREEN COWLEY
Development: Installation of vehicular crossover and creation of hardstanding (part
retrospective)

LBH Ref Nos: 73573/APP/2018/621

Drawing Nos: Proposed Site Layout
Location Plan (1:1250)
Block Plan (1:200)

Date Plans Received: 16/02/2018 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 05/03/2018

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application property comprises of a ground floor maisonette in a semi-detached block
of 4, located in the Northern corner of Mayoods Green which lies within the Developed Area
as identified within the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The
frontage has currently been laid to hardstanding. A barrier has been placed across the front
of the hardstanding in the position of the proposed crossover.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the installation of a vehicular crossover and
creation of hardstanding

1.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Planning History

There is no planning history at this application site.
2. Advertisement and Site Notice

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

2.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
3. Comments on Public Consultations
EXTERNAL:

4 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 7.3.18 and a site notice was
displayed to the front of the site which expired on 6.4.18.

6 letters of objection and a petition of objection signed by 24 signatories have been
received raising concerns about the proposed crossover displacing the 10-12 cars which
currently park in this turning head.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 9



A letter has also been received from the applicant, accompanied by a petition of support
signed by 86 signatories.

Ward Councillor: This property is a maisonette and the access is from an additional piece
of road off of Maygoods Green. This is currently utilised as parking by about 8-9 cars on
what is already a crowded road.

Permitting a dropped kerb would remove parking for all of these cars, and there would be
nowhere for them to be displaced to.

It would have a negative impact on the other maisonettes and houses nearby in this corner,
which in turn would knock on to neighbours further away.

The parking in this location has always been self governed and has not caused any issues
amongst neighbours.

Can | please request that this application is heard by the Central & South Planning
Committee.

INTERNAL:
Highways Officer:

The application is for the installation of a crossover on Maygoods Green, Cowley. This local
road is subject to very high levels of parking stress as there is very little off-street car
parking available nearby. The site has a PTAL value of 1a (very poor) which suggests there
will be a very strong reliance on private cars for trip making to and from the site. This also
explains the high car use and parking stress.

It is apparent this proposal has caused reaction and stress from the immediate
community. When a decision is made with regard to creating an opening onto an adopted
public highway, considerations such as depth of property frontage, adherence to the
allowable crossing width, implications on highway safety i.e. visibility, existing on-street
parking demand, road traffic levels, proximity of street furniture street lamp/tree locations
etc form the main part of determining suitability of an address for such a provision.

It is evident that, at present, there is high on-street parking demand especially in the vicinity
of this address. This results in parking being arranged in an informal haphazard fashion by
local residents outside of the address. As such this maximises parking capacity on the
roadway which is beneficial as it reduces the likelihood of the displacement of these
vehicles to other parts of the highway which would potentially result in injudicious and
additional parking pressures elsewhere on the already highly stressed road network in the
neighbourhood.

In addition, if permission were to be granted for this crossing, it would set an undesirable
precedent encouraging other nearby addresses to apply for similar crossing provisions
thereby further reducing on-street parking availability and exacerbating the already high
parking pressures that local residents endure.

The proposal has been appraised within this context and is considered unacceptable. A
refusal on highway grounds is therefore recommended.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 10



4, UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new

planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

The main issues for consideration in determining this application relate to the effect of the
proposal on the character and appearance of the existing property, the impact upon the
visual amenities of the surrounding area, the impact on the amenity of adjoining occupiers
and car parking provision.

Within the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012), Policy AM7 acknowledges that 'The
local planning authority will not grant permission for developments whose traffic generation
is likely to prejudice the free flow of traffic or conditions of general highway or pedestrian
safety'. This local road is subject to very high levels of parking stress as there is very little
off-street car parking available nearby. The site has a PTAL value of 1a (very poor) which
suggests there will be a very strong reliance on private cars for trip making to and from the
site. This also explains the high car use and parking stress.

The Highways Officer has confirmed that It is apparent this proposal has caused reaction
and stress from the immediate community. When a decision is made with regard to
creating an opening onto an adopted public highway, considerations such as depth of
property frontage, adherence to the allowable crossing width, implications on highway
safety i.e. visibility, existing on-street parking demand, road traffic levels, proximity of street
furniture street lamp/tree locations etc form the main part of determining suitability of an
address for such a provision.

It is evident that, at present, there is high on-street parking demand especially in the vicinity
of this address. This results in parking being arranged in an informal haphazard fashion by
local residents outside of the address. As such this maximises parking capacity on the
roadway which is beneficial as it reduces the likelihood of the displacement of these
vehicles to other parts of the highway which would potentially result in injudicious and
additional parking pressures elsewhere on the already highly stressed road network in the
neighbourhood.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 11



In addition, if permission were to be granted for this crossing, it would set an undesirable
precedent encouraging other nearby addresses to apply for similar crossing provisions
thereby further reducing on-street parking availability and exacerbating the already high
parking pressures that local residents endure. The proposal would, by virtue of the loss of
on street parking spaces in Maygoods Green would therefore lead to additional demand for
on street parking in the nearby locality to the detriment of public and highway safety and is
therefore contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012).

The Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions
states at section 11.2 that at least 25% of the front garden may be required to be
maintained for planting and soft landscaping, the entire front garden should not be replaced
with hardstanding and openings made in existing boundary walls or fences should be kept
to a minimum thus avoiding the loss of definition between pavement and private space and
creating the appearance of a car park rather than a residential street. It is noted that the
entire frontage has been laid to hardstanding recently. The application property is a
maisonette and does not therefore benefit from permitted development rights under Part 1
Class F and this element is therefore included in the description of development. Aerial
photographs confirm that this work has been recently carried out and the frontage was laid
entirely to soft landscaping with a concrete pedestrian pathway to the side and 1m high
chain link fence to the front. The revised plan indicates that soft landscaping would be
provided which could be secured by way of condition. As such the proposal is considered
acceptable in accordance with Policy BE38 of the Local Plan.

The application is recommended for refusal.

6. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal results in the loss of existing on-street parking, in an area where such
parking is at a premium, resulting in additional demand for on street parking in the nearby
locality, to the detriment of public and highway safety. The proposal is therefore contrary to
Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved’) still apply for
development control decisions.

2 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 12



AM7

AM14
BE13
BE15
BE19
BE20
BE38

including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for
the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right
to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of
the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of
discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including The London Plan - The Spatial Development
Strategy for London consolidated with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national
guidance.

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-E> Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary

Planning Document, adopted December 2008

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our
statutory policies from the 'Saved' UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary
Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well
as offering a full pre-application advice service.

We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the
application as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory
policies and negotiation could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

Standard Informatives

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 13



2 The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

Part 1 Policies:
PT1.BE1l
Part 2 Policies:

AM7
AM14
BE13

BE15
BE19

BE20
BE38

HDAS-EXT

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin

(2012) Built Environment

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision
of new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 14



'
|
'
I
'
'
I
'
'
'
'
I
'
'
I
'
I
1t
i
1
'
'
'
'
I
'
'
|
'
I
'
'

L]

7
AEe?

L 0
T

P
\

Allotment Gardens

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

9 Maygoods Green

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
73573/APP/2018/621 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
June 2018

Central & Sopdhe 15

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 105 SWEETCROFT LANE HILLINGDON

Development: Conversion of single dwelling (Use Class C3) to a 7-bed House in Multiple
Occupation (Sui Generis)

LBH Ref Nos: 2703/APP/2017/2579

Drawing Nos: 1460/4
1460/1
1460/2
1460/3
1460/5
Date Plans Received: 13/07/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 24/07/2017
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the conversion of the existing house into a
7 bedroom House in Multiple Occupation (HMO).

The home is currently used to provide social care facilities for 6 people with learning
disabilities. The proposal seeks to obtain HMO status in order to allow for an additional
service user to be accommodated.

No alterations to the building exterior or site layout are proposed and it is not considered
the use of the building would intensify to a degree that would cause disruption to
neighbouring residents.

The applicant has given details of how the site will be managed and maintained in order to
ensure the upkeep of the building and grounds.

It is considered that the layout of the accommodation would provide a satisfactory
residential environment for future occupants.

It is therefore recommended that the application is approved, subject to conditions.
2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 COM3 Time Limit
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 COM4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 1460/1, 1460/2 and

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 17



1460/3 and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development
remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 MDR5 Multiple Occupation/Shared Facilities

The property shall only be used on the basis of multiple occupation with shared facilities
and no more than 7 letting bedrooms as indicated on the plans hereby approved and shall
not be used at any time as self-contained units. The overall number of residents
occupying the building at any one time shall not exceed 10.

REASON

In order to prevent the establishment of self-contained units in view of the limited provision
of car parking and to protect the amenity of the area in accordance with Policy H7 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

4 COM21 Sound insulation /mitigation

The HMO use shall not commence until a scheme for the control of noise transmission
from ground floor communal rooms and hallways into ground floor bedrooms has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall
include such combination of sound insulation and other measures as may be approved by
the LPA. Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance
with the approved measures.

REASON:
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of the property in accordance with policy OE 1
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 MCD10 Refuse Facilities

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the covered,
secure and screened storage of refuse at the premises have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be
occupied until the facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved details
and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained.

REASON

In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE 1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London Plan
(2016) Policy 4B.1.

6 A6 Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

A Site Supervision Management Plan to ensure the continued maintenance and
management of the site, including landscaped areas and car parking areas, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the
approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the use hereby permitted being
commenced, and maintained in full compliance with the approved measures.

REASON

In the interests of the character and appearance of the surrounding area and the
amenities of neighbouring residents in accordance with Policies BE 13, BE 19 and OE 1
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 18



7 H8 Surfacing and marking out of access/parking/servicing areas

The development shall not be occupied until the parking and servicing area shown on the
approved plans has been marked out in accordance with details to be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. Thereafter these areas shall be
permanently retained and used for no other purpose.

REASON

To ensure that the parking area is satisfactorily laid out on site in accordance with Policy
AM 14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Chapter 6 of the London Plan (2016).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development
AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.
BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.
BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation
H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units
OE1 Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
3 170 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 19



other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in
order to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an
application which is likely to be considered favourably.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on South West side of Sweetcroft Lane with the principal
elevation facing North East. It is located on the junction with Hercies Road and the side
elevation faces the grass verge on Hercies Road. There is a long single storey extension to
the side and rear, alongside the boundary with Hercies Road. The site comprises a two
storey detached dwelling, finished in white render and clay roof tiles, which lies within the
Developed Area as identified within the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

There is an existing parking area to the front of the property which could provide car parking
for around 8 vehicles and to the rear is a large garden area.

3.2 Proposed Scheme
This planning application seeks planning permission for the conversion of the existing
dwelling house to a 7 bedroom HMO.

The dwelling is currently used for supported living for 6 people with learning disabilities.
Staff are there on a support basis only and the occupants share basic amenities as per the
definition of a small-scale HMO (Use Class C3b).

The proposal would not involve any extensions being made to the existing building and,
effectively, simply involves the use of the existing ground floor study as an additional
bedroom, resulting in a total of 7 bedrooms within the building.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

2703/A/79/0124 105 Sweetcroft Lane Hillingdon

Erection of a two storey side extension and front porch.

Decision: 13-03-1979  Approved

2703/APP/2010/1257 105 Sweetcroft Lane Hillingdon

Application for a Non-material amendment (materials) following grant of planning permission ref
2703/APP/2010/393 dated 30/04/2010: Erection of a detached double garage at the bottom of tl
rear garden, installation of associated vehicular crossover and timber vehicular gates (involving
demolition of existing shed to rear.)

Decision: 17-08-2010  Approved

2703/APP/2010/1258 105 Sweetcroft Lane Hillingdon

Details of tree protection in compliance with condition 4 of planning permission ref. 2703/APP/
2010/393 dated 30/04/2010: Erection of a detached double garage at the bottom of the rear
garden, installation of associated vehicular crossover and timber vehicular gates (involving the

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 20



demolition of existing shed to rear.)

Decision: 16-08-2010 Approved

2703/APP/2010/393 105 Sweetcroft Lane Hillingdon

Erection of a detached double garage at the bottom of the rear garden, installation of associatec
vehicular crossover and timber vehicular gates (involving the demolition of existing shed to rear)

Decision: 30-04-2010 Approved

2703/APP/2015/4357 105 Sweetcroft Lane Hillingdon

Single storey rear infill extension and part conversion of garage to habitable use involving
installation of 2 windows to side and alterations to existing porch

Decision: 03-02-2016  Approved

2703/B/87/0771 105 Sweetcroft Lane Hillingdon

S/s side & rear extns

Decision: 28-07-1987  Approved

2703/D/99/0323 105 Sweetcroft Lane Hillingdon

Creation of a terraced area above single storey rear extension, involving installation of full heigh
railings and insertion of two pairs of double doors (Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness for
proposed use or development)

Decision: 10-03-1999 Refused

2703/E/99/0324 105 Sweetcroft Lane Hillingdon

Erection of extension to existing attached garage

Decision: 04-04-1999 Approved

2703/F/99/0797 105 Sweetcroft Lane Hillingdon

Creation of a terraced area above single storey rear extension, involving installation of full heigh
railings and insertion of two pairs of patio doors

Decision: 07-06-1999  Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Previous applications related to extensions and are not of direct relevance to this
application.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 21



4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1l (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

H3 Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

H7 Conversion of residential properties into a number of units

OE1l Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

OE3 Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

Neighbouring properties were consulted on 25th July 2017 and a site notice was displayed to the
front of the site on 15th August 2017, which expired on 5th September 2017.

3 letters of objection have been received from members of the public. Their comments are
summarised below:

Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) have a reputation for an increase in anti-social behaviour and
a rise in the crime rate in the surrounding area and would not be appropriate for a residential area
where there is also a day care nursery nearby.

The planning application states that the existing use for this property is as a dwelling which does not

provide the complete facts. The existing property is in reality used as a living assisted residential
home for personnel with special needs and, it is suggested, a valuable asset to the community

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 22



which should take priority over the pure financial gain of converting it into an HMO.

The application would lend itself to short term student lets, or similar, with the inherent multi car
movements at all times of the day and night and the possibility of unacceptable nuisance and noise.
These movements could also cause a hazard to traffic and pedestrians at this extremely busy road
junction.

OFFICER COMMENT: The building is currently used to provide community care. The applicant has
confirmed that this will remain the case, with the HMO permission allowing an additional occupant to
be housed. Conditions would be attached to any approval granted to control the numbers of people
that could occupy the building at any one time as well as to ensure a regular property management
and maintenance programme is in place.

Parking is provided at acceptable levels and a condition will be attached to ensure spaces are
properly marked out in order to ensure the parking area is used efficiently.

Petition in Objection:
A petition with 23 signatories was submitted on the 12th of December 2017.

The objectors considered that the proposed change of use was contrary to Policy DMH 5: Houses in
Multiple Occupation (HMOs). "The policy states 'Proposals for the provision of HMOs...will be
required to demonstrate that...there will be no adverse impact on the amenity of neighbouring
properties of the character of the area.' Even a cursory examination of the immediate area around
this house will demonstrate that the area is typified by single family houses and the introduction of a
large HMO will therefore have a significant adverse impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties
and the character of the area. For these reasons, planning permission should be refused".

OFFICER COMMENT: Policy DMH 5 is an emerging Policy and carries limited weight at the current
time. Notwithstanding this, amenity impact is an important consideration and this will be fully
assessed within the main body of this report.

Office of Boris Johnson MP:

An e-mail was sent from Mr Johnson's office to support one of the objectors and requested that the
Council investigated their concerns.

Internal Consultees
HMO Officer: No comments to make.

Environmental Protection Unit: No comments received.

Access Officer: No comments received.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

Policies H2 and H3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part Two) discourages development that
would result in the loss of residential accommodation and uses.

Paragraph 2.8 of the LBH Houses in Multiple Occupation and other non-self contained
housing SPG confirms that the Council regard HMO's as a residential use and, as such,
the proposed development complies with the above-mentioned policies.

Policy H7 of the Local Plan (Part 2) supports the principle of converting residential

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 23



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

dwellings into more units provided it does not result in any demonstrable harm towards the
character and appearance of the surrounding area or the amenities of neighbouring
residents. Furthermore, the following criteria must also be satisfied:-

() Provision of effective sound insulation;

(i) Adequate quantum of car parking provided;

(i) All units are self contained; and

(iv) Adequate amenity space is provided for residents.

Points (i) and (iii) relate to the formation of self contained flats and are not applicable in this
instance. Attention is drawn to Paragraph 7.16 of the Local Plan (Part Two) which sets the
context for Policy H7 and states that:-

"It is recognised... that conversion to allow the shared use of facilities such as kitchens and
bathrooms could provide a source of low cost accommodation for those such
as...community care patients for whom owner-occupation or local authority housing is
rarely an option.'

The proposed use would provide community care facilities as recognised in Paragraph
7.16.

Potential impacts on visual and residential amenity and car parking will be fully assessed
within the main body of this report.

Paragraph 4.3 of the HMO SPG maintains that conversions to HMO should be refused if
they result in an over-concentration of HMO's either as a result of over 15% of plots on a
1km stretch of road (with the site at the centrepoint) being in HMO use or in 2 or more
consecutive properties being in HMO use. This is in place to safeguard the character and
amenities of streets.

Having checked planning records and the Council's HMO register, there are no other
HMO's on Sweetcroft Lane nor are any adjacent properties in HMO use. As such, the
proposal would not represent an over-concentration of HMO's.

Density of the proposed development

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposed development would not alter the appearance of the existing building nor is it
considered that it would intensify the use of the building to a degree where it would be
disruptive to the surrounding area. The total number of people occupying the building would
be 7 and this is considered consistent for a dwelling of this size.

All bedrooms would be large enough to be used for double occupancy, although this would
not take place under the proposed model. As such, there is the potential in the future that
the building could house as many as 14 individuals. It is considered that this would be

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 24



excessive and, as such, it is considered reasonable to attach a condition limiting
occupancy to a maximum of 10 individuals at any time.

Paragraph 6.8 of the HMO SPG observes that effective management control, whether it be
carried out by housing associations, managing agents or applicants themselves, is crucial
to maintaining a satisfactory environment for tenants and for achieving a good
tenant/neighbour relationship.

The applicant has provided a statement which confirms that the HMO would be subject to
an intensive house management scheme including full property management,
maintenance and repair services for the buildings, car parking and gardens.

A condition will be used to secure an ongoing management and maintenance plan to
ensure the continued upkeep of the site.

As such, it is considered that the proposed development is in accordance with Policies
BE13 and BE19 of the Local Plan (Part Two) and London Plan Policies 7.4 and 7.6.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The HMO would be formed within the existing large, detached dwelling. Detached dwellings
are considered to be better suited to conversion to HMO's than semi-detached or terraced
dwellings on account of being sited on larger plots, which enables more off-street parking
and garden space to be provided whilst there are no party walls through which noise can
be transmitted.

No extensions or external alterations would be made to the existing dwelling and, as such,
no concerns relating to the overbearing impact, overshadowing or overlooking of
neighbouring residential properties arise.

The intensity of the use of the building would be similar to its expected use as a large
detached residential dwelling. Occupants of the building would share communal facilities
such as living and dining rooms and a kitchen, similar to a conventional household. Social
and regulated care is provided, if and when necessary, by staff members who would not
live within the building but would have a 24 hour presence should assistance be required.
The care provider would be the primary contact for all matters relating to the operation of
the property.

It is therefore considered that the proposed use would not be disruptive to neighbours by
way of disturbance or over-intensive activities and, as such, complies with Policies BE20,
BE21, BE22, BE23, BE24 and OEL of the Local Plan (Part Two).

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

All of the bedrooms to be provided are comfortably larger than the 7.5 m? required for a
single occupancy bedroom as set out in Technical housing standards - nationally
described space standard (2015).

All habitable rooms are served by windows that will allow for a suitable level of natural light
permeate into each room as well as to provide acceptable outlook.

The HMO SPG requires a minimum of 10 m2 of communal space at ground floor level. The
proposal includes two living rooms (37 m2 and 19.5 m2 respectively) and a dining room (18
m?). As such, this requirement is comfortably fulfilled.

The plot includes a large, well landscaped, rear garden of approximately 360 m2 in area,

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 25



7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

which would be unaffected by the proposed change of use. This provides well in excess of
the minimum of 15 m2 amenity space per habitable room.

It is therefore considered that the proposal complies with Policies BE20 and BE23 of the
Local Plan (Part Two).
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposal would result in an HMO property providing a total of 7 bedrooms. Paragraph
4.7 of the HMO SPG sets specific parking standards for HMO developments within the
Borough, these being one car parking space per two habitable rooms (excluding
communal rooms). As such, the expected level of parking would be 4 parking spaces
(rounded up).

There is an existing hard surfaced parking area to the front of the site which has the
capacity to accommodate 7 car parking spaces, as has been demonstrated on plan
1460/1, which forms part of the application. This area is accessed directly from Sweetcroft
Lane by way of a dropped kerb.

It is therefore considered that the proposal accords with Policy AM14 of the Local Plan
(Part Two).
Urban design, access and security

No further detail required.
Disabled access

No specific measures have been included but would not be required for an application of
this nature.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The current site landscaping, which includes boundary hedging to the front of the site
which screens the hard surfaced car parking area, will not be affected by the proposal.
Landscape maintenance is included within the outline management plan submitted for the

property.

It is therefore considered that the proposal accords with Policy BE38 of the Local Plan
(Part Two).
Sustainable waste management

Bins are shown within the car parking area on the enclosed site plan. A condition will be
attached to any approval given to ensure bins are accommodated in suitable housing that
will protect visual amenities as well as discourage vermin and contain odours.

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

The HMO SPG states that sound insulation measures are not generally required where the
converted building does not share any party walls. However, it does state that ground floor
bedrooms, adjacent to communal rooms may require sound insulation. Two bedrooms are
adjacent to a communal living room with one of the bedrooms also adjacent to the
entrance hallway. As such, it is considered reasonable to request the submission of sound
insulation details for these rooms prior to the occupation of the building as an HMO.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 26



7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The main objections raised through the petition and neighbour comments were due to
impact on the character of the area and the amenity of neighbouring properties.

As outlined above it is considered that the proposed use would be compatible with the
character of the surrounding area and would not be unduly disruptive to nearby residents.

There is a large off street parking area to the front of the property that would comfortably
accommodate the amount of cars expected to be associated with the proposed use.
7.20 Planning obligations

Not applicable to this application.
7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 27



applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for the conversion of the existing house into a 7
bedroom House in Multiple Occupation (HMO).

The home is currently used to provide social care facilities for 6 people with learning
disabilities. The proposal seeks to obtain HMO status in order to allow for an additional
service user to be accommodated.

No alterations to the building exterior or site layout are proposed and it is not considered the
use of the building would intensify to a degree that would cause disruption to neighbouring
residents.

The applicant has given details of how the site will be managed and maintained in order to
ensure the upkeep of the building and grounds.

It is considered that the layout of the accommodation would provide a satisfactory
residential environment for future occupants.

It is therefore recommended that the application is approved, subject to conditions.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (September 2007)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance Houses in Multiple Occupation (2004)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 28



National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Christopher Brady Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 29



Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

105 Sweetcroft Lane

Hillingdon

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
2703/APP/2017/2579 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Central and S|9éjgtehso June 2018

s

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Iltem 8

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address GARAGE SITE ADJACENT TO 45 CORWELL GARDENS HILLINGDON

Development: Two storey building with habitable roof space, parking and amenity space for
use as 4 x 2-bed flats and 2 x studio flats.

LBH Ref Nos: 72968/APP/2018/199

Drawing Nos: Location Plan (1:1250)
3865/01 Rev. A
3865/03 Rev. A
3865/02 Rev. B

Date Plans Received: 15/01/2018 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 18/01/2018
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey building with
habitable roof space, parking and amenity space for use as 4 x 2-bed flats and 2 x studio
flats and follows a recent refusal of application reference 72968/APP/2017/2212. The
proposal is considered to have addressed the previous three reasons for refusal and
subject to the completion of a Section 106 agreement to secure contributions for the no
waiting signs on the access road, is recommended for approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Transport and
Regeneration to grant planning permission, subject to the following:

A) That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicant under Section

106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or other
appropriate legislation to secure the following:

1. installation of no-waiting restrictions on the access to the site
B) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of the S106 Agreement and any

abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

C) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement and conditions of approval.

D) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Head of Planning, Transport and Regeneration under delegated powers, subject
to the completion of the legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers with the applicant.

E) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:
1 RES3 Time Limit

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 31



The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 3865/01 Rev. A,
3865/02 Rev. B and 3865/03 Rev. A. and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as
long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 RES7 Materials (Submission)

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be retained
as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

4 RES6 Levels

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in accordance
with policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

5 RES9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Cycle Storage - for 6 bicycles
2.b Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 32



2.c Car Parking Layouts (including demonstration that two of the parking spaces are
served by active electrical charging point and a further two are served by passive
electrical charging points)

2.d Hard Surfacing Materials

2.e External Lighting

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved detalils.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan (2016).

6 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development)(England) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with
or without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or
roof alteration shall be erected without the grant of further specific permission from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

7 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to
prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 33



The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
London Plan (2016) Policy 5.12.

8 RES22 Parking Allocation

The residential units hereby approved shall not be occupied until a parking allocation
scheme has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.
The parking allocation scheme shall, as a minimum, include a requirement that all on-site
car parking shall be allocated and dedicated for the use of each of the residential units
hereby approved and shall remain allocated and dedicated in such a manner for the life-
time of the development.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

9 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

The development hereby approved shall ensure that the ground floor residential units are
constructed to meet the standards for M4(2) standards set out in Approved Document M
to the Building Regulations (2015 edition), and all such provisions shall remain in place for
the life of the building.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (2016) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 34



AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved) still apply for
development control decisions.

4 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central

Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

5 12 Encroachment

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 35



You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application may have to
be submitted. The validity of this planning permission may be challengeable by third
parties if the development results in any form of encroachment onto land outside the
applicant's control for which the appropriate Notice under Article 13 of the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 has not
been served.

6 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Residents Services
Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

7 16 Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

8 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:20009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 36



9 170 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in
order to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an
application which is likely to be considered favourably.

10 173 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Granting Consent)

Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), this development is liable to pay the London
Borough of Hillingdon Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This will be calculated in accordance with the
London Borough of Hillingdon CIL Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL
Charging Schedule 2012. Before commencement of works the development parties must
notify the London Borough of Hillingdon of the commencement date for the construction
works (by submitting a Commencement Notice) and assume liability to pay CIL (by
submitting an Assumption of Liability Notice) to the Council at planning@hillingdon.gov.uk.
The Council will then issue a Demand Notice setting out the date and the amount of CIL
that is payable. Failure to submit a valid Assumption of Liability Notice and
Commencement Notice prior to commencement of the development may result in
surcharges being imposed.

The above forms can be found on the planning portal at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

Pre-Commencement Conditions: These conditions are important from a CIL liability
perspective as a scheme will not become CIL liable until all of the pre-commencement
conditions have been discharged/complied with.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site comprises a garage court of 14 lock up garages, a communal drying area and a
residual area of wasteland at the rear of the garages. The site is bound by St Jerome's
Grove to the East, a cul de sac highway and parking lot to the South and East; private
gardens to the West and a disused communal area and stores for the block of flats to the
North. The existing site access is from an entrance at the end of Corwell Gardens at the
North West corner of the site. The site is currently enclosed by hoardings and demolition of
the garages appears to have commenced.

The surrounding buildings are predominantly residential two and three storey flats and
maisonettes arranged as purpose built blocks with shared amenity space and semi
detached houses with private gardens. The site is within the developed area as identified in
the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme
The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey building with

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 37



habitable roof space, parking and amenity space for use as 4 x 2-bed flats and 2 x studio
flats.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

72968/APP/2017/2212 45 Corwell Gardens Hillingdon

Two storey building with habitable roofspace, parking and amenity space for use as 4 x 2-bed
flats and 2 x studio flats

Decision: 15-12-2017 Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

72968/APP/2017/2212 - Two storey building with habitable roofspace, parking and amenity
space for use as 4 x 2-bed flats and 2 x studio flats was refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development fails to provide sufficient off street parking provision which
meets the council's approved parking standards to service the proposed dwellings or
provide justification for the loss of the existing garage parking to serve the nearby dwellings.
The development would therefore lead to additional on-street parking to the detriment of
public and highway safety and is therefore contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November
2012), to Hillingdon's Adopted Parking Standards as set out in the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

2. The proposed development by reason of its siting and proximity to the adjacent
properties at Nos. 45 and 46 Corwell Gradens and the side facing bedroom window would
result in unacceptable overlooking of the private amenity space for these properties. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3. The proposal would fail to provide a satisfactory residential environment for future
occupants of the ground floor side-facing bedrooms which would achieve very poor levels
of outlook, light and privacy. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE19, BE20 and
BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2016), the Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary
Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016) and the Council's adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

66930/APP/2014/3466 - Erection of 2 x two storey, three-bedroom detached dwellings with

associated landscaping and parking, involving demolition of 8 of the 12 existing lock-up
garages. Approved 4.12.14 subject to conditions which have not been discharged.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 38



PT1.BE1l

(2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7

AM14
BE13
BE15
BE19
BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24
BE38

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

LPP 3.3
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 7.4
NPPF1
NPPF6
NPPF7

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments
(2016) Local character

NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF - Requiring good design

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable
5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable
6. Consultations

External Consultees

15 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 22.1.18 and a site notice was displayed to
the front of the site which expired on 21.2.18.

1 letter of comment has been received raising concerns about parking outside of the site and the
parking stress in the area. The neighbour raises concerns about where to park during construction.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 39



Internal Consultees
Access Officer:

Having reviewed this application, it is clear that step free access to the proposed dwellings above
ground floor would not be possible for wheelchair users and other persons unable to use a
staircase. Paragraph 3.48A of the London Plan (March 2016) recognises that the application of
M4(2), which requires lift access (a step free approach to the principle private entrance), may have
particular implications for developments of four storeys or less where historically the London Plan
may not have not required a lift. Local Planning Authorities are therefore required to ensure that
dwellings accessed above or below the entrance storey in buildings of four storeys or less have
step-free access. Research indicates that the provision of a lift does not necessarily have a
significant impact on viability and does not necessarily lead to a significant increase in service
charges. However, in certain specific cases, the provision of a lift where necessary to achieve this
aim, may cause practical difficulties, make developments unviable and/or have significant
implications for the affordability of service charges for intended residents. Unless the applicant
submits a clear, well evidenced and compelling case to the LPA as to why lift access cannot be
provided, the application should not be supported on the grounds of non-compliance with London
Plan policy 3.8 C. To accord with London Plan Policy 3.8(c), the internal layout of the proposed flats
is required to be compliant with the prescribed standards set out in M4(2) of Approved Document M
to the Building Regulations (2015 Edition). Plans should be amended and annotated as appropriate.
Conclusion, unacceptable.

Access Officer Revised Comments:

In view of the additional information submitted previously by Pottle & Co, and the attached supporting
financial viability analysis, it would be acceptable for this development not to provide lift access to the
first floor dwellings.

The two dwellings on the ground floor however, should be constructed to accord with the prescribed
M4(2) standards set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2015 edition).

Highways Officer:

This application is for the construction of 6 flats on an existing garage site in Corwell Gardens
Hillingdon. Corwell Gardens is a local road on the Council road network. The site has an existing
vehicular access from Corwell Gardens that serves an existing block of 12 garages. There was a
previous application on the site that was refused and lack of off-street car parking was one of the
reasons for refusal. There is evidence of parking stress in the surrounding streets as there is little
off-street car parking. The site has a PTAL value of 1b (poor) which suggests there will be a strong
reliance on private cars for trip making to and from the site. The proposal is to convert the existing
garage site into 6 flats and provide 8 car parking spaces, a bin store and a cycle store. This
provision would meet the Council's off-street car parking standards. The cycle store is shown on the
layout plan as a store type arrangement which is supported. | do have concerns over the narrow
access to the site and would suggest that the applicant pays for the installation of no-waiting
restrictions on the access to the site through a S106 contribution or similar mechanism. Given there
are 8 proposed car parking spaces on site | suggested that 2 EVCP are actively wired and 2 are
passively connected which should be conditioned. The traffic generation is likely to be slightly more
than the existing use but is not significant. On the basis of the above comments and providing a
S106 is entered into | do not have significant highway concerns over this application.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development
The proposed site is located within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the Hillingdon Loca

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 40



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). The site is not located in a
Conservation Area and the building is not Listed. There are no policies which prevent the
demolition of the existing garages and the erection residential units, in principle.

Density of the proposed development

The density of the proposed development is 67 units/ha. It should be noted that on a
development of the scale proposed, density in itself is of limited use in assessing such
applications and more site specific considerations are more relevant.

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) requires that all new development
achieves a ‘'high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations and extensions'. In
addition, Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) acknowledges that
‘development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene'. The emphasis placed on the impact of a development upon the
character of the surrounding area is further emphasised under Policy BE19 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012), which recognises that 'The Local Planning
Authority will seek to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or
improves the amenity and character of the area'. Paragraph 4.14 of the Residential Layouts
HDAS SPD specifies that developments should incorporate usable, attractively laid out and
private garden space conveniently located in relation to the property or properties it serves.
It should be of an appropriate size, having regard to the size of the dwelling and character
of the area. Paragraph 4.27 of the HDAS SPD gives advice that building lines within a new
development should relate to the street pattern of the surroundings whilst the height of the
development is best determined by reference to the proportions, siting and lines of
surrounding buildings.

The site currently accommodates a single storey block of garages. It is noted that there is
an extant planning permission for the erection of 2 x two storey, three-bedroom detached
dwellings orientated towards the entrance of the garage block, sited approximately 5 m off
the rear boundary of the site. The application site is currently enclosed by hoardings.

The character of the area is defined by two storey blocks of maisonettes and three storey
blocks of flats set in communal gardens.

The proposed building would have a half hipped roof (measuring 9.9 m at the ridge and
5.29 m at the eaves) with two forward projecting gables and one rear projecting gable and
accommodation within the roofspace served by two rear facing dormers. The building
would be more prominent within the street scene than the extant permission for two
dwellings or existing garages, however the overall bulk of the building would not appear out
of keeping with the character of the area which does contain three storey blocks of flats.
The half hipped roof form is not a characteristic roof form within this locality. However the
building would be domestic in scale and is not considered to cause sufficient harm to the
character and appearance of the area to justify a refusal of planning permission. As a result
it is considered that it would not have a negative impact upon the visual amenity of the site
or the surrounding area in compliance with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 41



One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) give advice that buildings should be laid out so that adequate daylight and
sunlight can penetrate into and between them, and the amenities of existing houses are
safeguarded.

Policies BE23 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part Two) stress the importance of
new buildings and extensions providing adequate amount of external amenity space, that
not only protects the amenity of the occupants of the proposed development, but also of
those of the surrounding buildings, as well as protecting both parties privacy.

The Council's adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006) specifies in paragraph
4.9 that where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its garden, a minimum
acceptable distance of 15 m should be maintained, so as to overcome possible over-
domination, overbearing and overshadowing. Paragraph 4.11 of the HDAS SPD specifies
that the Council's 45 degree principle will be applied and is designed to ensure that
adequate daylight and sunlight is enjoyed in new and existing dwellings. The principle
involves drawing a line from the mid-point of an existing/new habitable window that is
potentially affected by a new dwelling at an angle of 45 degrees towards the new building.
Paragraph 4.12 of the HDAS SPD specifies that new residential development should be
designed so as to ensure adequate privacy for its occupants and that of the adjoining
residential property. It gives advice that the distance should not be less than 21 m between
facing habitable room windows.

The site abuts property and gardens on the Western boundary. There are also residential
properties to the North and East (on the opposite side of St Jeromes Grove). There are
also dwellings to the South and North. The proposed development has been amended
since the previous refusal to remove any side facing windows at first and second floor. The
proposed bulk of the building is not considered to give rise to an unacceptable loss of light
or outlook and the revised fenestration arrangements would not result in an unacceptable
loss of privacy to occupants of numbers 45 and 46 Corwell Gardens. Therefore, it is
considered that the proposed development would not constitute an un-neighbourly form of
development in compliance with Policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two -Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional’ Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. A two bedroom (3 person) flat
is required to provide an internal floor area of 61 m2 and a one person studio is required to
provide 37 square metres which the proposal complies with. Furthermore the habitable
rooms would enjoy a satisfactory outlook in accordance with the requirements of Policy 3.5
of the London Plan (2016).

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 42



Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) recognises that new residential
buildings should 'provide external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity
of the occupants of the proposed and surrounding buildings'. The submitted plans indicate
that each of the ground floor rear facing flats would be provided with a private amenity
space measuring 40 square metres and a communal amenity space measuring 100
square metres would be provided to serve the remaining flats. The amenity space
provision is considered to be acceptable in accordance with Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

This application is for the construction of 6 flats on an existing garage site in Corwell
Gardens Hillingdon. Corwell Gardens is a local road on the Council road network. The site
has an existing vehicular access from Corwell Gardens that serves an existing block of 12
garages. There was a previous application on the site that was refused and lack of off-
street car parking was one of the reasons for refusal. There is evidence of parking stress in
the surrounding streets as there is little off-street car parking. The site has a PTAL value of
1b (poor) which suggests there will be a strong reliance on private cars for trip making to
and from the site. The proposal is to convert the existing garage site into 6 flats and provide
8 car parking spaces, a bin store and a cycle store. This provision would meet the
Council's off-street car parking standards. The cycle store is shown on the layout plan as a
store type arrangement which is supported. The highways officer has raised concerns over
the narrow access to the site and has requested that the applicant pays for the installation
of no-waiting restrictions on the access to the site through a S106 contribution. The
applicant has agreed to enter into a S106 agreement. Given there are 8 proposed car
parking spaces, a condition is recommended to secure 2 EVCP are actively wired and 2
are passively connected.
7.11 Urban design, access and security

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
7.12 Disabled access

Paragraph 3.48A of the London Plan (March 2016) recognises that the application of M4(2),
which requires lift access (a step free approach to the principle private entrance), may
have particular implications for developments of four storeys or less where historically the
London Plan may not have not required a lift. Local Planning Authorities are therefore
required to ensure that dwellings accessed above or below the entrance storey in buildings
of four storeys or less have step-free access. Research indicates that the provision of a lift
does not necessarily have a significant impact on viability and does not necessarily lead to
a significant increase in service charges. However, in certain specific cases, the provision
of a lift where necessary to achieve this aim, may cause practical difficulties, make
developments non-viable and/or have significant implications for the affordability of service
charges for intended residents. The applicant has submitted a financial viability statement
which supports the view that the installation of a lift would render the scheme non-viable.
The Council's access officer has raised no objection to the scheme subject to the ground
floor flats being constructed to accord with the prescribed M4(2) standards set out in
Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2015 edition).
7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 43



7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Landscaping

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate. There are no Tree Preservation Orders on, or close to, the site, nor does it fall
within a Conservation Area. While no specific landscape design details have been
specified, the layout plans indicate that there is sufficient space and opportunity to provide
attractive and functional external amenity space. In the event of an approvable scheme, a
condition could be imposed to secure landscaping details.

Sustainable waste management

The proposed plans indicate the provision of bin stores to serve the flats.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments received are addressed in the sections above.
Planning obligations

S106 Agreement
The applicant has agreed to enter into a S106 agreement to provide no waiting signs on the

narrow access road in line with the comments of the Council's Highways Officer and has
submitted Heads of Terms to the Legal Department to complete such an agreement.

CIL

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

The scheme would be CIL liable. Presently calculated the amounts would be as follows;
LBH CIL £61,853.82
London Mayoral CIL £24,218.90

Total CIL £86,072.72
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

No other issues are raised.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor
General

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 44



Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 45



Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey building with
habitable roof space, parking and amenity space for use as 4 x 2-bed flats and 2 x studio
flats and follows a recent refusal of application reference 72968/APP/2017/2212. The
proposal is considered to have addressed the previous three reasons for refusal and
subject to the completion of a Section 106 agreement to secure contributions for the no
waiting signs on the access road, is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 46



Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Garage Site Adjacent to
45 Corwell Gardens

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72968/APP/2018/199 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
June 2018

Central & Sopdhe 47

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 9

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address THE PRINCE ALBERT PH PIELD HEATH ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Variation of condition 2 (Approved Plans) of planning permission Ref:
704/APP/2015/1071 dated 05/10/2015 (Redevelopment of site with a two
storey block to provide 9 x two-bedroom flats with associated access, parking
and landscaping) to allow internal and external alterations to the layout and
design of the building (Part Retrospective Application)

LBH Ref Nos: 704/APP/2016/3689

Drawing Nos: Location Plan (1:1250)
16/3395/30
16/3395/31
16/3395/32
16/3395/33
16/3395/34
16/3395/35
16/3395/36

Date Plans Received: 05/10/2016 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 05/10/2016
1. SUMMARY

Members may recall the original planning application (ref. 704/APP/2015/1071) being
presented to the Central and South Planning Committee on 30/6/15, where the officer's
recommendation for approval was agreed. The original application sought to re-develop
the site of the former Prince Albert Public House, which has now been demolished, for
residential purposes, to comprise a two-storey, 'L'-shaped flatted block providing 9 two-
bedroom flats with associated parking and landscaping.

The scheme was deemed to be of an appropriate low-key, two storey bulk and scale that
accorded with the Mayor's density guidance and the building line was sufficiently set back
from its eastern boundary to maintain the openness of the adjoining Green Belt. Further,
the building was of a traditional design using hipped roofs that was deemed to improve the
visual amenities of the area by replacing a large unauthorised car park.

This application seeks retrospective permission to vary Condition 2 (Approved Plans) of
that permission in order to regularise various internal and external alterations that have
been made to the layout and design of the two storey block which has now been
substantially completed on site.

The amendments made to the scheme from the approved proposals, as set out in this
report, are not considered to significantly alter the approved scheme or to result in an
unacceptable development. As such the application is recommended for approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL subject to the following:

1 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 49



The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 16/3395/30,
16/3395/31, 16/3395/32, 16/3395/33, 16/3395/34, 16/3395/35 and 16/3395/36 and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

2 COM7 Materials (Submission)

Within 3 months of the date of this permission, details of all materials and external
surfaces, including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

3 COM9 Landscaping (car parking & refuse/cycle storage)

Within 3 months of the date of this permission, a landscape scheme shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1. Details of Soft Landscaping

1.a Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),

1.b Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,

1.c Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

2. Details of Hard Landscaping

2.a Means of enclosure/boundary treatments

2.b Car Parking Layouts including a parking allocation scheme
2.c Hard Surfacing Materials

2.d External Lighting

2.e Other structures

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance

3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.

3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within the
landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes
seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation
5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground

5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with the
approved details.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 50



REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

4 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The secondary side living/ dining room windows to units at first floor level facing Pield
Court and Nos. 1-3 Holly Court Mews respectively shall be glazed with permanently
obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished
floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 RES18 Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

The dwellings hereby approved shall be constructed to meet the standards for a Category
2 M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010)
2015, and all such provisions shall remain in place for the life of the building.

Reason:
To ensure an appropriate standard of housing stock in accordance with London Plan
policy 3.8 c, is achieved and maintained.

6 RES24 Secured by Design

The dwellings shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association
of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until accreditation has
been achieved.

REASON

In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote the
well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the Local
Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (2015) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

7 NONSC Sustainable Water Management Scheme

Within 3 months of the date of this permission, a scheme for the provision of sustainable
water management shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it:

a) Manages Surface Water. The scheme shall demonstrate ways of controlling the
surface water on site.

i. incorporates sustainable urban drainage in accordance with the hierarchy set out in
Policy 5.15 of the London Plan. Where the proposal does not utilise the most sustainable
solution, justification must be provided.

ii. provide information on all Suds features including the method employed to delay and
control the water discharged from the site to Greenfield run off rates and:

a. calculations showing storm period and intensity and volume of storage required to
control surface water and size of features to control that volume.

b. any overland flooding should be shown, with flow paths depths and velocities identified
as well as any hazards, ( safe access and egress must be demonstrated).

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 51



iii. Demonstrates capacity and structural soundness in the receptors of Thames Water
network and receiving watercourse as appropriate.

iv. During Construction

a. measures taken to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface
waters;

b. how they or temporary measures will be implemented to ensure no increase in flood
risk from commencement of construction.

b) Foul water

i. The Scheme shall demonstrate capacity in the receiving foul sewer network or provides
suitable upgrades agreed by Thames Water.

c) Ground water

i. Where infiltration techniques (soakway) or a basement are proposed a site investigation
must be provided to establish the risk of groundwater flooding on the site, and to
demonstrate the suitability of infiltration techniques proposed on the site. (This should be
undertaken at the appropriate time of year as groundwater levels fluctuate).

ii. Where groundwater is found within the site and a basement is proposed suitable
mitigation methods must be provided to ensure the risk to others is not increased.

d) Minimise water use. The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to
minimise the use of potable water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

i. incorporate water saving measures and equipment.

ii. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

iii. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

e) Long Term Management and Maintenance of the drainage system.

i. Provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification,
remediation and timescales for the resolving of issues. Where there is overland flooding
proposed, the plan should include the appropriate actions to ensure the safety of the users
of the site should that be required.

ii. Where the maintenance will not be the responsibility of an individual householder, the
details of the body legally responsible for the implementation of the management and
maintenance plan must be provided.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development does not
increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012) Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of
the London Plan (March 2016) and National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and
the Planning Practice Guidance (March 2014). To be handled as close to its source as
possible in compliance with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (March
2016), and conserve water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use and
supplies of the London Plan (March 2016).

8 NONSC Contaminated Land

(i) Within 3 months of the date of this permission, a scheme to deal with contamination
shall be submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning Guidance Document
on Land Contamination for approval by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The scheme
shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with any such
requirement specifically and in writing:

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 52



(a) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and evaluate
all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all other
identified receptors relevant to the site;

(b) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out by
a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also clearly
identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make the site
suitable for the proposed use; and

(c) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how the
completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the LPA
prior to commencement, along with details of a watching brief to address undiscovered
contamination.

(ii) If during development works contamination not addressed in the submitted remediation
scheme is identified, the updated watching brief shall be submitted and an addendum to
the remediation scheme shall be agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and

(i) All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed and a
comprehensive verification report shall be submitted to the Council's Environmental
Protection Unit before any part of the development is occupied or brought into use unless
the LPA dispenses with any such requirement specifically and in writing.

(iv) No contaminated soils or other materials shall be imported to the site. All imported
soils for landscaping purposes shall be clean and free of contamination. Before any part of
the development is occupied, all imported soils shall be independently tested for chemical
contamination, and the results of this testing shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. All soils used for gardens and/or landscaping purposes shall
be clean and free of contamination.

REASON

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors in accordance with policy OE11 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

9 NONSC Energy Efficiency

Within 3 months of the date of this permission, full details (including specifications) of the
low and zero carbon technology required to meet the CO2 reductions set out in the
Sustainable Design and Construction Report - Energy and Environmental Aspects,
Revision A (Eco Energy & Environmental Ltd, February 2015) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The details shall include roof plans and
elevations for any proposed Photovoltaics. Full details of any other technologies shall also
be submitted.

The development must be completed in accordance with the approved details and a
monitoring report submitted to the Local Planning Authority on a quarterly basis for the first
5 years on completion of the development.

REASON

To ensure the reduction of CO2 in accordance with Policy 5.2 of the London Plan (March
2016).

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 53



10 RES17 Sound Insulation

The development shall not be occupied until a scheme for protecting the proposed
residential unit above the entrance access from refuse collection noise has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All works which form
part of the scheme shall be fully implemented before the development is occupied and
thereafter shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the
building remains in use.

REASON

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not adversely
affected by (road traffic) (rail traffic) (air traffic) (other) noise in accordance with policy
OES5 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London
Plan (2016) Policy 7.15.

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF9 NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal

NPPF11 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2015) Renewable energy

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage

LPP 5.14 (2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

LPP 5.15 (2015) Water use and supplies

LPP 6.3 (2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.5 (2015) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport
infrastructure

LPP 6.9 (2015) Cycling

LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 54



LPP 7.1 (2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2015) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture

LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

LPP 7.21 (2015) Trees and woodland

OL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

OE8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation
leisure and community facilities

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking
facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,

Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved’) still apply for
development control decisions.

4 170 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Granting)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 55



UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service, in
order to ensure that the applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an
application which is likely to be considered favourably.

5 12 Encroachment

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application may have to
be submitted. The validity of this planning permission may be challengeable by third
parties if the development results in any form of encroachment onto land outside the
applicant's control for which the appropriate Notice under Article 13 of the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 has not
been served.

6 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Residents Services, Building Control, 3N/0O1 Civic
Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

7 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Residents Services
Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 56



Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

9 121 Street Naming and Numbering

All proposed new street names must be notified to and approved by the Council. Building
names and numbers, and proposed changes of street names must also be notified to the
Council. For further information and advice, contact - The Street Naming and Numbering
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3 North Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8
1UW (Tel. 01895 250557).

10

The applicant is advised that where the conditions requiring the submission of details have
been discharged in connection with the original permission, the Local Planning Authority
will not require these details to be resubmitted as part of this new planning permission
where those details would remain the same.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The 0.16ha rectangular site of the former Prince Albert Public House is located on the
southern side of Pield Heath Road, approximately 70m to the east of its junction with
Colham Green Road. The residential flatted block construction is close to completion.

The character of the surrounding area is mixed, although the immediate area is
predominantly residential, including a row of chalet style bungalows immediately opposite
the site. Holly Cottage Mews, a gated development of 10 mews style properties which
wraps around the site at the rear immediately adjoins the site to the west. To the east, the
application site abuts the Metropolitan Green Belt, which along the road frontage is in use
as allotments, with public open space adjoining the allotments at the rear. Hillingdon
Hospital is sited some 90m to the west of the site, on the south western corner of the
junction of Pield Heath Road and Colham Green Road. There is also a small parade of
shops on the opposite side of the road, approximately 50m to the west of the application
site.

The area of the site is level, although the adjoining land slopes down towards the rear so
that the site is some 2m higher than adjoining land at the rear, including the allotments to
the east and Holly Cottage Mews properties and their access to the south and west. Along
the eastern boundary of the site, adjoining the allotments are a number of mature trees.

The site is located within an Air Quality Management Area and has a Public Transport
Accessibility (PTAL) Level of 3 (on a scale of 1 to 6 where 6 represents the highest level of

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 57



accessibility and 1 the least).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks retrospective permission to vary Condition 2 (Approved Plans) of
planning permission dated 05/10/15, ref. 704/APP/2015/1071 to allow internal and external
alterations to the layout and design of the two storey block. The description of the original
application stated:

"This proposal is for the redevelopment of the site to provide a two storey 'L-shaped' flatted
block comprising 9 two-bedroom residential units, with associated car parking for 9
vehicles, including 1 disabled space provided at the rear, accessed through an archway
within the building, landscaping and amenity space.

The two storey block would have a hipped roof with gable features. The main block would
be parallel with and set back some 2.4m from the road frontage. It would be 32.5m wide,
set back some 5.8m from the eastern side boundary which adjoins the allotments and 1m
from the western side boundary of the site adjoining Holly Cottage Mews. The main block
would have a depth of some 10.4m and an eaves height of 5.4m and ridge height of 8.8m.

The projecting wing would be sited adjacent to the eastern edge of the site, and project
approximately 24m from the rear elevation of the main block, to set back from the rear
boundary of the site by on average 3.4m. The block would have a main width of 7.7m, with
an identical eaves height to the main block, but a reduced ridge height of some 8m.

The main block would have a symmetrical frontage with recessed entrances each side of a
centrally sited main projecting gable, below which vehicular access would be taken, with
smaller gable features each side. At the rear, 3 of the first floor units would have balconies
with a fourth having a part covered and part open terrace. Within the rear courtyard, the car
parking area for 9 vehicles would be provided towards the rear, with a 107sgm communal
amenity area sited between the parking area and the main block. Large private patio areas
would also be provided within the courtyard for 3 of the four ground floor flats, with another
private patio provided at the side of the main block adjoining the allotments.

Each entrance to the main block on each side of the internal driveway would have a
separate pedestrian access from Pield Heath Road, with a through connection into the car
park courtyard. This would also access the entrance to the rear wing from a segregated
footpath. A third footpath from Pield Heath Road would also be provided to the east of the
building providing access to the integral bin store, sited between the main and projecting
wings of the building. The proposal would involve widening the adjacent highway public
footpath to 2m in order to accommodate the required visibility splay. Boundary treatment
along the road frontage would be 1.2m high metal railings. Lockers for cycle storage would
also be provided within the three entrance stairwells to the building.'

The proposed changes from the approved scheme are set out below:

1. Changes to the elevation details, including:

North elevation - Increased variation in built form with additional forward projections, altered
window arrangement, introduction of lintels to the first floor, changes to brick detailing,
removal of timber cladding, removal of patio doors at ground level and introduction of Juliet
balcony.

East - Reduced variation in built form with loss of forward projection and regularised
window arrangement.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 58



South - Altered window arrangement, changes to brick detailing, removal of timber
cladding, removal of balcony, introduction of steps to access doors.

West - Additional forward projections, altered window arrangement, changes to brick
detailing, removal of timber cladding, removal of balconies.

2. Changes to the roof form

The approved plans for the development proposed a single unbroken ridge line for the roof
of building 'A" adjacent to Pield Heath Road. The amended proposals reflect the building as
constructed and show a greater level of variation within the ridge line. In addition the
approved scheme incorporated a section of roof that connected building ‘A’ to building 'B'.
This section of roof has been removed, however the connecting balcony remains.

3. Removal of space for future lifts in both buildings and changes to internal layouts.
Numerous changes to the internal layouts are proposed as well as the removal of space
for potential future lifts in both buildings. The number of units and bedrooms remain as per
the original approval.

4. Change to bin store and cycle lockers location

The approved scheme proposed cycle lockers within the main access points of the
buildings. It is now proposed to relocate the cycle lockers under the balcony that connects
the two buildings where refuse was previously proposed to be located. It is also proposed
to relocate the refuse store to under the main vehicle access archway.

The number or proposed units, bedrooms and car parking arrangements remain as per
approved under the previous application (ref. 704/APP/2015/1071).

3.3 Relevant Planning History

704/APP/2015/1071 The Prince Albert Ph Pield Heath Road Hillingdon

Redevelopment of site with a two storey block to provide 9 x two-bedroom flats with associated
access, parking and landscaping.

Decision: 30-06-2015 Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Following the submission of two pre-application enquiries for the site's redevelopment for
residential purposes, the first in 2010, the second in 2013, planning permission for a two
storey 'L'-shaped block comprising 9 x two-bedroom flats with associated access, parking
and landscaping was approved on 5/10/15 (application reference 704/APP/2015/1071).

Prior to this, the cleared site was in unauthorised use as a car park which resulted in the
serving of an Enforcement Notice on 26 February 2015.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (March 2016)

National Planning Policy Framework

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Accessible Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Noise

Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document - Planning Obligations
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Air Quality

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 59



Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Community Safety by Design
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Guidance - Land Contamination

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1l (2012) Built Environment

PT1.EM1 (2012) Climate Change Adaptation and Mitigation

PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
PT1.EM6 (2012) Flood Risk Management

PT1.EMS8 (2012) Land, Water, Air and Noise

PT1.CI1 (2012) Community Infrastructure Provision

Part 2 Policies:

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF9 NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF10 NPPF - Meeting challenge of climate change flooding costal
NPPF11 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the natural environment
LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2015) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2015) Housing Choice

LPP 5.2 (2015) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

LPP 5.3 (2015) Sustainable design and construction

LPP 5.7 (2015) Renewable energy

LPP 5.13 (2015) Sustainable drainage
LPP 5.14 (2015) Water quality and wastewater infrastructure
LPP 5.15 (2015) Water use and supplies

LPP 6.3 (2015) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

LPP 6.5 (2015) Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure
LPP 6.9 (2015) Cycling

LPP 6.13 (2015) Parking

LPP 7.1 (2015) Lifetime Neighbourhoods

LPP 7.2 (2015) An inclusive environment

LPP 7.3 (2015) Designing out crime

LPP 7.4 (2015) Local character

LPP 7.6 (2015) Architecture

LPP 7.16 (2015) Green Belt

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 60



LPP 7.21 (2015) Trees and woodland

OoL5 Development proposals adjacent to the Green Belt

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

OES8 Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

R17 Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

AM2 Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM9 Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle parking facilities

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

AM15 Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LDF-AH Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

46 neighbouring properties have been consulted on this application, together with the Cowley
Community Residents' Association and a site notice was displayed. One letter of objection has been
received that can be summarised as:

- Proposal is different to the previous consent

- Resident feels mislead as a different scheme was constructed

- Scheme is not one ‘L' shaped block

- There is no access to the garden/car park for a person whose mobility is restricted other than
through the central

archway.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 61



Case Officer's comments: This application seeks to regularise the difference between the approved
scheme and that constructed on site. The scheme is for two blocks which are at right angles to one
another and connected by a balcony. Access to the rear area is the same as that previously
approved.

Internal Consultees
CONSERVATION/ URBAN DESIGN OFFICER:

The building is now almost complete and appears to be generally in accordance with the amended
planning application. In my view whilst this scheme is greatly inferior in design terms to the original
approval, on balance, | do not feel the quality of the architecture is such that it would warrant refusal
of the application on design grounds.

HIGHWAY ENGINEER:

I have reviewed the material supplied relating to the approval given to the application
704/APP/2015/1071 which was for 9 flats on the site of the now demolished Prince Albert PH. This
approved scheme had 9 flats with 9 car parking spaces, covered secure cycle parking and
refuse/recycling bin facilities.

The latest drawings show a new vehicular access and 9 car parking spaces in a similar
arrangement to that which was approved. It is not clear from the drawings supplied if the secure
covered cycle parking spaces have been altered in any way and the same comment applies to the
refuse/recycling.

If the secure covered cycle storage and refuse/recycling arrangements are the same or very similar
to the approved scheme then | will have no significant concerns.

Case Officer's comments:
The condition attached to the previous consent reference 704/APP/2015/1071 that requires details of
cycle storage is also recommended to be attached to this consent.

TREES/LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

This application is to vary condition 2. As far as the plans indicate, there is no amendment to the
external layout or landscape.

Recommendations: No objection subject to the previously proposed landscape conditions.

Case Officer's comments: The relevant landscape condition attached to the previous consent
reference 704/APP/2015/1071 is also recommended to be attached to this consent.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION OFFICER:

Given that the bins are now to be located and probably emptied in the access road directly under the
flat, labelled on the plans as plot 4, | would recommend that the sound insulation to the floor of that
flat is upgraded to protect future residents from noise. We would normally request a sound insulation
condition is attached requiring that a scheme for sound insulation of the property is submitted which
would meet acceptable internal noise design criteria, and that this scheme should be installed and
maintained thereafter.

Case Officer's comments: The required noise condition is recommended to be attached to this
consent.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 62



FLOOD AND WATER MANAGEMENT OFFICER:

No objections to the variation, as there are no major changes which affect the drainage, as long as
the drainage condition applied to the 704/APP/2015/1071 permission continues to apply.

Case Officer's comments: The condition attached to the previous consent reference
704/APP/2015/1071 is also recommended to be attached to this consent.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:
| have no objection to the variation.
WASTE SERVICES MANAGER:

Advice provided on waste requirements that is recommended as an informative should consent be
granted.

ACCESS OFFICER:

| refer to my memo dated 11 May 2015 in which | note the space provision for a future lift installation.
In assessing this application, reference has been made to the London Plan 2016, Policies 3.8
(Housing Choice), and Approved Document M to the Building Regulations 2015 (ADM 2015). These
latest plans appear not to show provision for future lift installation. In light of the above policy and
technical housing standards, the plans should be amended accordingly.

Conclusion: acceptable, subject to a suitable planning condition attached to any approval.

Condition

The dwelling hereby approved shall be constructed to meet the standards for a Category 2 M4(2)
dwelling, as set out in Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010) 2015, and all such
provisions shall remain in place for the life of the building.

Reason:
To ensure an appropriate standard of housing stock in accordance with London Plan policy 3.8 ¢, is
achieved and maintained.

ACCESS OFFICER Final comments:

In response to correspondence dated 18 May 2018 from WJ McLeod Ltd, | accept that it would be
impractical to incorporate lift access and provide a step free approach to the dwellings on the upper
storeys.

Case Officer comments:

The Applicant has provided further evidence to the Council's Access Officer justifying why it is
unviable to provide two lifts to service 5 first floor units. The Council's Access Officer has confirmed
their acceptance of this justification and also confirmed that they raise no objection to the
development subject to the attachment of the above condition.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The principle of the residential redevelopment of this site, including the loss of the public
house, was established by the grant of the previous permission under application reference
704/APP/2015/1071.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 63



Policy 3.4 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that new developments achieve the
maximum intensity of use compatible with the local context and with public transport
capacity.

The proposed density has already been approved as acceptable under application
reference 704/APP/2015/1071.
7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

The application site is not located within an Archaeological Priority Area nor has it any other
archaeological designation. The nearest listed building, the Grade Il Listed Orange Peel
Hotel/Public House is located some 35m to the east of the application site, but with such a
separation distance and given the nature of the proposed residential scheme and the
closer proximity of surrounding residential development, the proposal would not harm the
listed building's setting. The application site is also not sited within or close to the boundary
of a conservation area or an area of special local character.

As such, it is considered that the proposals would not harm any known heritage assets.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

There are no airport safeguarding issues raised by this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

In the officer's report to committee on the original application, it was stated that 'the eastern
boundary of the site adjoins the Metropolitan Green Belt. There are a number of mature
trees and vegetation along this boundary which help to screen the site from views across
the adjoining open Green Belt land. Although the proposed building would be sited closer to
this boundary and extend along more of its depth than the former public house building, the
proposed flatted block would still retain a good sized undeveloped gap of at least 5.4m to
this boundary along the whole of its depth. This area would mainly be used as
landscaping/informal amenity space and would provide an opportunity to enhance the
boundary planting. This would be controlled by the recommended condition.'

Members approved the application and the same condition is recommended to be attached
to any grant of planning consent for the current application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposed minor amendments to the external appearance of the development are not
considered to have a significant impact on the character and appearance of the area over
and above the approved scheme (under application reference 704/APP/2015/1071).

The Council's Design Officer has raised no objections to the amended proposals.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

The proposed minor amendments to the development are not considered to have a
significant impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties over and above the approved
scheme (under application reference 704/APP/2015/1071). The condition requiring obscure
glazed windows for those units at first floor level on the south and western facades is
recommended to be attached to the current application. The condition requiring details of
balcony privacy screens is recommended to be removed as the scheme no longer
includes the relevant balconies.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

The proposed units would have internal floor areas ranging from 68sgm to 83sqm which
would satisfy the Mayor's 61sgm minimum internal floor space standard for two bedroom
flats. The residential amenity afforded by the flats would be of a good standard, with the
main living/ dining/kitchen rooms all having dual aspect, and all habitable room windows

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 64



having an appropriate outlook and natural lighting.

Habitable room windows would also afford adequate privacy, with all the ground floor
habitable rooms having a reasonable depth of defensible space in front of their windows,
including those that front the road. The only possible exception to this are the eastern
facing rear elevations. Although no use of the area to the rear of these units is currently
shown on the plans, clearly some limited use of this area could be made, even if the area
would not be ideal in terms of providing usable amenity space due to the overshadowing by
the boundary trees. This would need to be clarified and dealt with as part of the
landscaping scheme which has been conditioned.

In order for this scheme to accord with the Council's external amenity space standards, a
minimum of 225sgm of communal space (25sgm per two-bedroom flat) would need to be
provided. The majority of the units had a private patio or balcony area within the previous
proposals, with only Unit 5 (Unit 3 in the approved scheme) on the first floor having no
private provision. The proposed scheme has been amended to result in only 2 of the 5
units at first floor level having use of balconies.

The amended layout would still provide in excess of 225sqm of external private and shared
amenity space. Furthermore, this site is within a 90m walking distance of the large area of
public open space which includes a children's play area, sited to the rear of Holly Court
Mews.

The condition attached to the original consent that required details of privacy screening for
the balconies is recommended to be removed from the current consent as the relevant
balconies have now been removed from the proposals and replaced with juliet balconies.

It is therefore considered that the scheme would afford an appropriate level of amenity for
its future occupiers, in accordance with policies BE20, BE21, BE23 and BE24 of the
adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policies AM2 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) advise respectively that proposals for development will be assessed
against their contribution to traffic generation and impact on congestion, having regard to
the present and potential capacity of public transport and that the traffic generated by
proposed developments would need to be accommodated on principal roads without
increasing demand along roads or at junctions already used to capacity, not prejudice the
free flow of traffic, nor diminish environmental benefits brought about by other road
improvement schemes or infiltrate local roads. Policy AM9 supports cycle provision,
including the need for cycle storage provision within development schemes and Policy
AM14 advises that development should accord with adopted car parking standards.

The previously approved scheme (704/APP/2015/1071) provided one off-street car parking
space for each unit, including a disabled space. The Council's Highway Engineer advised
that the level of parking proposed was acceptable. Furthermore, the proposed car parking
layout, including access through the archway was deemed satisfactory.

No changes to the level of parking or car parking layout are proposed as part of this
application. The location of cycle parking is proposed to be altered however the level of
provision remains consistent. The Council's Highways Engineer has raised no objections
to the amended proposals however confirmation of the cycle and bin store provision and
details are recommended to be conditioned.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 65



7.11 Urban design, access and security

URBAN DESIGN
This issue is addressed in Section 7.07 of the report.

ACCESS
This issue is addressed in Section 7.12 of the report.

SECURITY
A condition to require that the development satisfies 'Secure by Design' criteria was
attached to the previous consent and is recommended to be attached to the current
proposals.

7.12 Disabled access

The Council's Access Officer has reviewed the submitted details and whilst they would
prefer that the potential for future lift provision had not been removed, they believe that the
application can conform with policy requirements through the imposition of a suitable
condition requiring all elements to meet M(4)2 standards. Subject to the attachment of this
condition there are no objections to the proposals in terms of accessibility.

7.13 Provision of affordable & special needs housing

This proposal does not exceed the threshold beyond which an affordable housing
contribution would be required.
7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Trees and Landscaping

Saved policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan advises that new development should retain
topographical and landscape features of merit and that new planting and landscaping
should be provided wherever it is appropriate.

The Council's Tree/Landscaping Officer has reviewed the submitted proposals and raised
no objections as minimal changes are proposed to the originally approved scheme.

Subject to recommended conditions, no objections are raised.

Ecology
The site has little ecological interest and adjoining trees would be retained.
7.15 Sustainable waste management

The development proposal incorporates an integral refuse storage area that would provide
sufficient capacity for refuse/recycling bins. The location of the refuse storage has changed
from the approved scheme, however the new location is closer to the highway and the
Council's Waste Strategy Officer has raised no objections to the proposals.

7.16 Renewable energy / Sustainability

The original planning application was supported by an Energy Assessment that was
sufficient to provide an initial assessment of the likely energy technologies that would be
required. An Energy Efficiency condition was attached to the previous consent that was
sufficiently robust to ensure that appropriate CO2 reduction targets would be met. The
same condition is recommended to be attached to the current application. The Council's
Sustainability Officer has reviewed the submitted plans and raised no objection to the
amendments.
7.17 Flooding or Drainage Issues

The Council's Water and Flood Management Officer advises that there are no objections to
this development in terms of any flooding or drainage issues, but recommends that the
condition attached to the previous consent is also attached to the current proposals to

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 66



ensure that surface water is managed appropriately on site, as it is in an area identified to
be at risk of surface water ponding. This forms part of the officer recommendation.
7.18 Noise or Air Quality Issues

Noise Issues

No concerns were raised regarding noise issues with the original application. The Council's
Environmental Protection Unit have reviewed the amended proposals and requested an
additional condition be attached to mitigate against the noise of refuse collection from the
entrance way on the single flat above. This condition is recommended to be attached to the
current application.

Air Quality
An air quality assessment was submitted with the original application that demonstrated
that the site is suitable for residential occupation. Given the negligible traffic generation, the
use would not materially impact upon air quality.

7.19 Comments on Public Consultations

The issues raised are covered in the main body of the report.
7.20 Planning obligations

Policy R17 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Saved Policies (November 2012) is concerned with
securing planning obligations to supplement the provision recreation open space, facilities
to support arts, cultural and entertainment activities, and other community, social and
education facilities through planning obligations in conjunction with other development
proposals. These saved UDP policies are supported by more specific supplementary
planning guidance.

A single planning obligation to mitigate the impacts of the development was secured under
the original grant of planning permission. This was for the 'Widening and re-instatement of
the adjoining public footpath'. This work has now been completed and therefore it is
considered that a Deed of Variation to the existing S106 Agreement is not required as a
result of the current application.

7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Prior to the construction of the current scheme the cleared site was in unauthorised use as
a car park which resulted in the serving of an Enforcement Notice on 26 February 2015.
There is no current enforcement action applicable to this application.

7.22 Other Issues

None

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 67



the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The original planning application (ref. 704/APP/2015/1071) being presented to the Central
and South Planning Committee on 30/6/15, where the officer's recommendation for
approval was agreed. The original application sought to re-develop the site of the former
Prince Albert Public House, which has now been demolished, for residential purposes, to
comprise a two-storey, 'L'-shaped flatted block providing 9 two-bedroom flats with
associated parking and landscaping.

The scheme was deemed to be of an appropriate low-key, two storey bulk and scale that

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 68



accorded with the Mayor's density guidance and the building line was sufficiently set back
from its eastern boundary to maintain the openness of the adjoining Green Belt. Further,
the building was of a traditional design using hipped roofs that was deemed to improve the
visual amenities of the area by replacing a large unauthorised car park.

This application seeks retrospective permission to vary Condition 2 (Approved Plans) of
that permission in order to regularise various internal and external alterations that have
been made to the layout and design of the two storey block which has now been
substantially completed on site.

The amendments made to the scheme from the approved proposals, as set out in this
report, are not considered to significantly alter the approved scheme or to result in an
unacceptable development. As such the application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (September 2007)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Ed Laughton Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 69



Sunnyside Cottages
N

Timber Yard™™, -/

Colham Green

Allotment Gardens

(]
Recreation Groynd

L

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Site Address:

Residents Services

Planning Section

Notes:
Site boundary
For identification purposes only. Former Pr | nce AI b ert Pu b
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . . . .
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale: .
Act 1988 (the Act). 704/APP/2016/3689 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant o
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: :
© Crown copyright and database _HI LLIN G D(-) N
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey June 2018 e o N
100019283 Central & SO Qage 70 LONDON




Agenda Iltem 10

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address 28 OAKDENE ROAD HILLINGDON

Development: Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension and conversion of 3-bec
dwelling to 1 x 3-bed and 1 x 1-bed dwellings with associated parking and
amenity space

LBH Ref Nos: 4247/APP/2018/1451

Drawing Nos: 280AKDENEROAD-001 Rev. B
280AKDENEROAD-003
280AKDENEROAD-004
280AKDENEROAD-006
280AKDENEROAD-007
280AKDENEROAD-008
280AKDENEROAD-005
280AKDENEROAD-002

Date Plans Received: 18/04/2018 Date(s) of Amendment(s):
Date Application Valid: 27/04/2018
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a part two storey, part
single storey side/rear extension and conversion of 3-bed dwelling to 1 x 3-bed and 1 x 1-
bed dwellings with associated parking and amenity space.

The proposed two storey side extension, by virtue of its siting, size, scale and design,
including the lack of a set back from the front at all levels in a prominent corner location,
and siting in close proximity to the side boundary,would fail to appear as a subordinate
addition and would thus be detrimental to the appearance of the original house, the
character, appearance and symmetry of the pair of semi-detached houses of which it
forms a part and the visual amenities of the street scene and the wider area. Furthermore,
the proposal fails to provide amenity space of sufficient size and quality commensurate to
the size and layout of the said units and also fails to provide sufficient off street parking
provision which meets the councils approved parking standards to service the proposed
dwellings.

Accordingly, the application is recommended for refusal.
2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed two storey side extension, by virtue of its siting, size, scale, width and
design, including the lack of a set back from the front at all levels in a prominent corner
location, and siting in close proximity to the side boundary, would fail to appear as a
subordinate addition and would thus be detrimental to the appearance of the original
house, the character, appearance and symmetry of the pair of semi-detached houses of
which it forms a part and the visual amenities of the street scene and the wider area. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 71



Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Documents HDAS: Residential Extensions and HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

2 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient off street parking/manoeuvring
arrangements would be provided, and therefore the development is considered to result in
substandard car parking provision, leading to on-street parking/queuing to the detriment of
public and highway safety and contrary to policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012), to Hillingdon's Adopted
Parking Standards as set out in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3 NONZ2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by virtue of its failure to provide amenity space of sufficient
size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of the said unit would result in an
over-development of the site detrimental to the residential amenity of future occupiers. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE19 and BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 72



BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

HDAS-EXT Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

4 171 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Refusing)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service.

We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application
as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation
could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

5 174 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Refusing Consent)

This is a reminder that Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), should an application for
appeal be allowed, the proposed development would be deemed as 'chargeable
development' and therefore liable to pay the London Borough of Hillingdon Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).
This would be calculated in accordance with the London Borough of Hillingdon CIL
Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL Charging Schedule 2012. For
more information on CIL matters please visit the planning portal page at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 73



The application property comprises a two storey semi-detached house located on the
Southern side of Oakdene Road which lies within the ‘developed area’ as identified within
the Hillingdon Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The property lies on a prominent corner plot with Evergreen Drive, a modern infill cul-de-
sac located to the South East and accessed between the application site and adjacent
number 34 Oakdene Road. The principal elevation faces almost due North.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a part two storey, part single
storey side/rear extension and conversion of 3-bed dwelling to 1 x 3-bed and 1 x 1-bed
dwellings with associated parking and amenity space.

3.3 Relevant Planning History
4247/APP/2016/3333 28 Oakdene Road Hillingdon
Two storey side extension and single storey rear extension

Decision: 31-10-2016 Refused

4247/APP/2016/4247 28 Oakdene Road Hillingdon

Two storey side extension and single storey rear extension

Decision: 17-01-2017 Refused

4247/APP/2017/3265 28 Oakdene Road Hillingdon

Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension

Decision: 06-12-2017  Approved

4247/APP/2017/4597 28 Oakdene Road Hillingdon
Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension

Decision: 27-02-2018  Approved

4247/APP/2017/676 28 Oakdene Road Hillingdon

Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension

Decision: 18-04-2017 Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History
The following planning history is considered to be of relevance to this application site:

4247/APP/2017/4597 - Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension. Approved.
4247/APP/2017/3265 - Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension. Approved

4247/APP/2017/676 - Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension. Approved

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 74



4247/APP/2017/4247 - Two storey side extension and single storey rear extension was
refused for the following reason:

The proposed development fails to provide sufficient off street parking provision which
meets the council's approved parking standards to service the extended dwelling. The
development would therefore lead to additional on street parking to the detriment of public
and highway safety and is therefore contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Councils adopted car parking
standards.

4247/APP/2016/3333 - two storey side extension and single storey rear extension was
refused for the following reasons:

1. The proposed two storey side extension, by virtue of its siting, size, scale and design,
including the lack of a set back from the front at all levels in a prominent corner location,
would fail to appear as a subordinate addition and would thus be detrimental to the
appearance of the original house, the character, appearance and symmetry of the pair of
semi-detached houses of which it forms a part and the visual amenities of the street scene
and the wider area. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of
the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

2. The proposed development fails to provide sufficient off street parking provision which
meets the councils approved parking standards to service the extended dwelling. The
development would therefore lead to additional on street parking to the detriment of public
and highway safety and is therefore contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon

Local Plan - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the Councils adopted car parking
standards.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1l (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 75



BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

HDAS-EXT  Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted December 2008

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

5 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter dated 1 May 2018 and a site notice was displayed
to the front of the site which expired on 30 May 2018.

1 letter of comment has been received which states:

"The insertion of sufficient windows in the side elevation (ground and 1st floor) adds interest to the
street scene and can prevent an otherwise featureless elevation. Traditional housing layouts from
the Victorian/20th century often demonstrated shortcomings in this respect Where a building is on a
corner, it must 'turn' the corner by providing an active frontage to both streets. Well designed
corners and flanks create visual interest and contribute to a distinct identity. Including fenestration in
return frontages introduces surveillance to the public realm and adds interest into the streetscene. A
gabled roof for the flank wall (to Evergreen Drive) would complement Oakdene and Evergreen's
skyline."

Ward Councillor: Requests that the application is reported to Committee for consideration.

Internal Consultees

Landscape Officer:

This site is occupied by a two-storey, semi-detached house on the South side of Oakdene Road,
adjacent to Evergreen Drive. The plot is wider than average, with a garden area on the East side of
the house. There are no TPO or Conservation Area designations constraining the site.

COMMENT: No trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the proposal. Front

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 76



garden space for parking in number 28 and the new plot will be restricted, according to Hillingdon's
design guidance at least 25% of front garden space should be soft landscaped.

RECOMMENDATION: No objection subject to conditions H10, RES9 (parts 1, 2 and 5).
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The site lies within an established residential area. It is therefore considered there would be
no objection in principle to the intensification of the residential use of the site, subject to all
other material planning considerations being acceptable.

7.02 Density of the proposed development

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2011) seeks to ensure that the new development takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its
impact on adjoining occupiers.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
7.04 Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
7.05 Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
7.07 Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The NPPF (2012) notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its
context stating that 'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions.'

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) requires that all new development
achieves a ‘'high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations and extensions'. In
addition, Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) acknowledges that
‘development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene'. The emphasis placed on the impact of a development upon the
character of the surrounding area is further emphasised under Policy BE19 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012), which recognises that 'The Local Planning
Authority will seek to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or
improves the amenity and character of the area’. Paragraph 4.14 of the Residential Layouts
HDAS SPD specifies that developments should incorporate usable, attractively laid out and
private garden space conveniently located in relation to the property or properties it serves.
It should be of an appropriate size, having regard to the size of the dwelling and character
of the area. Paragraph 4.27 of the HDAS SPD gives advice that building lines within a new
development should relate to the street pattern of the surroundings whilst the height of the
development is best determined by reference to the proportions, siting and lines of
surrounding buildings.

Paragraph 5.1 of the HDAS Residential Extension Guidance, requires that 'all residential
Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 77



extensions of two stories in height to be set back a minimum of 1.0 m from the side
boundary of the property for the full height of the property'. Furthermore Paragraph 5.3 of
the SPD HDAS: Residential Extensions states that any extension to corner plots should
ensure that the open character is maintained. As required under Policy BE22 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012), a two storey side extension to a semi-detached
property should be set back a minimum of 1.0 m from the main front building line.

The proposed extension would measure 4 m wide which exceeds two thirds the width of
the original dwelling. Furthermore, the extension would not be set back 1m from the front
of the original dwelling and would fail to appear as a subordinate addition. It is noted that the
set back and width have been raised as a concern in relation to previous applications for
two storey side extensions and in particular to application reference 4247/APP/2016/3333
(detailed above). The proposed two storey side extension, by virtue of its siting, size, scale,
width and design, including the lack of a set back from the front at all levels in a prominent
corner location, and siting in close proximity to the side boundary, would fail to appear as a
subordinate addition and would thus be detrimental to the appearance of the original house,
the character, appearance and symmetry of the pair of semi-detached houses of which it
forms a part and the visual amenities of the street scene and the wider area. The proposal
is therefore contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic
Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21 and BE22 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Polices (November 2012) give advice that buildings should be laid out so that adequate
daylight and sunlight can penetrate into and between them, and the amenities of existing
houses are safeguarded.

Policies BE23 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (Part Two) stress the importance of
new buildings and extensions providing adequate amount of external amenity space, that
not only protects the amenity of the occupants of the proposed development, but also of
those of the surrounding buildings, as well as protecting both parties privacy.

The Council's adopted HDAS SPD: Residential Layouts (July 2006) specifies in paragraph
4.9 that where a two or more storey building abuts a property or its garden, a minimum
acceptable distance of 15 m should be maintained, so as to overcome possible over-
domination, overbearing and overshadowing. Paragraph 4.11 of the HDAS SPD specifies
that the Council's 45 degree principle will be applied and is designed to ensure that
adequate daylight and sunlight is enjoyed in new and existing dwellings. The principle
involves drawing a line from the mid-point of an existing/new window that is potentially
affected by a new dwelling at an angle of 45 degrees towards the new building. Paragraph
4.12 of the HDAS SPD specifies that new residential development should be designed so
as to ensure adequate privacy for its occupants and that of the adjoining residential
property. It gives advice that the distance should not be less than 21 m between facing
habitable room windows.

The side and rear extensions would be largely screened by the host dwelling and the
extension to the rear of adjoining number 26 and would not result in an unacceptable loss
of light or outlook to the occupants of this property. The submitted plans indicate that the
45 degree line from the centre point of the nearest first floor window would not be
breached. Given the degree of separation between the proposed extension and number 30
Oakdene Road, the proposed extensions would not result in an unacceptable loss of

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 78



residential amenity to the occupants of this property.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants.It is noted that the submitted
plans indicate the provision of a double bedroom and a second habitable room at first floor
annotated as a study. The internal dimensions of the study are 7.5 square metres which is
the minimum internal floor area set out in the National Space Standards, as a single
bedroom. As such, it is considered reasonable to apply the London Plan Standards for a
two bedroom (3 person) house which is 70 square metres. At a floor area of 82 square
metres, the proposal complies with this minimum standard. Furthermore the habitable
rooms would enjoy a satisfactory outlook in accordance with the requirements of Policy 3.5
of the London Plan (2016).

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) recognises that new residential
buildings should 'provide external amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity
of the occupants of the proposed and surrounding buildings'. Submitted plans demonstrate
that the retained dwelling would achieve a garden area of 60 square metres which would
comply with the standards set out in HDAS Residential Layouts. However the proposed
two bedroom dwelling would only achieve 40 square metres which falls short of the HDAS
requirement of 60 square metres. There is not considered to be public open space nearby
that would make up for this level of deficiency at the site. Therefore the proposal fails to
provide amenity space of sufficient size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of
the said units. As such the proposal would provide a substandard form of accommodation
for future residents contrary to Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Layouts.
7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

The application site lies in an area with a PTAL score of 1b(poor). The existing property
benefits from two off street parking spaces. The current proposal seeks permission to
create a new vehicular crossover to serve a new space in the frontage of the host dwelling,
utilising the existing crossover to serve one space for the proposed dwelling. Whilst it is
acknowledged that the submitted plans indicate the provision of secure cycle storage for
both units, which is welcomed, the proposal fails to provide sufficient off street parking
provision which meets the council's approved parking standards to service the proposed
dwellings. The development would therefore lead to additional on street parking to the
detriment of public and highway safety and is therefore contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14
of the Hillingdon Local Plan Saved UDP Paolicies (November 2012) and the Councils

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 79



7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

adopted car parking standards.
Urban design, access and security

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
Disabled access

The submitted plans indicate a level access would be achieved and no accessibility issues
are raised.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate. The Council's Landscape Officer has confirmed that in the event of an
approvable scheme, landscaping conditions could be imposed to secure appropriate
landscaping details in accordance with Policy BE38.

Sustainable waste management

In the event of an approvable scheme, conditions could be imposed to secure details of
sustainable waste management.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

The comments are addressed within the report.
Planning obligations

CIL

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

The scheme would be CIL liable. Presently calculated the amoiunts would be as follows;
LBH CIL £13,173.73
London Mayoral CIL £5,158.18

Total CIL £18,331.91
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

No other issues raised.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 80



development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 81



10. CONCLUSION

The proposed two storey side extension, by virtue of its siting, size, scale and design,
including the lack of a set back from the front at all levels in a prominent corner location,
and siting in close proximity to the side boundary, would fail to appear as a subordinate
addition and would thus be detrimental to the appearance of the original house, the
character, appearance and symmetry of the pair of semi-detached houses of which it
forms a part and the visual amenities of the street scene and the wider area. Furthermore,
the proposal fails to provide amenity space of sufficient size and quality commensurate to
the size and layout of the said units and also fails to provide sufficient off street parking
provision which meets the council's approved parking standards to service the proposed
dwellings.

Accordingly, the application is recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 82



oo CUFTON GaRpENg o

PR )
— |

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Site Address:

Site boundary

28 Oakdene Road

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

i ion 47 of th . . .
Serv'c.es pursu.am to section 47 of the Planning Application Ref: Scale:
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act). 4247/APP/2018/1451 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database J 2018
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey une
O s Central & Sopidfe 83




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address LAND FORMING PART OF 84 CHURCH ROAD HAYES
Development: Two storey, 2-bed, detached dwelling with associated parking and amenity
space

LBH Ref Nos: 72944/APP/2018/1225

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement
AC/8419/2018/A
Date Plans Received: 22/03/2018 Date(s) of Amendment(s):

Date Application Valid: 19/04/2018
1. SUMMARY

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey, 2-bed,
detached dwelling with associated parking and amenity space. The application is a re-
submission of a similar application recently refused. Whilst the revised scheme would
provide an acceptable level of floorspace to the future occupants of the property, it fails to
address the sub-standard outdoor amenity space provision. Furthermore the revised
application introduces concerns in terms of its visual impact given its proximity to the side
boundary. The application is recommended for refusal.

2. RECOMMENDATION
REFUSAL for the following reasons:

1 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal, by reason of its overall size and proximity to the side boundary, would result
in a closing of the visually open gap between it and the neighbouring properties at 15 and
16 Churchfield Close, giving rise to a cramped form of development, which would be
detrimental to the visual amenities of the street scene and the surrounding area generally.
The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November
2012), Policies BE13, BE19 and BE22 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007) and section 5.0 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility
Statement: Residential Layouts.

2 NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by virtue of its failure to provide amenity space of sufficient
size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of the said unit would result in an
over-development of the site detrimental to the residential amenity of future occupiers. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE19 and BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

INFORMATIVES

1 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 85



On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

2 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

3 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated
with alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

4 171 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Refusing)

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service.
We have however been unable to seek solutions to problems arising from the application
as the principal of the proposal is clearly contrary to our statutory policies and negotiation
could not overcome the reasons for refusal.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 86



5 174 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) (Refusing Consent)

This is a reminder that Under the terms of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended) and
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), should an application for
appeal be allowed, the proposed development would be deemed as 'chargeable
development' and therefore liable to pay the London Borough of Hillingdon Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and the Mayor of London's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).
This would be calculated in accordance with the London Borough of Hillingdon CIL
Charging Schedule 2014 and the Mayor of London's CIL Charging Schedule 2012.

For more information on CIL matters please visit the planning portal page at:
www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is land to the rear of 84 Church Road, which has its principal frontage
onto Churchfield Close. The site is partially the back garden of 84 Church Road and
partially an area of open space, which fronts Churchfield Close. The area of open space,
which was previously owned by the Council was not a usable public open space; more of
an area of vacant land in which a maturing tree was positioned.

The site has a large whitebeam tree to the front (due to be removed) and a number of trees
in the area which would form the garden to the proposed dwelling. There are no TPO or
Conservation Area designations affecting the site or constraining development.

Access to the site would be from Churchfield Close and there would be no access from
Church Road.

The site is located within an established residential area of Hayes.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey, 2-bed, detached
dwelling with associated parking and amenity space

3.3 Relevant Planning History
72944/APP/2017/2083 Land Forming Part Of 84 Church Road Hayes
Two storey, 2-bed detached dwelling with associated parking and amenity space.

Decision: 31-10-2017 Refused

72944/PRC/2017/220 Land Forming Part Of 84 Church Road Hayes

Two storey, 2 bed detached dwelling with associated parking and amenity space

Decision: 30-01-2018 OBJ

Comment on Relevant Planning History

72944/APP/2017/2083 - Two storey, 2-bed detached dwelling with associated parking and
amenity space was refused for the following reasons:

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 87



1. The proposal would provide an indoor living area of an unsatisfactory size and would
therefore give rise to a substandard form of living accommodation to the detriment of the
amenity of future occupiers. The proposal is thus contrary to Policy 3.5 and Table 3.3 of the
London Plan (2016), the Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March
2016), the Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March
2016) and the Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard (March
2015).

2. The proposed development, by virtue of its failure to provide amenity space of sufficient
size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of the said unit would result in an
over-development of the site detrimental to the residential amenity of future occupiers. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE19 and BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part

Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1l (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

5. Advertisement and Site Notice

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 88



5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees

The Townfield Tenants & Residents Association and 7 neighbouring properties were consulted by
letter dated 23.4.18 and a site notice was displayed to the front of the site which expired on 23.5.18.
A petition was received, which it was deemed had less than the required 20 valid signatures.
However, this petition objected to the proposal on the following grounds:

1. Parking will be an even bigger problem than it currently is;
2. Loss of the Whitebeam tree would be detrimental to amenity.

Officer Comment: The issues raised are covered in the relevant section of this report.

Ward Councillor: Requests that the application is reported to committee.

Internal Consultees
Landscape Officer:

The site was subject to an application in 2017, ref. 2017/2083, which was refused. There are also
trees/hedges along the rear boundary of the site which will need to be protected or replaced. The
front garden should provide at least 25% soft landscape in accordance with Hillingdon's design
guidance and saved policy BE38. If the application is to be approved, landscape conditions will be
required to ensure that the application satisfies policies BE23 and BE38.

RECOMMENDATION: No objection subject to conditions H10, RES8, RES9 (parts 1, 2 and 5) and
RES10.

EPU:

No objections to the application subject to construction informative.
7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

In order to establish the acceptability of the principle of developing this site for residential
purposes, it is necessary to take into account currently adopted planning policy and to a
lesser extent, emerging policy. Paragraph 7.29 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) suggests that backland development may be
acceptable in principle subject to being in accordance with all other policies, although
Policy H12 does resist proposals for tandem/backland development which may cause
undue disturbance or loss of privacy.

The London Plan (2016) provides guidance on how applications for development on garden
land should be treated within the London Region. The thrust of the guidance is that back
gardens can contribute to the objectives of a significant number of London Plan policies
and these matters should be taken into account when considering the principle of such
developments. Policy 3.5 of the London Plan supports development plan-led presumptions
against development on back gardens where locally justified by a sound local evidence
base.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 89



7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, November 2016 also provides
further guidance on the interpretation of existing policies within the London Plan as regards
garden development. Paragraph 1.2.44 advises that when considering proposals which
involve the loss of gardens, regard should be taken of the degree to which gardens
contribute to a community's' sense of place and quality of life (Policy 3.5), especially in
outer London where gardens are often a key component of an area's character (Policies
2.6 and 2.7). The contribution gardens make towards biodiversity also needs to be
considered (Policies 7.18 and 7.19) as does their role in mitigating flood risk (Policies 5.12
and 5.13). Gardens can also address the effects of climate change (Policies 5.9 - 5.11).

The NPPF (March 2012) at paragraph 53, advises that LPAs 'should consider the case for
setting out policies to resist inappropriate development of residential gardens, for example
where development would cause harm to the local area.’

The Council has adopted the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies (November
2012). Policy BE1 advises that new development, in addition to achieving a high quality of
design, should enhance the local distinctiveness of the area, contribute to community
cohesion and sense of place and make a positive contribution to the local area in terms of
layout, form, scale and materials and seek to protect the amenity of surrounding land and
buildings, particularly residential properties. Specifically, the policy advises that
development should not result in the inappropriate development of gardens and green
spaces that erode the character and biodiversity of suburban areas and increase flood risk.
Thus whilst taking into account site circumstances, there has been a general strengthening
of the presumption against residential development within rear gardens at national,
strategic and local level.

There is in general no objection to the principle of an intensification of use on existing
residential sites and it is considered that in this instance the loss of a proportion of the
back garden and a small area of open space in this location would not be detrimental to the
local context of the area. The proposed redevelopment of the private back garden would
not have an unacceptable detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the area.

In this respect the application would be consistent with Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13, BE19, BE22 and H12
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies
7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan, and guidance within HDAS.

However, this is also dependent upon compliance with all other relevant policy, which is
considered below.
Density of the proposed development

The density of the proposed development is considered acceptable subject to compliance
with all other relevant planning policies.
Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Not applicable to this application.
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the green belt

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The NPPF (2012) notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 90



context stating that 'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails
to take the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the
way it functions.'

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) requires that all new development
achieves a ‘'high quality of design in all new buildings, alterations and extensions'. In
addition, Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) acknowledges that
'development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene'. The emphasis placed on the impact of a development upon the
character of the surrounding area is further emphasised under Policy BE19 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012), which recognises that 'The Local Planning
Authority will seek to ensure that new development within residential areas complements or
improves the amenity and character of the area'. Paragraph 4.14 of the Residential Layouts
HDAS SPD specifies that developments should incorporate usable, attractively laid out and
private garden space conveniently located in relation to the property or properties it serves.
It should be of an appropriate size, having regard to the size of the dwelling and character
of the area. Paragraph 4.27 of the HDAS SPD gives advice that building lines within a new
development should relate to the street pattern of the surroundings whilst the height of the
development is best determined by reference to the proportions, siting and lines of
surrounding buildings.

The proposal fails to comply with the guidance contained within HDAS Residential Layouts
in that a gap of 1m would not be provided between the flank wall of the proposed dwelling
and the boundary with Numbers 15 and 16 Churchfield Close. The proposal, by reason of
its overall size and proximity to the side boundary, would result in a closing of the visually
open gap between it and the neighbouring properties at Numbers 15 and 16 Churchfield
Close, giving rise to a cramped form of development, which would be detrimental to the
visual amenities of the street scene and the surrounding area generally. The proposal is
therefore contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012), Policies
BE13, BE19 and BE22 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007) and section 5.0 of the Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement:
Residential Layouts.
7.08 Impact on neighbours

Policies BE20, BE21, BE 22 and BE24 seek to ensure that the design of extensions does
not have unacceptable impacts on the living conditions at neighbouring properties. The
policies are supported by the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential
Extensions.

The separating distance between facing windows at first floor level at 84 Church Road and
the proposed dwelling is shown on the plans to be 21 m, so is compliant with the minimum
requirement in paragraph 4.9 of the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement:
Residential Layouts (HDAS).

When the 45 degree rule is applied to the neighbouring properties on Churchfield Close,
the new dwelling result in no impacts on daylight, sunlight, overshadowing or overbearing
impact as the rear elevation of the new dwelling would be on the same line as the existing
ones.

Impacts on neighbours are therefore considered to be acceptable.
7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 91



7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The
Mayor of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan.

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. A two bedroom (3 person)
house is required to provide an internal floor area of 70 sg.m which the proposal complies
with. Furthermore the habitable rooms would enjoy a satisfactory outlook in accordance
with the requirements of Policy 3.5 of the London Plan (2016).

Paragraph 4.15 of the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts sets out the requirement for amenity space provision for new
developments and states that for a 2 bedroom house a minimum of 60 sg.m should be
provided. The plans state that the rear garden is 57 sg.m, however when measured it
amounts to 51 sg.m (to include the area to the side) which falls well below the requirement
and it is considered that the proposal would result in an over-development of the site
detrimental to the residential amenity of future occupiers. The proposal is therefore
contrary to Policies BE19 and BE23 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
considers whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms
of the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway
or pedestrian safety. Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) seeks to ensure that all development is in accordance with the Council's
adopted Car Parking Standards.

The proposed development includes 2 off-road car parking spaces to serve the new
dwelling. This level of parking is considered acceptable and is consistent with Policy AM14.
Officers have also considered the concerns raised by residents with regard to loss of on-
street parking and the Highway engineer does not consider that the impact would be such
to substantiate a reason for refusal which could be upheld at appeal.

As such, the proposals, subject to the imposition of suitable conditions are deemed to
accord with planning policy.
Urban design, access and security

The issues are addressed in the sections above.
Disabled access

No accessibility issues are raised.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape
features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is
appropriate.It is proposed to remove the single Whitebeam tree fronting Churchfield Close
to facilitate the development. The Landscape Officer has confirmed that it was agreed that
the Whitebeam can be removed subject to the provision of replacement planting. The

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 92



7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

proposed landscape plan provides indicative details of replacement planting only. The
Landscape Officer also considers that suitable conditions should be imposed on any grant
of planning permission to secure a suitable landscaping scheme. Subject to the imposition
of such a condition, the scheme is considered to accord with policies BE13 and BE38.
Sustainable waste management

Bin stores are shown on the submitted plans and could be secured by way of condition in
the event of an approvable scheme.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

No comments received.
Planning obligations

CIL

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for residential developments is £95 per square metre of additional
floorspace. This is in addition to the Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

The scheme wpould be CIL liable. Presently calculated the amounts would be as follows;
LBH CIL £8,907.95
London Mayoral CIL £3,487.91

Total CIL £12,395.86
Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
Other Issues

None.

Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 93



the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey, 2-bed, detached
dwelling with associated parking and amenity space. The application is a re-submission of
a similar application recently refused. Whilst the revised scheme would provide an
acceptable level of floorspace to the future occupants of the property, it fails to address the
sub-standard outdoor amenity space provision. Furthermore the revised application
introduces concerns in terms of its visual impact given its proximity to the side boundary.
The application is recommended for refusal.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 94



11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)

The London Plan (2016)

The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)

Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions

Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Nicola Taplin Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 95



"CHAMBERLAIN cLoE

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Land Forming Part of
84 Church Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72944/APP/2018/1225 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & SopHge 96 June 2018

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Item 12

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address LESSER BARN HUBBARDS CLOSE HILLINGDON

Development: Installation of two additional first floor windows to east (front) elevation, minor
realignment of ground floor openings and increase in roof height
(Amendments to Listed Building Consent ref: 5971/APP/2013/1839, dated
31/05/2017 (Dismantling of existing farm outbuilding and reconstruction to
accord with planning application Ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922 - Rebuilding of
existing barn with internal and external alterations to create two three-
bedroom dwellings with associated parking and landscaping

LBH Ref Nos: 5971/APP/2017/4190

Drawing Nos: 16091/1001 Rev P4 Proposed Elevations
16092/SD001 Rev P2 Sprocket Eaves Detail
Heritage Statement Addendum November 2017
2688-15/MP Site Location Plan & Site Block Plan
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 1
Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (1)
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 1
Review of Timber Condition and Constructional Detailing
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 2
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 3
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 4
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 5
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 6
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - West Elevation
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - East Elevation
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 2
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 3
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 4
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 5
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 6
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - West Elevation
External View
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - East Elevation
External View
Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (5)
Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (2)
Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (3)

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 97



Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (4)

Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (6)

Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 1

Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 3

Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 4

Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 2
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 3
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 4
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 5
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 6
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - East Elevation
External View

Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - West Elevation
External View

16091/1002 Rev P4 Proposed Floor Plans

Email from Agent dated 16-02-18

16092/LB001 Rev P1 Cross Sections

Letter from MCurdy dated 31st January 2018

Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 1

Date Plans Received: 20/11/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 24/04/2018

Date Application Valid: 20/11/2017 16/02/2018

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the western side of Hubbards Close and comprises of the
Hubbards Farm Lesser Barn. 42-53 Hubbards Close and associated parking is located
north-west of the site. An area of parking is located on the southern boundary while the
Grade II Listed Hubbards Farm Greater Barn is located on the opposite side of Hubbards
Close. The application site is located within an area of Green Belt.

1.2 Proposed Scheme

Listed Building Consent is sought for the installation of two additional first floor windows to
the east (front) elevation, minor realignment of ground floor openings and an increase in the
roof height. (Amendments to Listed Building Consent ref: 5971/APP/2013/1839, dated
31/05/2017 (Dismantling of existing farm outbuilding and reconstruction to accord with
planning application ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922 (Rebuilding of existing barn with internal and
external alterations to create two three-bedroom dwellings with associated parking and
landscaping)

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 98



1.3 Relevant Planning History
5971/AC/98/2044 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Erection of 34 houses and 15 flats to include 12 affordable housing units (6 houses and 6 flats)
and conversion of existing Listed Barn and Stable Block to 3 units of residential accommaodation,
together with associated access, parking for 80 cars and landscaping

Decision Date: 28-04-2000 Approved Appeal:

5971/AD/99/2083 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Erection of 38 houses and 3 flats and conversion of a listed building and a stable block to
residential use including the provision of associated access, car parking and landscaping
(duplicate application)

Decision Date: 20-07-2000 Withdrawn Appeal:
5971/APP/2000/1065 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF SITE SURVEY IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 9 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF. 5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15
FLATS AND CONVERSION OF EXISTING LISTED BARN AND STABLE BLOCK WITH
ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 02-07-2001 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2000/1203 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF MATERIALS INCOMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 16 OF PLANNING PERMISSION
REF. 5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15 FLATS TO
INCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE UNITS, CONVERSION OF EXISTING LISTED BARN AND STABLE
BLOCK, TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 04-12-2000 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2000/1275 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF EXTERNAL TIMBER WORK IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 19 OF
PLANNING PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES
AND 15 FLATS TO INCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE UNITS AND CONVERSION OF LISTED BARN
AND STABLE BLOCK, TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND
LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 04-12-2000 Approved Appeal:

5971/APP/2000/1276 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF BOUNDARY FENCING IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 18 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15
FLATSTOINCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS AND CONVERSION OF LISTED BARN
AND STABLE BLOCK TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND
LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 12-02-2004 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2000/1341 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF TREE SURVEY AND PROTECTIVE FENCING IN COMPLIANCE WITH
CONDITIONS 2 AND 4 OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF. 5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00;
ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15 FLATS TO INCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE UNITS AND
CONVERSION OF EXISTING LISTED BARN AND STABLE BLOCK TOGETHER WITH
ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 16-08-2000 Approved Appeal:

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 99



5971/APP/2000/1387 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 7 OF
PLANNING PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES
AND 15 FLATS AND CONVERSION OF LISTED BARN AND STABLE BLOCK

Decision Date: 17-01-2002 NFA Appeal:

5971/APP/2000/1613 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF LANDSCAPING SCHEME IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 5 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF 5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15
FLATS AND CONVERSION OF EXISTING LISTED BARN AND STABLE BLOCK WITH
ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 17-01-2002 NFA Appeal:

5971/APP/2000/2022 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF NOISE PROTECTION SCHEME IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 17 OF
PLANNING PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES
AND 15 FLATS TO INCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS (6 HOUSES AND 6 FLATS)
AND CONVERSION OF EXISTING LISTED BARN AND STABLE BLOCK TO 3 UNITS OF
RESIDENTIALACCOMMODATION, TOGETHERWITHASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKINGFOR
80 CARS AND LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 18-09-2000 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2000/2440 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
DETAILS OF BIN STORAGE IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 10 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15
FLATS TO INCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS
Decision Date: 09-05-2001 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2000/2701 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

VARIATION OF CONDITION 3(TO ALLOW THE REMOVAL OF ACONIFERHEDGE ADJOINING
DALEHAM DRIVE) OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00;
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

Decision Date: 03-10-2001 NFA Appeal:
5971/APP/2001/1868 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS AND ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY REAR
EXTENSION TO ENABLE CONVERSION OF BUILDING TO TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS
(APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision Date: 19-12-2001 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2001/1976 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS
Decision Date: 19-12-2001 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2001/572 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE A FOUR- BEDROOM RESIDENTIAL UNIT, GROUND
AND FIRST FLOOR OFFICES, ASSOCIATED PARKING AND REPOSITIONING OF GRAIN
STORE (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision Date: 19-12-2001 Approved Appeal:

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 100



5971/APP/2001/573 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIALUNITS (APPLICATION FORLISTED
BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision Date: 06-09-2001 Withdrawn Appeal:
5971/APP/2001/92 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

COVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE AFOUR-BEDROOM RESIDENTIAL UNIT, GROUND AND
FIRST FLOOR OFFICES, ASSOCIATED PARKING AND REPOSITIONING OF GRAIN STORE

Decision Date: 19-12-2001 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2001/93 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS AND ASSOCIATED
PARKING
Decision Date: 06-09-2001 Withdrawn Appeal:
5971/APP/2003/162 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton F

CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED
PARKING AND ACCESS
Decision Date: 27-08-2003 Withdrawn Appeal:
5971/APP/2003/164 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton F
CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS INVOLVING REPAIR AND
REFURBISHMENT OF EXISTING BARN AND ASSOCIATED PARKING AND ACCESS
(APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)
Decision Date: 27-08-2003 Withdrawn Appeal:
5971/APP/2003/2976 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton F

CONVERSION OF BARN TO TWO-BEDROOM DWELLING INVOLVING INTERNAL AND
EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING BARN AND ERECTION OF DETACHED
OUTBUILDING TO REAR WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 09-11-2004 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2003/2978 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton F

CONVERSION OF BARN TO TWO-BEDROOM DWELLING INVOLVING AND EXTERNAL
ALTERATIONSTO EXISTING BARNAND ERECTION OF DETACHED OUTBUILDING TO REAR
WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING AND LANDSCAPING (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING

CONSENT)
Decision Date: 09-11-2004 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2003/2979 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

CONVERSION OF BARN AND OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 2 FOUR-BEDROOM AND 1 TWO-
BEDROOM DWELLINGS INVOLVING ALTERATION TO EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN
EXTENSION TO OUTBUILDING AND RESITING OF DETACHED GRANARY BUILDING,
ASSOCIATED PARKING, ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 24-11-2004 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2003/2980 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

CONVERSION OF BARN AND OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 2 FOUR-BEDROOM AND 1 TWO-
BEDROOM DWELLINGS INVOLVING ALTERATION TO EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 101



EXTENSION TO OUTBUILDING AND RESITING OF DETACHED GRANARY BUILDING,
ASSOCIATED PARKING, ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING (APPLICATION FOR LISTED
BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision Date: 24-11-2004 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2003/592 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE THREE RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED
PARKING AND ACCESS

Decision Date: 27-08-2003 Withdrawn Appeal:
5971/APP/2003/593 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE THREE RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED
PARKING AND ACCESS (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision Date: 27-08-2003 Withdrawn Appeal:
5971/APP/2005/2813 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

DETAILS IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 2, 3, 7, 9, 10 AND 13 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF.5971/APP/2003/2979 DATED 24/11/2004: CONVERSION OF BARN AND
OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 2 FOUR-BEDROOM AND 1 TWO- BEDROOM DWELLINGS
INVOLVING ALTERATION TO EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN EXTENSION TO
OUTBUILDINGANDRESITINGOFDETACHEDGRANARY BUILDING,ASSOCIATEDPARKING,
ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 13-07-2009 NFA Appeal:
5971/APP/2006/1780 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton F

(A)DETAILSOF MATERIALS, SAFEGUARD OF THE SPECIALARCHITECTURAL/HISTORICAL
INTEREST AND ROOF VENTILATION; IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 2, 3 AND 10 OF
PLANNING PERMISSION REF: 5971/APP/2003/2978 DATED 18-11-2004; CONVERSION OF
BARN TO TWO-BEDROOM DWELLING INVOLVING INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL
ALTERATIONSTO EXISTING BARNAND ERECTION OF DETACHED OUTBUILDING TO REAR
WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING AND LANDSCAPING (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING
CONSENT)

(B) DETAILS OF MATERIALS, SITE SURVEY PLAN, LANDSCAPING AND MAINTENANCE OF
LANDSCAPING; IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 2, 7, 8 AND 10 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF: 5971/APP/2003/2976 DATED 19-11-2004; CONVERSION OF BARN TO
TWO-BEDROOM DWELLING INVOLVING INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL ALTERNATIONS TO
EXISTING BARN AND ERECTION OF DETACHED OUTBUILDING TO REAR WITH
ASSOCIATED PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 13-07-2009 NFA Appeal:
5971/APP/2006/2056 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton F

DETAILS OF PROGRAMME OF ARCHAEOLOGIGAL WORK IN COMPLIANCE WITH
CONDITION 3 OF LISTED BUILDING CONSENT GRANTED ON THE 19/11/04 DATED
09/11/2004: CONVERSION OF BARN TO A TWO-BEDROOM DWELLING (APPLICATION FOR
LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 102



Decision Date: 13-07-2009 NFA Appeal:
5971/APP/2006/475 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

CREATION OF TWO ADDITIONAL ONE- BEDROOM SELF-CONTAINED FLATS IN
ROOFSPACE, CREATING SECOND FLOOR APARTMENTS; AMENDMENT TO PLANNING
PERMISSION REF.5971/APP/2003/2979 DATED 24/11/2005: CONVERSION OF BARN AND
OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 2 FOUR-BEDROOM AND ONE TWO-BEDROOM DWELLINGS
INVOLVING ALTERATION TO EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN EXTENSION TO
OUTBUILDINGANDRESITINGOFDETACHEDGRANARY BUILDING,ASSOCIATEDPARKING,
ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING.

Decision Date: 12-05-2009 NFA Appeal:

5971/APP/2006/476 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

CREATION OF TWO ADDITIONAL ONE- BEDROOM SELF-CONTAINED FLATS IN UPPER
ROOFSPACE, CREATING SECOND FLOOR APARTMENTS; AMENDMENT TO PLANNING
PERMISSION REF.5971/APP/2003/2979 DATED 24/11/2004: CONVERSION OF BARN AND
OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 2 FOUR-BEDROOM AND 1 TWO-BEDROOM DWELLINGS
INVOLVING ALTERATION TO EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN EXTENSION TO
OUTBUILDINGANDRESITINGOFDETACHEDGRANARY BUILDING,ASSOCIATEDPARKING,
ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT).
Decision Date: 12-05-2009 NFA Appeal:
5971/APP/2006/578 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton
DETAILS IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 2, 3,7,9 AND 10 OF PLANNING PERMISSION
REF. 5971/APP/2005/2813.
Decision Date: 23-05-2006 NFA Appeal:
5971/APP/2007/2137 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

CONVERSION OF MAIN BARN AND OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 1, THREE-BEDROOM, 2,
TWO-BEDROOM AND 2, ONE-BEDROOM DWELLING UNITS INVOLVING ALTERATIONS TO
EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN EXTENSION TO OUTBUILDING AND RE-SITING OF
DETACHED GRANARY BUILDING, TOGETHERWITHASSOCIATED PARKING, ACCESS AND
LANDSCAPING
Decision Date: 15-01-2008 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2007/2146 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton R

CONVERSION OF LESSER BARN TO 2 THREE-BEDROOM DWELLINGS INVOLVING
INTERNALANDEXTERNALALTERATIONSTOEXISTINGBARNWITHASSOCIATEDPARKING
AND LANDSCAPING

Decision Date: 26-02-2008 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2007/2148 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

Conversion of main barn, with single storey extension to form 1 three-bedroom dwelling, 2 two-
bedroom dwellings and 2 one-bedroom dwellings, and provision of 6 parking spaces within
courtyard (Application for Listed Building Consent).

Decision Date: 15-01-2008 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2007/2177 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton F
CONVERSION OF BARN TO TWO THREE BEDROOM DWELLINGS INVOLVING INTERNAL

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 103



AND EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING BARN WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING AND
LANDSCAPING (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)
Decision Date: 26-02-2008 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2011/2438 Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon
Conversion of lesser barn to two three-bedroom dwellings involving internal and external alterations
to existing barn with associated parking and landscaping.
Decision Date: 18-04-2012 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2011/2439 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

Conversion of main barn and outbuilding to create 1 three-bedroom, 2 two-bedroom and 2 one-
bedroom dwelling units, involving alterations to existing barn, erection of an extension to
outbuilding and re-siting of detached granary building together with associated access, parking
and landscaping.

Decision Date: 18-04-2012 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2012/121 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

Conversion of main barn and outbuilding to create 1 three-bedroom, 2 two-bedroom and 2 one
bedroom dwelling units, involving alterations to existing barn, erection of an extension to
outbuilding and re-siting of detached granary building together with associated access, parking
and landscaping (Listed Building Consent)

Decision Date: 18-04-2012 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2012/122 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton F

Conversion of Lesser barn to two 3-bedroom dwellings, involving internal and external alterations
to existing barn, with associated parking and landscaping (Application for Listed Building

Consent).
Decision Date: 18-04-2012 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2013/1839 The Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Dismantling of existing farm outbuilding and reconstruction to accord with planning application ref:
5971/APP/2016/3922 (Rebuilding of existing barn with internal and external alterations to create
two three-bedroom dwellings with associated parking and landscaping) (Application for Listed
Building Consent).

Decision Date: 21-05-2015 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2013/2831 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

Dismantling and rebuilding of existing barn and extension to provide 7 self contained flats with
associated external works and landscaping

Decision Date: 21-05-2015 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2014/1168 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton

Listed Building Consent for the dismantling and rebuilding of existing barn and extension to
provide 7 self contained flats.

Decision Date: 21-05-2015 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2016/3922 Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 104



Rebuilding of existing barn with internal and external alterations to create two three-bedroom
dwellings with associated parking and landscaping

Decision Date: 31-05-2017 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2017/2702 Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Details pursuant to conditions 8 (existing trees survey), 9 (landscaping) and 13 (communal
garden) of planning permission ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922, dated 31-05-17 (Rebuilding of existing
barn with internal and external alterations to create two three bedroom dwellings with associated
parking and landscaping)

Decision Date: 18-09-2017 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2017/3434 Greater And Lesser Barns Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Details pursuant to condition 4 (Written Scheme of Investigation) of planning permission Ref:
5971/APP/2016/3922 (Lesser Barn - two three-bedroom dwellings), condition 18 of planning
permission ref: 5971/APP/2013/2831 (Greater Barn - 7 self contained flats) and condition 9 of
Listed Building Consent Refs: 5971/APP/2013/1839 (Lesser Barn - two three-bedroom dwellings)
and 5971/APP/2014/1168 (Greater Barn - 7 self contained flats), all dated 31/05/2017

Decision Date: 16-10-2017 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2017/3477 Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Details pursuant to conditions 5 (details of timber repairs/schedule of salvaged materials) and 6
(adjustments to final drawings to incorporate repaired timbers) of Listed Building Consent ref:
5971/APP/2013/1839 dated 31/05/2017 (Dismantling of existing farm outbuilding and
reconstruction to accord with planning application ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922 (Rebuilding of
existing barn with internal and external alterations to create two three-bedroom dwellings with
associated parking and landscaping)

Decision Date: 08-05-2018 Approved Appeal:
5971/APP/2017/3478 Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Variation of Condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922, dated
31/05/2017 (Rebuilding of existing barn with internal and external alterations to create two three-
bedroom dwellings with associated parking and landscaping) for two additional first floor windows
to east (front) elevation, minor realignment of ground floor openings and increase in roof height

Decision Date: Appeal:
5971/G/80/0623 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
Change of use of buildings for storage & process. to warehouse with Class X of T & C planning
order.
Decision Date: 24-05-1983 Withdrawn Appeal:
5971/H/80/1807 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
Continued use of building AB & C, change of use of D to warehouse.
Decision Date: 25-11-1982 Approved Appeal:
5971/J3/82/0988 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Removal of cond. 5 from p/p 5971A/4169 & 5971D/ 4975 relating to use of buildings.
Decision Date: 19-08-1983 NFA Appeal:

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 105



5971/K/84/1360 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Erection of terrapin for retail & warehousing. use of gardens for display of sheds,additional parki

Decision Date: 27-02-1985 Refused Appeal:17-DEC-01  In Abeyance
5971/M/86/0933 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
Listed building consent to dev/alter (P)
Decision Date: 22-07-1986 Approved Appeal:
5971/N/87/1260 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
Use for retail & wholesale agri. & horti. merchant bus.
Decision Date: 24-07-1987 Refused Appeal:17-DEC-01  In Abeyance
5971/P/87/1261 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
Use for retail & wholesale agri. & horti. merchant bus. (App for L.B.C.)
Decision Date: 24-07-1987 Refused Appeal:17-DEC-01  In Abeyance
5971/PRC/2015/172 Greater Barn And Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

To discuss S106 bond requirements and progression of planning application refs:
5971/APP/2013/1839 (Rebuilding of the Lesser Barn to provide 2 no. semi-detached houses) and
5971/APP/2013/2831 & 5971/APP/2014/1168 (Rebuilding of the Greater Barn to provide 7 no. new
flats)

Decision Date: 04-05-2017 PRM Appeal:
5971/PRE/2001/54 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

TP PRE CORRES: CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS (RET IN
FULL AS NEED LETTER OF WITHDRAWAL RE 5971/APP/2001/93)

Decision Date: Appeal:
5971/X/94/1305 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
Conversion of barn and stable into residential units (Application for Listed Building Consent)
Decision Date: 12-06-1998 Approved Appeal:
5971/Y/94/1306 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Erection of 17 houses and 34 flats and conversion of existing listed building and stable block to
residential use incorporating provision of 83 parking spaces, landscaping and demolition of
existing warehouse, office building and associated outbuildings

Decision Date: 23-03-1998 Approved Appeal:
Comment on Planning History

The Grade Il Listed Lesser Barn was previously used as stables which ceased use in
2000. Since this time the Lesser Barn became increasingly derelict and has now collapsed
and has been dismantled by a specialist contractor, recorded and stored on site for
reinstatement.

2. Advertisement and Site Notice
2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

2.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 106



Comments on Public Consultations
EXTERNAL:

Historic England:

On the basis of the information provided, we do not consider that it is necessary for this
application to be notified to Historic England under the relevant statutory provisions.

INTERNAL
Conservation Officer:

This is an application to vary the original approval. It includes the restored windows to the
first floor front, changes to the brickwork on the street elevation, changes to the proportions
of the windows on all elevations, an increase in the height of the building by approx 1m, a
slight reduction in length of the building and changes to the proportions of the rooflights.

The alteration of the first floor front windows is acceptable in principle; however, the other
changes to the elevations are generally not. The street elevation should include the
detailing as previously approved, or similar, i.e. with narrow "barn like" windows, brick
arches and door recesses. Otherwise the resulting street elevation would be extremely
bland given the framing will be behind the brickwork. If the windows need to open, then it
would be worth considering the inclusion of this detail, i.e. with opening top lights, at this
stage. It might be possible to include slightly wider windows on the rear timber clad
elevation of the outshot; however, the rooflights should be traditional conservation rooflights
with a central glazing bar and "elongated" proportions. The change in height of the building
is a concern, and this has not been explained. It is not clear how the retained framing can
be adapted to accord with this.

Officer comments: The applicant has re-instated the previously approved detailing on the
street elevation and has provided additional information in regards to the increase in roof

height and alterations to the timber frame which is considered to address the Conservation
Officer's concerns.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-
Part 1 Policies:

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

BES8 Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings
BE9 Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions
BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

NPPF7 NPPF - Requiring good design

NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 107



Policy BES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
will not permit applications to alter or extend Listed Buildings where damage may be
caused to the historic structure. External and internal alternations should harmonise with
their surroundings. Policy BE10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) will not grant permission for proposals that are detrimental to the
setting of the Listed Building.

The Grade Il Listed Lesser Barn was previously used as stables which ceased use in
2000. Since this time the Lesser Barn became increasingly derelict, eventually collapsing;
the barn has been dismantled by a specialist contractor, recorded and stored on site for
reinstatement; in January 2017 the specialist contractor carried out an updated survey to
assess the condition of the timber frame at the time of the most recent planning
application.

Since the January 2017 survey, the specialist contractor has carried out further work to
fully assess the timber conditions and to record the timber sizes, along with setting out and
reviewing where timbers can be salvaged, and repaired for reuse. Following on from this
assessment a detailed proposed Oak timber frame construction has been put together for
reinstatement on site.

During the work undertaken by the specialist contractor, it became apparent that there
were a number of first floor window openings on the east wall (front of the barn) which had
been concealed by masonry when the construction of the building had first been appraised
as a standing building in 2006. As a result, the current application seeks Listed Building
Consent for the installation of two additional first floor windows to the east (front) elevation.
In addition, the current application also proposes minor realignment of ground floor
openings to reflect the structural reconstruction of the timber frame as shown on the
submitted reports and plans of the timber conditions survey. The proposal also includes an
increase in the roof height due to the need to accommodate workable floor to ceiling
heights at first floor and to fully reflect the timber frame detail.

The Conservation Officer has no objection to the proposed alterations to the proposed
dwellings; the two additional windows proposed on the front (east) elevation of the property,
the realignment of the ground floor openings and the proposed increase in the roof height
are considered to be acceptable and would not have a detrimental impact on the character,
appearance and setting of the Grade Il Listed Barn.

The proposed scheme is considered to comply with Policies BE8 and BE10 of the

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012). It is therefore
recommended that Listed Building Consent is granted.

6. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
grant planning permission, subject to to the relevant conditions set out below:

A)(1) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or other
appropriate legislation to secure:

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 108



a) A Deed of Variation to the previously secured legal agreement under Listed
Building Consent ref: 5971/APP/2013/1839. This legal agreement previously
secured:

1. The Lesser Barn shall be returned to the site and reinstated as part of the
works within a specified time frame.

B. That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

C. If the Legal Agreement has not been finalised within 3 months, under the
discretion of the Head of Planning and Enforcement, the application is refused
under delegated powers on the basis that the applicant has failed to return and
reinstate The Lesser Barn.

D. That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:

1 LB1 Time Limit (3 years) - Listed Building Consent

The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the
date of this consent.

REASON

To comply with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.

2 LB4 Storage of salvaged items

Salvaged items approved for re-use as part of this consent shall be securely stored on
site (or subject to the Local Planning Authority's agreement, elsewhere) until employed
again and Council officers shall be allowed to inspect them.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with Policy BE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)

3 LB9 Samples of materials

Samples of all materials and finishes to be used for all external surfaces of the building,
including bricks, mortar mix, pointing style and roof materials, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant part of the work is
begun. A sample panel of brickwork is to be agreed on site.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in
accordance with Policy BES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012)

4 LB11 Further Details (Listed Buildings)

Detailed drawings or samples of materials, as appropriate, in respect of the following shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant
part of the work is begun:

(a) New frame elements, including roof construction

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 109



(b) Full constructional details and methodology for reconstruction, including details of floor
levels and fixing of new to old fabric

(c) Insulation of the walls and roof

(d) Footings and new plinth

(e) Downpipes, gutters and hoppers

(f) Type and location of flues, vents and SVPs

(9) All new roof lights, windows, external doors, cills and thresholds (to include materials,
design and construction)

(h) Internal joinery

(i) Revised eaves detalil

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with Policy BE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)

5 NONSC Details of repair & Schedule of salvaged materials

Prior to the relevant part of the work commencing, full details of the repair to the existing
timber frames to the barn and a schedule of salvaged materials for reuse with their
proposed locations, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with Policy BE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)

6 NONSC Repaired frames and studding without alteration

Prior to the relevant part of the work commencing, adjustments to final drawings
(elevations/floor plans and cross sections) to incorporate the repaired frames and
studding without alteration shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

REASON

To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with Policy BE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012)

7 NONSC Partition construction
All new partitions are to be scribed around original features and frame elements.

REASON
To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance
with Policy BE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November

2012)
INFORMATIVES
1 The decision to GRANT Listed Building Consent has been taken having regard to

all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 110



life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
(prohibition of discrimination).

2 The decision to GRANT Listed Building Consent has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012)
set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national

guidance.
BES8 Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings
BE9 Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building
NPPF7  NPPF - Requiring good design
NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

3 You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any
deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local Planning
Authority.

4 Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall
only be carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday
and between the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works
shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with
British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's
Best Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction
and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under
Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above,
and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

Contact Officer: Katherine Mills Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 111



WEST DRAYTON ROAD

it

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Greater & Lesser Barn

LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
5971/APP/2017/4190 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
June 2018

Central & Seatfe 112

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Iltem 13

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address LESSER BARN HUBBARDS CLOSE HILLINGDON

Development: Variation of Condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission ref:
5971/APP/2016/3922, dated 31/05/2017 (Rebuilding of existing barn with
internal and external alterations to create two three-bedroom dwellings with
associated parking and landscaping) for two additional first floor windows to
east (front) elevation, minor realignment of ground floor openings and
increase in roof height

LBH Ref Nos: 5971/APP/2017/3478

Drawing Nos: Letter from MCurdy dated 31st January 201¢
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - East Elevation
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - West Elevation
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 6
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 1
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 5
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 4
Review of Timber Condition and Constructional Detailing
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 3
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 2
Proposed Oak Timber Frame Reconstruction - Amendments To Cross
Frame Details - Cross Frame 1
16091/1001 Rev P4 Proposed Elevations
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 2
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 3
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 4
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 5
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - Cross Frame 6
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - West Elevation
External View
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (January 2017) - East Elevatior
External View
16092/SD001 Rev P2 Sprocket Eaves Detail
2688 - 03/MP Rev R3 Approved Proposed Ground Floor Plan:
2688 - 04/MP Rev R3 Approved Proposed First Floor Plans
2688 - 14/MP Rev R3 Approved Proposed Elevations
Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (3)
Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (1)
Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (2)

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 113



Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (4)

Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (5)

Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 6 (6)

Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 1

Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 3

Workshop Survey/Record of Existing Timber Sizes and Setting Out (May
2017) - Cross Frame 4

1Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 1
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 2
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 3
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 4
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 5
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - Cross Frame 6
Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - East Elevation
External View

Workshop Survey/Timber Condition Report (June 2017) - West Elevation
External View

Email from Agent dated 16-02-18

16091/1002 Rev P4 Proposed Floor Plans

16092/LB001 Rev P1 Cross Sections

Date Plans Received: 25/09/2017 Date(s) of Amendment(s): 20/11/2017
Date Application Valid: 25/09/2017 24/04/2018
16/02/2018
29/09/2017

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the variation of Condition 2 (approved plans) of planning
permission ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922, dated 31/05/2017, for the rebuilding of an existing
barn with internal and external alterations to create two three-bedroom dwellings with
associated parking and landscaping. The amendments would allow for two additional first
floor windows to the east (front) elevation, minor realignment of ground floor openings and
increase in the roof height.

The proposed alterations to the rebuilt Grade Il Listed Barn are considered to be
acceptable and would not have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and
setting of the Grade Il Listed Barn or to the character and appearance of the street scene
and surrounding area. The proposal would not result in cause harm to the residential
amenity of the area.

The proposed alterations to the rebuilt Grade Il Listed Barn would comply with Policies
BES8, BE10, BE13 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012). The application is therefore recommended for approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 114



That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to
grant planning permission subject to the relevant conditions set out below:

A)(1) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or other
appropriate legislation to secure:

a) A Deed of Variation to the previously secured legal agreement under planning
ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922. This legal agreement previously secured:

1. The Lesser Barn shall be returned to the site and reinstated as part of the
works within a specified time frame.

B. That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

C. If the Legal Agreement has not been finalised within 3 months, under the
discretion of the Head of Planning and Enforcement, the application is refused
under delegated powers on the basis that the applicant has failed to return and
reinstate The Lesser Barn.

D. That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:

1 T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2 RES4 Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, 16092/001, 2688-05/MP Reuv.
R1, 2688-06/MP Rev. R1, 2688-07/MP, 2688-08/MP Rev. R1, 2688-09/MP, 2688-10/MP,
2688-11/MP Rev. R1, 2688-12/MP, 2688-13/MP Rev. R1, 2688-15/MP, 2688-18, 2688-19,
2688-20, 2688-21, 2688-22, 2688-23, 2688-24, 16091/1002 Rev. P4, 16092/LB001 Rev.
P1, 16091/1001 Rev. P4 and 16092/SD001 Rev. P2, and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

3 M1 Details/Samples to be Submitted

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012).

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 115



4 AR3 Sites of Archaeological Interest - scheme of investigation

No development approved by this permission shall be carried out otherwise than in
accordance with those details of the written scheme of investigation approved via planning
permission ref: 5971/APP/2017/3434, dated 16-10-2017.

REASON

The site is of archaeological interest and it is considered that all evidence of the remains
should be recorded in accordance with Policy BE3 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

5 RES12 No additional windows or doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be constructed
in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 42 and 43 Hubbards
Close.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

6 RES13 Obscure Glazing

The rooflights facing 42 and 43 Hubbards Close shall be glazed with permanently
obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres taken from internal finished
floor level for so long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7 RES14 Outbuildings, extensions and roof alterations

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification); no garage(s), shed(s) or other outbuilding(s), nor extension or roof
alteration to any dwellinghouse(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific
permission from the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

To protect the character and appearance of the area and amenity of residential occupiers
in accordance with policies BE13, BE21, BE23 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

8 TL1 Existing Trees - Survey

No development approved by this permission shall be carried out otherwise than in
accordance with those details of tree survey and tree protection measures approved via
planning permission ref: 5971/APP/2017/2702, dated 18-09-2017.

REASON

To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the amenity value of existing trees,
hedges and shrubs and the impact of the proposed development on them and to ensure
that the development conforms with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 116



9 RES9 Landscaping (including refuse/cycle storage)

No development approved by this permission shall be carried out otherwise than in
accordance with those details of landscaping approved via planning permission ref:
5971/APP/2017/2702, dated 18-09-2017.

REASON

To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13, BE38 and
AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and
Policy 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan.

10 H7 Parking Arrangements (Residential)

The parking areas (including where appropriate, the marking out of parking spaces)
including any garages and car ports shown on the approved plans, shall be constructed,
designated and allocated for the sole use of the occupants prior to the occupation of the
development and thereafter be permanently retained and used for no other purpose.

REASON

To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

11 ST1 Site Survey and Remediation Scheme

Before any part of this development/conversion is commenced a site survey to assess
the land contamination levels shall be carried out to the satisfaction of the Council and a
remediation scheme for removing or rendering innocuous all contaminates from the site
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation
scheme shall include an assessment of the extent of site contamination and provide in
detail the remedial measures to be taken to avoid risk to the occupiers and the buildings
when the site is developed, including building conversions. All works which form part of
this remediation scheme shall be completed before any part of the development is
occupied or brought into use (unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority). The condition will not be discharged until verification information has been
submitted for the remedial works.

Any imported material i.e. soil and site won soil shall be tested for contamination levels
therein to the satisfaction of the Council.

REASON

To ensure that the occupants and users of the development are not subject to any risks
from contamination in accordance with policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
- Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and London Plan (2016) Policy 5.21
(Contaminated Land).

12 RES15 Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 117



prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which
shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker
and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.

The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:

iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;

v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.

Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON

To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OES8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
and London Plan (2016) Policy 5.12.

13 ST1 Standard Condition

The communal garden area shall be subdivided in accordance with details approved via
planning permission ref: 5971/APP/2017/2702, dated 18-09-2017, and shall not be further
subdivided without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON

In order to provide a satisfactory external amenity space for the occupants in accordance
with Policies BE23 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012).

INFORMATIVES

1 152 Compulsory Informative (1)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

2 153 Compulsory Informative (2)

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant
material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BES8 Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings
BE9 Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions
BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 118



BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the

area.

BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

H4 Mix of housing units

oL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

HDAS-LAY Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments

LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes

NPPF9 NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

3 159 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved’) still apply for
development control decisions.

4 147 Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,
including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense.

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central

Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

5 12 Encroachment

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 119



You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by either
its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will have to
be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results in any
form of encroachment.

6 13 Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at least
6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed plans
must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control, 3N/01
Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

7 15 Party Walls

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:

carry out work to an existing party wall;

build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;

in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner and
are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building Control
Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the
adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as removing
the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further
information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory
booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning & Community
Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8 [§) Property Rights/Rights of Light

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override property
rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not empower
you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the owner. If
you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

9 115 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of
08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays,
Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 120



Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.
D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

10

The applicant is advised that the four existing parking spaces on the site should be used
by contractors for parking during construction works in order to minimise disruption on the
highway.

11

The applicant is advised that where the conditions requiring the submission of details have
been discharged in connection with the original permission, the Local Planning Authority
will not require these details to be re-submitted as part of this new planning permission
where those details would remain the same.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the western side of Hubbards Close and comprises of the
Hubbards Farm Lesser Barn. 42-53 Hubbards Close and associated parking is located
north-west of the site. An area of parking is located on the southern boundary while the
Grade Il Listed Hubbards Farm Greater Barn is located on the opposite side of Hubbards
Close. The application site is located within an area of Green Belt.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the variation of Condition 2 (approved plans) of planning
permission ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922, dated 31/05/2017, for the rebuilding of existing barn
with internal and external alterations to create two three-bedroom dwellings with associated
parking and landscaping.

This application seeks permission to vary condition 2 (approved plans) of planning
permission ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922 to allow for two additional first floor windows to the
east (front) elevation, minor realignment of ground floor openings and increase in roof
height.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

5971/AC/98/2044 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Erection of 34 houses and 15 flats to include 12 affordable housing units (6 houses and 6 flats)
and conversion of existing Listed Barn and Stable Block to 3 units of residential accommodation
together with associated access, parking for 80 cars and landscaping

Decision: 28-04-2000 Approved

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 121



5971/AD/99/2083 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Erection of 38 houses and 3 flats and conversion of a listed building and a stable block to
residential use including the provision of associated access, car parking and landscaping
(duplicate application)

Decision: 20-07-2000 Withdrawn

5971/APP/2000/1065 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF SITE SURVEY IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 9 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF. 5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15
FLATS AND CONVERSION OF EXISTING LISTED BARN AND STABLE BLOCK WITH
ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision: 02-07-2001  Approved

5971/APP/2000/1203 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF MATERIALS IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 16 OF PLANNING PERMISSI
REF. 5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15 FLATS TO
INCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE UNITS, CONVERSION OF EXISTING LISTED BARN AND STABI
BLOCK, TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision: 04-12-2000 Approved

5971/APP/2000/1275 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF EXTERNAL TIMBER WORK IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 19 OF
PLANNING PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSE
AND 15 FLATS TO INCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE UNITS AND CONVERSION OF LISTED BARI
AND STABLE BLOCK, TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND
LANDSCAPING

Decision: 04-12-2000 Approved

5971/APP/2000/1276 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF BOUNDARY FENCING IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 18 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15
FLATS TO INCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS AND CONVERSION OF LISTED B#
AND STABLE BLOCK TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND
LANDSCAPING

Decision: 12-02-2004  Approved

5971/APP/2000/1341 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF TREE SURVEY AND PROTECTIVE FENCING IN COMPLIANCE WITH
CONDITIONS 2 AND 4 OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF. 5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00
ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15 FLATS TO INCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE UNITS AND
CONVERSION OF EXISTING LISTED BARN AND STABLE BLOCK TOGETHER WITH
ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 122



Decision: 16-08-2000 Approved

5971/APP/2000/1387 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 7 OF
PLANNING PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSE
AND 15 FLATS AND CONVERSION OF LISTED BARN AND STABLE BLOCK

Decision: 17-01-2002 NFA

5971/APP/2000/1613 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF LANDSCAPING SCHEME IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 5 OF PLANNINC
PERMISSION REF 5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15
FLATS AND CONVERSION OF EXISTING LISTED BARN AND STABLE BLOCK WITH
ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision: 17-01-2002 NFA

5971/APP/2000/2022 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF NOISE PROTECTION SCHEME IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 17 OF
PLANNING PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSE
AND 15 FLATS TO INCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS (6 HOUSES AND 6 FLATS;
AND CONVERSION OF EXISTING LISTED BARN AND STABLE BLOCK TO 3 UNITS OF
RESIDENTIAL ACCOMMODATION, TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS, PARKING F(
80 CARS AND LANDSCAPING

Decision: 18-09-2000 Approved

5971/APP/2000/2440 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

DETAILS OF BIN STORAGE IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITION 10 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00; ERECTION OF 34 HOUSES AND 15
FLATS TO INCLUDE 12 AFFORDABLE HOUSING UNITS

Decision: 09-05-2001  Approved

5971/APP/2000/2701 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

VARIATION OF CONDITION 3 (TO ALLOW THE REMOVAL OF A CONIFER HEDGE ADJOIN
DALEHAM DRIVE) OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF.5971AC/98/2044 DATED 28/04/00;
RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

Decision: 03-10-2001 NFA

5971/APP/2001/1868 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS AND ERECTION OF A TWO STOREY REAR
EXTENSION TO ENABLE CONVERSION OF BUILDING TO TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS
(APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 123



Decision: 19-12-2001  Approved

5971/APP/2001/1976 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS

Decision: 19-12-2001  Approved

5971/APP/2001/572 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE A FOUR- BEDROOM RESIDENTIAL UNIT, GROUND
AND FIRST FLOOR OFFICES, ASSOCIATED PARKING AND REPOSITIONING OF GRAIN
STORE (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision: 19-12-2001  Approved

5971/APP/2001/573 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS (APPLICATION FOR LIST
BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision: 06-09-2001 Withdrawn

5971/APP/2001/92 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

COVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE A FOUR- BEDROOM RESIDENTIAL UNIT, GROUND Al
FIRST FLOOR OFFICES, ASSOCIATED PARKING AND REPOSITIONING OF GRAIN STORE

Decision: 19-12-2001  Approved

5971/APP/2001/93 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS AND ASSOCIATED
PARKING

Decision: 06-09-2001  Withdrawn

5971/APP/2003/162 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road I

CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED
PARKING AND ACCESS

Decision: 27-08-2003 Withdrawn

5971/APP/2003/164 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road

CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS INVOLVING REPAIR AND
REFURBISHMENT OF EXISTING BARN AND ASSOCIATED PARKING AND ACCESS
(APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision: 27-08-2003 Withdrawn

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 124



5971/APP/2003/2976 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road

CONVERSION OF BARN TO TWO-BEDROOM DWELLING INVOLVING INTERNAL AND
EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING BARN AND ERECTION OF DETACHED
OUTBUILDING TO REAR WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision: 09-11-2004  Approved

5971/APP/2003/2978 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road F

CONVERSION OF BARN TO TWO-BEDROOM DWELLING INVOLVING AND EXTERNAL
ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING BARN AND ERECTION OF DETACHED OUTBUILDING TO RE
WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING AND LANDSCAPING (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING
CONSENT)

Decision: 09-11-2004  Approved

5971/APP/2003/2979 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

CONVERSION OF BARN AND OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 2 FOUR-BEDROOM AND 1 TWO
BEDROOM DWELLINGS INVOLVING ALTERATION TO EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN
EXTENSION TO OUTBUILDING AND RESITING OF DETACHED GRANARY BUILDING,
ASSOCIATED PARKING, ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING

Decision: 24-11-2004  Approved

5971/APP/2003/2980 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

CONVERSION OF BARN AND OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 2 FOUR-BEDROOM AND 1 TWO
BEDROOM DWELLINGS INVOLVING ALTERATION TO EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN
EXTENSION TO OUTBUILDING AND RESITING OF DETACHED GRANARY BUILDING,
ASSOCIATED PARKING, ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING (APPLICATION FOR LISTED
BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision: 24-11-2004  Approved

5971/APP/2003/592 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE THREE RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED
PARKING AND ACCESS

Decision: 27-08-2003 Withdrawn

5971/APP/2003/593 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE THREE RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED
PARKING AND ACCESS (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision: 27-08-2003 Withdrawn

5971/APP/2005/2813 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

DETAILS IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 2, 3, 7,9, 10 AND 13 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF.5971/APP/2003/2979 DATED 24/11/2004: CONVERSION OF BARN AND

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 125



OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 2 FOUR-BEDROOM AND 1 TWO- BEDROOM DWELLINGS
INVOLVING ALTERATION TO EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN EXTENSION TO
OUTBUILDING AND RESITING OF DETACHED GRANARY BUILDING, ASSOCIATED PARKI
ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING

Decision: 13-07-2009 NFA

5971/APP/2006/1780 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road F

(A) DETAILS OF MATERIALS, SAFEGUARD OF THE SPECIAL ARCHITECTURAL/HISTORIC
INTEREST AND ROOF VENTILATION; IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 2, 3 AND 10 Of
PLANNING PERMISSION REF: 5971/APP/2003/2978 DATED 18-11-2004; CONVERSION OF
BARN TO TWO-BEDROOM DWELLING INVOLVING INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL
ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING BARN AND ERECTION OF DETACHED OUTBUILDING TO RE
WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING AND LANDSCAPING (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING
CONSENT)

(B) DETAILS OF MATERIALS, SITE SURVEY PLAN, LANDSCAPING AND MAINTENANCE O
LANDSCAPING; IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 2, 7, 8 AND 10 OF PLANNING
PERMISSION REF: 5971/APP/2003/2976 DATED 19-11-2004; CONVERSION OF BARN TO
TWO-BEDROOM DWELLING INVOLVING INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL ALTERNATIONS TO
EXISTING BARN AND ERECTION OF DETACHED OUTBUILDING TO REAR WITH
ASSOCIATED PARKING AND LANDSCAPING

Decision: 13-07-2009 NFA

5971/APP/2006/2056 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road

DETAILS OF PROGRAMME OF ARCHAEOLOGIGAL WORK IN COMPLIANCE WITH
CONDITION 3 OF LISTED BUILDING CONSENT GRANTED ON THE 19/11/04 DATED
09/11/2004: CONVERSION OF BARN TO A TWO-BEDROOM DWELLING (APPLICATION FO
LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision: 13-07-2009 NFA

5971/APP/2006/475 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

CREATION OF TWO ADDITIONAL ONE- BEDROOM SELF-CONTAINED FLATS IN
ROOFSPACE, CREATING SECOND FLOOR APARTMENTS; AMENDMENT TO PLANNING
PERMISSION REF.5971/APP/2003/2979 DATED 24/11/2005: CONVERSION OF BARN AND
OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 2 FOUR-BEDROOM AND ONE TWO-BEDROOM DWELLINGS
INVOLVING ALTERATION TO EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN EXTENSION TO
OUTBUILDING AND RESITING OF DETACHED GRANARY BUILDING, ASSOCIATED PARKI
ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING.

Decision: 12-05-2009 NFA

5971/APP/2006/476 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 126



CREATION OF TWO ADDITIONAL ONE- BEDROOM SELF-CONTAINED FLATS IN UPPER
ROOFSPACE, CREATING SECOND FLOOR APARTMENTS; AMENDMENT TO PLANNING
PERMISSION REF.5971/APP/2003/2979 DATED 24/11/2004: CONVERSION OF BARN AND
OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 2 FOUR-BEDROOM AND 1 TWO-BEDROOM DWELLINGS
INVOLVING ALTERATION TO EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN EXTENSION TO
OUTBUILDING AND RESITING OF DETACHED GRANARY BUILDING, ASSOCIATED PARKI
ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT).

Decision: 12-05-2009 NFA

5971/APP/2006/578 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

DETAILS IN COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 2, 3,7,9 AND 10 OF PLANNING PERMISSIOI
REF. 5971/APP/2005/2813.

Decision: 23-05-2006 NFA

5971/APP/2007/2137 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

CONVERSION OF MAIN BARN AND OUTBUILDING TO CREATE 1, THREE-BEDROOM, 2,
TWO-BEDROOM AND 2, ONE-BEDROOM DWELLING UNITS INVOLVING ALTERATIONS T(
EXISTING BARN, ERECTION OF AN EXTENSION TO OUTBUILDING AND RE-SITING OF
DETACHED GRANARY BUILDING, TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING, ACCESS AM
LANDSCAPING

Decision: 15-01-2008 Approved

5971/APP/2007/2146 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road H

CONVERSION OF LESSER BARN TO 2 THREE-BEDROOM DWELLINGS INVOLVING
INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING BARN WITH ASSOCIATED PARK
AND LANDSCAPING

Decision: 26-02-2008  Approved

5971/APP/2007/2148 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

Conversion of main barn, with single storey extension to form 1 three-bedroom dwelling, 2 two-
bedroom dwellings and 2 one-bedroom dwellings, and provision of 6 parking spaces within
courtyard (Application for Listed Building Consent).

Decision: 15-01-2008  Approved

5971/APP/2007/2177 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road F

CONVERSION OF BARN TO TWO THREE BEDROOM DWELLINGS INVOLVING INTERNAL
AND EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS TO EXISTING BARN WITH ASSOCIATED PARKING AND
LANDSCAPING (APPLICATION FOR LISTED BUILDING CONSENT)

Decision: 26-02-2008  Approved

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 127



5971/APP/2011/2438 Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Conversion of lesser barn to two three-bedroom dwellings involving internal and external alterat
to existing barn with associated parking and landscaping.

Decision: 18-04-2012 Approved

5971/APP/2011/2439 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

Conversion of main barn and outbuilding to create 1 three-bedroom, 2 two-bedroom and 2 one-
bedroom dwelling units, involving alterations to existing barn, erection of an extension to
outbuilding and re-siting of detached granary building together with associated access, parking
and landscaping.

Decision: 18-04-2012 Approved

5971/APP/2012/121 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

Conversion of main barn and outbuilding to create 1 three-bedroom, 2 two-bedroom and 2 one
bedroom dwelling units, involving alterations to existing barn, erection of an extension to
outbuilding and re-siting of detached granary building together with associated access, parking
and landscaping (Listed Building Consent)

Decision: 18-04-2012 Approved

5971/APP/2012/122 Lesser Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road F

Conversion of Lesser barn to two 3-bedroom dwellings, involving internal and external alteration
to existing barn, with associated parking and landscaping (Application for Listed Building
Consent).

Decision: 18-04-2012 Approved

5971/APP/2013/1839 The Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Dismantling of existing farm outbuilding and reconstruction to accord with planning application ri
5971/APP/2016/3922 (Rebuilding of existing barn with internal and external alterations to create
two three-bedroom dwellings with associated parking and landscaping) (Application for Listed
Building Consent).

Decision: 21-05-2015 Approved

5971/APP/2013/2831 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

Dismantling and rebuilding of existing barn and extension to provide 7 self contained flats with
associated external works and landscaping

Decision: 21-05-2015 Approved

5971/APP/2014/1168 Greater Barn, Hubbards Farm, Hubbards Close West Drayton Road |

Listed Building Consent for the dismantling and rebuilding of existing barn and extension to
provide 7 self contained flats.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 128



Decision: 21-05-2015 Approved

5971/APP/2016/3922 Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Rebuilding of existing barn with internal and external alterations to create two three-bedroom
dwellings with associated parking and landscaping

Decision: 31-05-2017  Approved

5971/APP/2017/2702 Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Details pursuant to conditions 8 (existing trees survey), 9 (landscaping) and 13 (communal
garden) of planning permission ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922, dated 31-05-17 (Rebuilding of existin
barn with internal and external alterations to create two three bedroom dwellings with associate«
parking and landscaping)

Decision: 18-09-2017 Approved

5971/APP/2017/3434 Greater And Lesser Barns Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Details pursuant to condition 4 (Written Scheme of Investigation) of planning permission Ref:
5971/APP/2016/3922 (Lesser Barn - two three-bedroom dwellings), condition 18 of planning
permission ref: 5971/APP/2013/2831 (Greater Barn - 7 self contained flats) and condition 9 of
Listed Building Consent Refs: 5971/APP/2013/1839 (Lesser Barn - two three-bedroom dwelling:
and 5971/APP/2014/1168 (Greater Barn - 7 self contained flats), all dated 31/05/2017

Decision: 16-10-2017  Approved

5971/APP/2017/3477 Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

Details pursuant to conditions 5 (details of timber repairs/schedule of salvaged materials) and 6
(adjustments to final drawings to incorporate repaired timbers) of Listed Building Consent ref:
5971/APP/2013/1839 dated 31/05/2017 (Dismantling of existing farm outbuilding and
reconstruction to accord with planning application ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922 (Rebuilding of
existing barn with internal and external alterations to create two three-bedroom dwellings with
associated parking and landscaping)

Decision: 08-05-2018 Approved

5971/G/80/0623 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
Change of use of buildings for storage & process. to warehouse with Class X of T & C planning
order.

Decision: 24-05-1983 Withdrawn

5971/H/80/1807 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Continued use of building AB & C, change of use of D to warehouse.

Decision: 25-11-1982  Approved

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 129



5971/J3/82/0988 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon
Removal of cond. 5 from p/p 5971A/4169 & 5971D/ 4975 relating to use of buildings.

Decision: 19-08-1983 NFA

5971/K/84/1360 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Erection of terrapin for retail & warehousing. use of gardens for display of sheds,additional parki
Decision: 27-02-1985 Refused Appeal: 17-12-2001 In Abeyance
5971/M/86/0933 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Listed building consent to dev/alter (P)

Decision: 22-07-1986  Approved

5971/N/87/1260 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Use for retail & wholesale agri. & horti. merchant bus.
Decision: 24-07-1987 Refused Appeal: 17-12-2001 In Abeyance
5971/P/87/1261 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Use for retail & wholesale agri. & horti. merchant bus. (App for L.B.C.)
Decision: 24-07-1987 Refused Appeal: 17-12-2001 In Abeyance
5971/PRC/2015/172 Greater Barn And Lesser Barn Hubbards Close Hillingdon

To discuss S106 bond requirements and progression of planning application refs:
5971/APP/2013/1839 (Rebuilding of the Lesser Barn to provide 2 no. semi-detached houses) ar
5971/APP/2013/2831 & 5971/APP/2014/1168 (Rebuilding of the Greater Barn to provide 7 no. r
flats)

Decision: 04-05-2017 PRM

5971/PRE/2001/54 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

TP PRE CORRES: CONVERSION OF BARN TO CREATE TWO RESIDENTIAL UNITS (RET II
FULL AS NEED LETTER OF WITHDRAWAL RE 5971/APP/2001/93)

Decision:

5971/X/94/1305 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Conversion of barn and stable into residential units (Application for Listed Building Consent)

Decision: 12-06-1998 Approved

5971/Y/94/1306 Hubbards Farm West Drayton Road Hillingdon

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 130



Erection of 17 houses and 34 flats and conversion of existing listed building and stable block to
residential use incorporating provision of 83 parking spaces, landscaping and demolition of
existing warehouse, office building and associated outbuildings

Decision: 23-03-1998 Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

The Grade Il Listed Lesser Barn was previously used as stables which ceased use in
2000. Since this time the Lesser Barn became increasingly derelict and has now collapsed
and has been dismantled by a specialist contractor, recorded and stored on site for
reinstatement.

4, Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan
The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

PT1.BE1l (2012) Built Environment
PT1.EM2 (2012) Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Green Chains
PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

AM7 Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

BES Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

BE9 Listed building consent applications for alterations or extensions

BE10 Proposals detrimental to the setting of a listed building

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

BE15 Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

BE19 New development must improve or complement the character of the area.
BE20 Daylight and sunlight considerations.

BE21 Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

BE22 Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

BE23 Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

BE24 Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.
BE38 Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting

and landscaping in development proposals.
H4 Mix of housing units

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 131



oL4 Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

HDAS-LAY  Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

LPP 3.3 (2016) Increasing housing supply

LPP 3.4 (2015) Optimising housing potential

LPP 3.5 (2016) Quality and design of housing developments
LPP 3.8 (2016) Housing Choice

LPP 7.4 (2016) Local character

LPP 7.8 (2016) Heritage assets and archaeology

LPP 7.16 (2016) Green Belt

NPPF1 NPPF - Delivering sustainable development

NPPF6 NPPF - Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
NPPF9 NPPF - Protecting Green Belt land

NPPF12 NPPF - Conserving & enhancing the historic environment

5. Advertisement and Site Notice
5.1  Advertisement Expiry Date:- Not applicable

5.2  Site Notice Expiry Date:- Not applicable

6. Consultations
External Consultees
A site notice was displayed on site. No responses have been received.

Historic England:
On the basis of the information provided, we do not consider that it is necessary for this application
to be notified to Historic England under the relevant statutory provisions.

Internal Consultees
Conservation Officer:

This is an application to vary the original approval. It includes the restored windows to the first floor
front, changes to the brickwork on the street elevation, changes to the proportions of the windows on
all elevations, an increase in the height of the building by approx 1m, a slight reduction in length of
the building and changes to the proportions of the rooflights.

The alteration of the first floor front windows is acceptable in principle; however, the other changes
to the elevations are generally not. The street elevation should include the detailing as previously
approved, or similar, i.e. with narrow “"barn like" windows, brick arches and door recesses.
Otherwise the resulting street elevation would be extremely bland given the framing will be behind
the brickwork. If the windows need to open, then it would be worth considering the inclusion of this
detail, i.e. with opening top lights, at this stage. It might be possible to include slightly wider windows
on the rear timber clad elevation of the outshot; however, the rooflights should be traditional
conservation rooflights with a central glazing bar and "elongated" proportions. The change in height
of the building is a concern, and this has not been explained. It is not clear how the retained framing
can be adapted to accord with this.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 132



Officer comments:

The applicant has re-instated the previously approved detailing on the street elevation and has
provided additional information in regards to the increase in roof height and alterations to the timber
frame which is considered to address the Conservation Officer's concerns.

7. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES
7.01 The principle of the development

The use of the Lesser Barn for residential purposes has already been established in
principle, following approval of the original application (ref: 5971/APP/2007/2146) in 2008,
and the approval of the subsequent application ref: 5971/APP/2011/2438 (April 2012) and
application ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922 (May 2017), for two residential units.

The proposal seeks approval for two additional first floor windows to the east (front)
elevation, minor realignment of ground floor openings and an increase in the roof height.

There is no objection in principle to the proposed alterations to the proposed residential
units subject to compliance with the relevant Policies of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
- Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

7.02 Density of the proposed development

The density of the proposed development was considered to be acceptable at the time of
the original and subsequent planning applications; the proposed additional first floor
windows, minor realignment of ground floor openings and an increase in the roof height
would not impact on the density of the development.

7.03 Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Policy BE8 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
will not permit applications to alter or extend Listed Buildings where damage may be
caused to the historic structure. External and internal alternations should harmonise with
their surroundings. Policy BE10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) will not grant permission for proposals that are detrimental to the
setting of the Listed Building.

The proposed scheme approved under application ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922, dated
31/05/2017, sought to rebuild and restore the Grade Il Listed Lesser Barn in order to allow
for its conversion into two three-bedroom dwellings with associated parking and
landscaping.

The Grade Il Listed Lesser Barn was previously used as stables which ceased use in
2000. Since this time the Lesser Barn became increasingly derelict, eventually collapsing;
the barn has been dismantled by a specialist contractor, recorded and stored on site for
reinstatement; in January 2017 the specialist contractor carried out an updated survey to
assess the condition of the timber frame at the time of the most recent planning
application.

Since the January 2017 survey, the specialist contractor has carried out further work to
fully assess the timber conditions and to record the timber sizes, along with setting out and
reviewing where timbers can be salvaged, and repaired for reuse. Following on from this
assessment a detailed proposed Oak timber frame construction has been put together for
reinstatement on site.

During the work undertaken by the specialist contractor, it became apparent that there
were a number of first floor window openings on the east wall (front of the barn) which had
been concealed by masonry when the construction of the building had first been appraised
as a standing building in 2006. As a result, the current application seeks to vary the

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 133



7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

approved plans of planning permission ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922 in order to include two
additional windows on the front (east) elevation of the property. In addition, the current
application also proposes minor realignment of ground floor openings to reflect the
structural reconstruction of the timber frame as shown on the submitted reports and plans
of the timber conditions survey. The proposal also includes an increase in the roof height
due to the need to accommodate workable floor to ceiling heights at first floor and to fully
reflect the timber frame detail.

The Conservation Officer has no objection to the proposed alterations to the proposed
dwellings; the two additional windows proposed on the front (east) elevation of the property,
the realignment of the ground floor openings and the proposed increase in the roof height
are considered to be acceptable and would not have a detrimental impact on the character,
appearance and setting of the Grade Il Listed Barn.

The proposal therefore complies with Policies BE8 and BE10 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).
Airport safeguarding

Not applicable for this application.
Impact on the green belt

The impact of the proposed reinstatement of the Grade Il Listed Building and the
conversion into two residential dwellings was considered to be acceptable at the time of
the original and subsequent planning applications. The proposed additional first floor
windows, minor realignment of ground floor openings and an increase in roof height would
be minor in scale and would not impact on the visual amenity of the Green Belt.
Environmental Impact

Not applicable to this application.
Impact on the character & appearance of the area

At the time of the original and subsequent planning applications (refs: 5971/APP/2007/2146
and 5971/APP/2011/2438) the Lesser Barn was in a derelict state, with only the timber
frame remaining. Since 2012, the Lesser Barn has collapsed, and as such, the site has
had an unsightly impact on the existing street scene and the residential nature of the
surrounding area.

The scheme approved under application ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922 sought to rebuild and
restore the existing barn and convert into two residential dwellings which was considered
to improve the street scene by restoring the derelict/collapsed barn to an acceptable
appearance in compliance with Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

The proposed additional first floor windows, minor realignment of ground floor openings
and an increase in roof height would be minor in scale and would not cause harm to the
character and appearance of the Grade Il Listed Building, the immediate street scene and
the surrounding area, in accordance with Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

Impact on neighbours

Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires the design of new developments to protect the privacy of neighbouring dwellings.

The proposal seeks to add two additional windows on the front (east) elevation of the
property. The proposed windows on the front elevation would be acceptable and would not

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 134



7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

result in a loss of privacy to neighbouring properties.

The increase in roof height is minor in scale and so would not have a detrimental impact on
neighbours.

The proposal therefore complies with Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Living conditions for future occupiers

The living conditions for future occupiers of the two proposed residential dwellings were
considered to be acceptable at the time of the original and subsequent planning
applications. The minor realignment of ground floor openings would not have a significant
impact on the internal floor spaces of the proposed residential units. The proposed
increase in the roof height would provide improved floor to ceiling heights at first floor level.
Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposed additional windows, the realignment of ground floor openings and an
increase in the roof height would not impact on parking provision or traffic generation.
Urban design, access and security

Urban Design:
See Section 7.03 of this report.

Access and Security:

The proposed additional first floor windows, minor realignment of ground floor openings
and an increase in the roof height would not impact on access and security of the
proposed dwellings.

Disabled access

The proposed additional first floor windows, minor realignment of ground floor openings
and an increase in the roof height would not impact on disabled access.
Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Not applicable to this application.
Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The proposed additional first floor windows, minor realignment of ground floor openings
and an increase in the roof height would not impact on landscaping within the development
Sustainable waste management

Not applicable to this application.
Renewable energy / Sustainability

Not applicable to this application.
Flooding or Drainage Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Noise or Air Quality Issues

Not applicable to this application.
Comments on Public Consultations

No responses were received during the public consultation.
Planning obligations

The proposal seeks to vary condition 2 (approved plans) of planning permission ref:
5971/APP/2016/3922 dated 31/05/2017, which was subject to a Section 106 Legal
Agreement. A Deed of Variation to the previously secured legal agreement is therefore
required details of which are set out above.

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 135



7.21 Expediency of enforcement action

Not applicable to this application.
7.22 Other Issues

None

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General

Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.

Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned.

Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.

Planning Conditions

Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.

Planning Obligations

Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).

Equalities and Human Rights

Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 136



given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance
Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

Planning permission is sought for the variation of Condition 2 (approved plans) of planning
permission ref: 5971/APP/2016/3922, dated 31/05/2017, for the rebuilding of an existing
barn with internal and external alterations to create two three-bedroom dwellings with
associated parking and landscaping. The amendments would allow for two additional first
floor windows to the east (front) elevation, minor realignment of ground floor openings and
increase in the roof height.

The proposed alterations to the rebuilt Grade Il Listed Barn are considered to be acceptable
and would not have a detrimental impact on the character, appearance and setting of the
Grade Il Listed Barn or to the character and appearance of the street scene and
surrounding area. The proposal would not result in cause harm to the residential amenity of
the area.

The proposed alterations to the rebuilt Grade Il Listed Barn would comply with Policies
BES8, BE10, BE13 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012). The application is therefore recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
London Plan (2016)

National Planning Policy Framework

Contact Officer: Katherine Mills Telephone No: 01895 250230

Central & South Planning Committee - 6th June 2018
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Page 137



WEST DRAYTON ROAD

it

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Greater & Lesser Barn

LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
5971/APP/2017/3478 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
June 2018

Central & Seatfe 138

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Agenda Annex

Plans for
Central & South
Applications
Planning Committee

Wednesday 6th June
2018

TILLINGDON

OOOOOO

www. hillingdon.gov.uk



Page 140



UK
Planning Map data
Maps

@5

9 Maygoods Green, Uxbridge, UB8 3TG

om 50m 100m
Scale 1:1250 Crown copyright and database nghts 2016 Ordnance Survay 100054138

Map area bounded by: 505695,181861 505837,182003. Produced on 23 February 2018 from the OS National Geographic Database.
Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey. © Crown copyright 2018. Supplied by
UKPlanningMaps.com a licensed OS partner (100054135). Unique plan reference: p2buk/225735/308424

Page 141



UK
Planning
‘Maps

9 Maygoods Green, Uxbridge, UB8 3TG
ot

s

om . 10m 20m 3om
Scale 1:200 Crown copynight and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100054135

Map area bounded by: 505739,181902 505775,181938. Produced on 23 February 2018 from the OS National Geographic Database,
Reproduction in whole or part is prohibited without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey. © Crown copyright 2018. Supplied by
UKPlanningMaps.com a licensed OS partner (100054135). Unique plan reference: b36buk/225735/308430

Page 142



W
2
#
W
2
=3
=
oo
2

AGGRE(FATE




'
|
'
I
'
'
I
'
'
'
'
I
'
'
I
'
I
1t
i
1
'
'
'
'
I
'
'
|
'
I
'
'

L]

7
AEe?

L 0
T

P
\

Allotment Gardens

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

9 Maygoods Green

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
73573/APP/2018/621 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
June 2018

Central & Seafe 144

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Page 145



SWEETCROFT LANE

5
J EXISTING
; TS et e iy CAR
i SPACES
1 |I
105
L1
( HAWTHORN ' ;‘.‘ -
IS
/ LOCATIOMN PLAN .
! SCALE=1:1250 L | | 5‘Om
SCALE BAR
WEEPING
O O O SILVER
© O K A ARCHITECTURAL DRAVING SFRVICES
T Ry BN A P 141 LANGLEY ROAD, SLOUGH SL3 707
CYPRESS HOLLY HOLLY CYPRESS TEL/ZFAX 01793 541 824, MORILE 07939213221
. i un hie  Revisons
N—— 105 Sweeteroft Lane, Hillingdon
SCALE= :200 1l HMO
Q 5m | Om
L1 | L1 = =48 & Sons
SCALE BAR . B
¥ Site and Location Plans
Page 146 "y “hsongi) | 1460/




v\owvhﬂ.?n_ aﬂu umoys sy -_-uu— 210z Ainp a0g
ue|d J00J4 punoIn Bunsg ...,
suos @SV .., 001:1=31¥05
OWH NY1d dOO1d ANNOE9D 9ONILSIXE
sy uopbuljjiy ‘aue] Yolo}eoms S0} ..
122£126€6L0 ITIGON ‘v28 LS €510 XV4/13L f
Zadl £1S HONOTS ‘aVoH ATTONV br) :
SIDIAHIS DNIMVHA TVHNLIILIHOHY V ) 1 _HW_
? i i 5|:|:|ﬁ”t—._ H—mmmﬂl |
Zw/e
2 I9NNOT
r-— - - 71 R |
| | | I
i 3 52wl o = oo e ]
ZWS |
dvd 31v0S W AQNLS Pz Y r==- "7
M T I _ , ! , : ,
Lo - _1 Lo - 1 cwse
W o \ NIHOLM
If, T — T f — 1
e
D VI AV
Em@ e K
D WY HOINW
= = ]
O | e
sd | €3 2u/
h g W ALNILA
|/ D-@}G
we'g| I
Zuip | | ONNOT
Wy a3g Zwz6 |
Wy aag
|
TIvH K
1
& oo

Page 147



m_._owv__....f_ (ev) umoys sy ._.x_ sozhme

ueld 100[4 }S14 BUNSIXT sonuq

suos @ SY ...

OWH
uopbuljjiy ‘ouet Joi}oaMs S0} ..
L1ZZEIZ6E6L0 TTIHONW ‘P28 IS €SL10 XV4/13L
Za.Z £1S HONOTS ‘AVOH ATTONV bl
S3DIAHIAS HONIMVHA TVHNLIILIHOHY V
00 1:1=3W0S
NV1d 40074 16314 ONILSIX3
Hv8 3VOS

I T T T T ]
o]

2ue'z
¥ W a3a
a_!/ \PL‘ T | 5 | I |
"
. " NG 62 2w+ f]
" FIMOHS =
T -
Sa "
51 .
53 amg
Zup | 70
€ vy 038 ONY 63 ONI
2us|
2ug's | S greets
2 Wy a3d q

Page 148



sworiinay

N_..Qwv__.zf._ (ev) umoys sy ._.x_ uozher |

ueld 100]4 punoJs pasodold ...,

SUOS RSV .o

OWH
- uopbuljjiy ‘auet }joio}aams S0} ..

12ZEIZ6E6L0 TNEON ‘v28 L¥S £6210 XV4/13IL
Zdl £15 HONOTS ‘aVOH ATTONV kP )
S3DIAHIS DONIMVHA TVHNLOALIHOHY V X

Hva 37v0s

I T T T 1
ws 0]

MR

001+ 1 =2v2S

NYld JO071d ANNOED d3s0d0Ed

cuwy|
2 Wa a3a

wg'g|
| 3ONNOT

cuwzgel
| Wy a3g

¥ 1 —
A TA
2 JONNON
[T SR |
' ' '
| (PRSI | a1 e M
gWG 1
€ Wd a3g [ e S|
' i '
Lissarad s e ewsez
NIHDLM
v_z\wm_ﬂlw J
cwg | u
W ONINIO
ew/
Wa ALNILN

J¥0l1s

Page 149



M_.. 09b1.. ... _ (ev) umoys sy oz knr

o5 s

uejd 100}4 )s114 pasodold ...,

SUos 3 SV ...,

OWH

ity uopbullI ‘aueT JJoio}oaMs S0F ..

}2ZTEIZEE6LO ITNHON ¥T8 HPS €SLI0 XVA/IL
ZaL €15 HONOTS ‘aVoH ATTONVT b
S3JIAHIS DNIMVHA TVHNLOALIHOHY V M

e

yve 31v0s

] T T T T 1
wg o)

N

001:1=3WI5

NY1d d0O0Td 1Sdld d350d0Hd

cweel
L W3 a3ag

cwi |
2 Wd a3g

ONIONY @

) 2usy am
YIMOHS

I

cwa'Gg|
S We a3d

./

=

=8

[T
c3 ﬁ
=

GNV S3 ONI
cwa|
¥ Wa a3g

Page 150



Notes

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2013 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address

105 Sweetcroft Lane

Hillingdon

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale
2703/APP/2017/2579 1:1,250
Planning Committee Date
Central and %%lgjgkl June 2018

s

T™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Page 152



hNAﬁlll((:)EN#?IE OS Plan B&W

«loocsos

A

181200 181200

181100

Tl

AN
§ S\ “ﬂ\““““‘} %
| W\ \‘5“'
s

0 0 2 0 4«
<_ ° _) Scale: 1:1250
L}

45 Corwell Gardens

Uxbridge
Sunplied by: National Map Centre UB8 3JT Plot centre co-ordinates:  508219,181166
License number: 100031961 Download file: pottle 45corwell.zip
Produced: 21/02/2017 Project name: pottle_45corwell
Serial number: 1801499

Produced from the Ordnance Survey National Geographic Database and incorporating survey revisions available at this date. © Crown copyright 2016.
Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without prior pemmission of the Ordnance Survey. Ordnance Survery and the OS symbol are trade marks.
The representation of a road, track or path is no evidence of a right of wayp'gjg Er1estation of features as line is no evidence of a property boundary.




€0/598¢

“ax iy

L BT

D aeag

aeds Ayuawe pue Huied
Adeiaue ‘syeyy oipnys
0uZ 'sieyy pagz ouy
TNSNA0T3AI0 MaN
XadIW

NOQONITIH
i SN3OYYD M3IMH0D 99- Y
; - yug3elpe ayis

sxLany

H3IINNH 0 dW

sy

wooyn-aod MMM
008229 S68T0 1oL

YHS YH %2S3IPPIN “diisiny
Aepn JOURIA BCT Y 2ANS

sjuexNsuoD Sulpiing B Suluueld
0378 amod

whuidas o

sucrsinad a1ec

Apeulsyul
wbs £9.0% 2zIS y1up
Sigl} opnys  oug

SLINN H00714 Dzouum

4

© 20%10/598€ SON
D¥Q HLIM NOILINAFNGD NI

Qv3iy 38 0L ONIMVSG SIHL

NVId ¥0014 0ONQO33S

TUTTON P V) DIM! @ Y] v

Aljeulaus
i wbs gLy 23S uf
Woolp3d7 ouyg

! SLINM 30074 1S¥id

=

uau4ly]

BUHEAD Y WG, B{E0S

J0U TR B1S UD PERIBUD 89 137U SUDISUS

UBYILY

Page 154

Buan

RGN




NOILVAIT3 -~ LNOY4

NOTIVAS 13 ov34 NOIVAS 13 3015

3 RN T
o | NEER
B B N =

D93 Ty M’Aﬂ

B i

Ty ey S

["5oecs Apawe pue buiysed
Asepnue sieyy oipnys
0uZ ’sye)j paqgz ouy

INIWN0TIAIT MIN

g S

k
| — ,
| X00W ‘ oy ey 0y
| u T
! NOGONITIIH
- SNIMIVD TTIMY02. 99~ 59
w “juadefpe ayis ROTIVATIS 307S

m Nvid 90014 ONNOZD

43INNH 0 W o 1 - ‘h\
,u!n =~ B (R Bt b BuiArg ; = Ti |
| +H L = L
! . — ! By | aynsu3i
| =5, FSILOREIT e k= -
m woayn-apiod-mmm n 4 ! 4 > J,, e W n
I 00828 68701 wbsgl. 9, 2z1s juun . R | 4
: N

UHB PYH XISIPPIN ] . e y s | >_ Ve

m Aem Joue 8TT v 3ung . ¥ 7 ‘#ﬂo‘aﬂw ! ‘Eoo._ Ped C‘IDZ N\ | A

Sueynsuoy Supiing % Bueld | I'STINA ®0079 aNNodD i ,ﬂ
; 038 9Mm0g 7] ] i 0
| 0
, —
j s @ T (D) i
il suosinen = P R -
, T e S, § NS I A 9UAN€M N QL,
u! e d\v S Sy O LW ] —_————— e Dﬂm

CARTG I NIN T, DV ATy

I -5 T Ty b
¥ SISTp ILTW/ITT WP ! L ”
.

S

Sary

e e - % Iﬁ 3J04s]

IR T - TSTRYW — e e o
oy T W T €0 8 10/598€ SON Tm:ow

: TTIENTNG T2 AFREYS oW Sy UKD I.:\S ZD_._.UZ_‘:.ZDu Z~ W +
L YLETSL, OFp FWI heDw™ 9P =3 ! I
| o 5 S v Ov3d 39 0L DNIMYID SIHL ” P
! TIPS B VRS TR e 0 — - —

TG VEEW W) TIOTIIG DY) o = e Ty it N

—_— pag

| ) SIWIHILYIW 2 -
i Buary
| .t et

- RTa o

- LI
: \ i N ”: | ; i ;
} , R : [ ey ! i
o =00 L pag | %
TR i -

WIS g EPRNTG wom) S eT

il

oG

o7}

—
Bl
UETRYIY

SEs oA
LAY

et
TV TG TR LT S Y TR TR VO

L5 =L ig
| ‘ , ,, P , —_— — : -
I S A = s

U DUE B U0 RSYISNS 3

B )




;/Q WWpBS X 021

S e e

L0/ 598¢€

o B b

N

areqg

N reng

a7eds Ajiuawe pue mc_vtmmxﬂ

|

5

Asepnue ‘syey oipnys
QUZ ‘sieyy paqy ou¥

INIWdOT3A30 M3IN

s, Buimesg

y
|

XOQ0IW
NOGONITTIH

SNITJVY 717IMH0D 9% -SG9
- Emum:um 3lIs

1 qop

Y3INNH 0 dW

.S:J

wooyn-3j30d Mmm
008779 96810 191

HHE tVH X3s3ippIA ‘dijsiny

Aep Jouely §ZT vV 3N

sjuensuo) 8uip|ing 1§ Sujuueld
0) 73 d30d

SLOIRIARY B

b A VO B

‘BulMBIE S1ys WA PRIBSS
10 PHE S3US U PANIRYD 57 ISTLI SUBSUSUS jiy
‘SELGN

ATPRT) SSTOTHS
A QAU& R TROS ITFPIET F

PIMTI Q) TMTEORIT 2000 VST TN TS

QT
— ] S
) BRI TS / A
RIS AT el Rcigts s T 9% Vs 4
oL UTMMTT) TRE T > 7 - - , \%
—_— i e \ .\/
N - i - ﬂq{ . R - Y
e . d?vﬂjo Ny f
/ sy | — 5
N A (| G IS DRy Wy @ Swe g ,
ﬁ/ k- B wanaao A ddﬁa@ Rl
i \J\! ™~/
b4 b
< N v ) ! \
x oy TR
‘ ’ ¥ R O YIVIRD TSN
m wvgﬁm VIR @y ,
qu .aHJ ] ;
R R SIS v R T |;P e \.\
> _l.L FpTTERD &
;,,/f ~ . i N “ .
, Ty | E -
| P N\ ;
! | I = = ¢« sTms Tg
S e S ! — : %
[ : — JESS—
. TRTY — TR S, HFOW) —
T}n m— m T S e l\lw‘\‘ o AUA/QOINHH_V e
SRl : = >
[ . vy | o
N | ,
§ Y | ;
,,\ — \\W
. N ,_ = WY -
S e Tmom mem T = Wﬂ. EONEE SIS IR s
S L Sy DIV TR v
W) o) seer 7 sl N - -
uddgw ey : o
ﬁ;u?«ﬂa._o Kroworsy ‘wﬂ.\
TTOTVE P YT F) vo Ty - ) B
T AP0 TR / : ;
o ; ‘ AL T
T ey | aiﬁ%w |
) Cudaﬂddo ES R tbd C/ | ! '
TS, TP ) ‘o m ; P
YTy e ~ N w s Y
/\/5‘ v \JE/ S TN i ! ) ! , : TR |
, TS i PR L , | 0o
St e < S R e
, S Y . b 4 LN = D NN SRS S R B
e = N ~ - N T~ e | !
<, M | , (S s L N
—A N L \ Lt fewey 7y
SN 7R T, -

€0-70/G98E SON 9¥J
HLIM NOILINAINGD NI

0v3yY 38 0L ONIMVHQ SIHL




Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Garage Site Adjacent to
45 Corwell Gardens

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72968/APP/2018/199 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
June 2018

Central & Sopdle 157

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Page 158



0sZl: L

8111ZIS0000INOTNONY ‘ON 89USor] 9107 dnosD UoRouLDJUIed ul 1Bidon ®

JH

Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Sunnyside Cottages
N

Timber Yard™™, -/

Colham Green

Allotment Gardens

(]
Recreation Groynd

L

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Site Address:

Residents Services

Planning Section

Notes:
Site boundary
For identification purposes only. Former Pr | nce AI b ert Pu b
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . . . .
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale: .
Act 1988 (the Act). 704/APP/2016/3689 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant o
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date: :
© Crown copyright and database _HI LLIN G D(-) N
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey June 2018 e o N
100019283 Central & S@@.U@: 166 LONDON




Page 167



LO0-QYOHINIOAYOET ev@00L:1
‘ON9Ha 308

480 018N 'IDAINEXN

'avoy INIAMVO 82 OL INIDVray ( Wooua3a
1 ) ONITIZMA M3N 3LYIHO OL NOISNILX3
Hv3Y ONY 30IS AFYOLS I78N00J LYvd ' HOYOd
LINOYH “Hy3Y ¥ 3AIS AFYOLS FTONIS Lyvd
LD 3rOHd

Jsooitan
‘3odIdgxn

‘avod INIAHVO 82
IHSOQ dV1V "IN

AN

SLNIWNOD S3lva A3

MIIATY INSMD HOS | LO0ZTEOE | ¥

NOLLYID Iddy SNYId TN 804 | LI0ZF0EL | 8

woo rewEpareanyt N | 00P6ELISSL0 TL
8¢ LVH "THONNYLS 'avod 490 €1
sypo gy Supmg jo sadi v jo SuniSisagy 3 Sunrueg

AHLINTT NOISHAa

o HALVHYOI

By pepE X3
WSOWIOUL  SHL
PRl gy

odid s ues s
adid JEm NGy g
sddEnos  dAg
Wool peRy MH

00S:L 3TVOS NY1d MD019

EEane Mg WU} IEMIOY  ARH
IEM BOBUNE  AS HULS WY S¥
fpuncaiol  ad uane  AQ
oo dojg o5 Ja%00D b1
BoERL W abipyy Mo
[BAD] LA Al laysEMUER Mg
180D uofoedsu) 20 Jajoq wi
anges seli AD g iR av
SNOILYINYEEEY QHVAONYLS

usyepspun Busg

$1 {IOM UORINJSUDD 3|jym Ajajes pue yjeay Saeupo-00 pue safeuew ‘sueid
Jopenues jedouud SU) JEU) SINSUS SN IJEUIPIO-0D [NaD Uik Uoidunlucs
u uaa auy esigeadde ase (Waoh r00z suonenbay (juswebBeuey pue
ubiisag) uoy T BUYL BB |E PapIOAE Bq JOULED AU} J 92uN0S
1B SySU 20npas Jo Alajes pue U)EaY O SYSU PIOAE O} LaYE) 2JE Saunseaw
1| eL) Mnsua o ajqisudodsal aq [[BYS JODBIUCD JO PUE JUSIRD BYL "SaNSS|
Aysjes pue Eay pue H5U U SUOHEIIPH Py Aaa U
inbas jnode) s1seq o} pajwl 5q Aew ubisaq sul 0L

Jofaang aueg BUIping Syl i UORE)INSUCD
puE '3)3 'SB0IAISS JBUI0 'SUIBIP maU pue Bujsie ‘sjoos Jo soussaud
‘pos jo adfy ‘sean jo adf) pue UONEDO| JIEXE UC PASEY ‘BIS U0 PAMLLLLOD PUB
PayuaA #q SUOREPUNCS JO SR Pexg pasoubl frewsow s punoub dn-apew
1o jioeq Aue pue punoib ulbia [euUBUC Woy 51 pajedpul Yidsp UoHEpUNG)
fuy fue Aeuuwraud se papsebeas aq pinoys M@ ‘ydep ‘adf) uonepuncy
uo uol | AUE puE ‘SseaSUl0 PJOU SSBlUN JNO palUED ussq sey
(o1@ ‘sisfeue s ‘pd (ew) vogeBisasul ays ou sxpom BuipINg Jouny Jog §

“@siwaLo paasbe fjleoynads ssajun joEqUOD
Buipiing Aue jo siseq se pasn 5q JOU Pnoys aucjusl) pue jom Buipjing
jo adoos paucd Jo Madwos anb jou few pue (8 ‘uoissiway Buuuelgy
se yans) sjescudde Aoymes Jo Quoyine [eao) Joj Ao ame sbumelp asay) g
1eE ay) fg paunbal SE SJUSSUCD SUIEIQO PUE S10Y ||BAA ARE ay) Japun
SIMON (IBAN fueg seudosdde ayy e Buges ui ajgisuodsal s1uaR Syl 4
s
UD PALLYUCD PUB PIUILLIMEE 2 [v SIEISP [Buld “seoue|dde g sanioe) B
WOY) JAIEM SIBLNS PUB JANEM [NC) JO) 19182 Of wasds aenbape apoud pue
uofongsUos Buunp Jsypny siy sjebigssaul eys au] uoipadsia
s payw uo paseq fue s nofe| abeumsp pasodoig ¢ Bugsa o
“woday ufisag [BINoNGS ajeiadas e Ul
2q Aew 218 ‘sucnoauucs ‘spoddns 'SWEST 13915 JO SIIRIAP JALI0 TUoRINISUCD
Buunp papinoid spoddns pue syiom A I Joy iqr 39 jleys
syl ‘papinoid subisap ] bape pue suoyd
1B jo ApiEs INSUa |[BYS ay uonipwap fue Jenoy uj pue
o aps Bur aljeg I WEYas pue faans ays papiw|
UG PISE( AUE (919 "SUCHEPUNG) ‘SULNICD ‘SWESG MAU JO UoISIAId ‘SUchaas
e jo perowas Ba) p g ul papwoud spEep fuy ¢
“pajuiedde se(us Jo sofaung Buiping Auouyny

oo ay) Aq pascudde aq o) jom |y “saousLLED yom Buippng auyy aucpeq
pancudde wayy 128 pue asay usal spejep Aue woly suoneues pauueld sy
e asodosd jEYS syL e P PUE UK yun Bup
fue ‘jescuddy suonenBay Buippng fAue jo siEiap ‘ulsuay) payads suonipuco
fue pue uaissiuLa Builueld Aue Jo S|iEJ3p U UcHEUOUl aU) || 13|00
Ileys ‘som Aue jo augjeq LTS a0
uosidwos painbal sy} [ uElgo o} SiqiEucdsal 3q [ PUE SUOMEINERED
Buiping isaie] sy of Adwoo sjlom a JBY aunsua o) w_n_mcoamm__a
IiBys U} 'Siup BUIPUBISUIIMON IPUCD BYS NS 0} 4
pasu Aew swal ay) Jo awos 'sanoed Buiping poob pue suchenBay Guip)
WAUNT BY) ©f @ouENdWeD Joj SWaWaINba) #y jo awes anb pue sEupI@
jeaidfy sejis oy Kjesausb aie usnb asaym suoedsyoads palielap BULTH)
"SSIIBLI0 PRJOU SSa(UN 'BUNSIS U} CJU) PUSI [[BUS YIom M3U aU) ﬁs.mm

Bugsixa auy o) sejuas £ a4 ||eys wor MaU JOj S{EL @
s sl o) Aauedasosip Aue u
pue UoRONIIELOS AuE 0 Joud SUCISUBLUIP (|8 ¥O3UD [[EUS JOENUOD Y| T
“OUN “SWAL Ul SIE SUSISUSWIR I "L
'SILON TWHINID

0SZl:1L 37VIS NOILYD01 3LIS




Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



o CLIFTON GARpgng

-----------------

1

i

LN

o

[} 1 1

[ R !
— ] L

Notes: Site Address: LONDON BOROUGH
Site boundary OF HILLINGDON
Residents Services
For identification purposes only. 28 Oakdene Road Planning Section
This copy has been made by or with Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
the authority of the Head of Committee Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111
Services pursuant to section 47 of the . . . .
Copyright, Designs and Patents Planning Application Ref: Scale: .
Act 1988 (the Act). 4247/APP/2018/1451 1:1,250
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright. Planning Committee: Date:
© Crown copyright and database H [LLIN G D (-) N
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey June 2018 e e
100019283 Central & Sqmdbe 175 LonDoN




Page 176



VRIOZEIFI0HIGNN DNV
A8 0INIIHO
A8 NMYHD

ONNNYId ‘T 1LIL ONIMYYHQ
1y B 0s211 0081 001 ‘3798
T 4- alva

NOLLYELTY ONINNYY BUZZ0EE C |

SWREIMA0SWIA0 ezdesz | | SNOISIAZY

OO Hounug

e
S
OVOYKOHO
'$8340QY 3LIS

G55 099 82910 XV

b 099 82910 AL

008 115 FHIHSHHIA HANOTS AYMAHYA T1LLIHM
JHINT] SSINISNE SSIUD0H L

SHIINIINT THANLINYLS ONY TAID INILINSHOD

GLTNOISIQ 3SNOH 3LIHM 3HL

ONTIZWNOOHO3 L NNY 0 NOLLO33
NOILdI4OS3a

‘017 ubisaq asnoH iy ey Ly Bugum i poabie ssajun 'sard os jeym Buimelp asay wioy uogeuap oy

“Jojoadsul Kuoline (each j0 UOGIBISIES 8] 0} SWOM [y

“Buuawwon o} soud sinoqubieu Buioipe i peaitie 8q o) 1661 19e (o18) flem Ryeg

017 ufsag asnoy ayyA By L o) papodal aq o) sapuadalasip Auy
“Buwwelp siy) woy pajeas Jou pue Biis Lo PaYI2 ] 0} SuBLIBINSEA Y

NOILOHISNOD H04 03A0HddY LON
{oou-s Fvos) {no1 awos) too1y Fvosh
NYd 4004 - Nvd J350d0dd HOO0Td LSHid - Nv1d 0350d04dd HOOT4 ONNOHD - NYd 0350d04d
m — {
LI ¢ f
1 i ﬂw ] 1 _
Il = I
il b 3
i I | &
_ e |3
m L w
T [ e | ot e O]
4 aa NG
4 o~
- = - L
[ ° i
(O]
[ [ e)]
©
ey Ol
ors Imeog! fo0s.4 ITwas foeL ) IvDs) 1p0n. 1 3WaEH 0011 IVDSH
NV NOILD3S 0350d0ud HLHON - NOILLYAZT3 0350d04d LS3M - NOILYAZTE 0350d40ud HLNOS - NOLLYAZT3 03S0d0dd 15¥3 - NOILYAZT3 0350d0dd
L _ [T_" 1] _ 8 |
L/ w | | m ‘S s B w | | w
s | | v — e it | ! - - g
Fi 3| o= 3 i T ] EEE s Fl
“ mm.c.ulg.. b At i oos 4 Wmua._—lu—o. . .ﬂa.loa..m
I—wm— o e .| — 3w 4 - ot
| | i o | | —
- /I_Iﬂm._ -
H H 1



1
1, -\
Sl -

" CHAMBERLAIN CLO

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Land Forming Part of
84 Church Road

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
72944/APP/2018/1225 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
Central & Sewatfe 178 June 2018

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Page 179



8002 €88 0Z0 ‘X84  G9EL LS8 0Z01BL SHS ZEN XPPIN ‘llewinos 'peoy Waisei 6E2 _

1
Z\v
Torsiney Loneal r/_ )
diN/sL - 8892 8an o
uoiieiq 1sep
ZoN Bumeig ueld ¥o0ig BIS uue4 squeqqny nin /
€L0Z S0 eeqg Ue|d Uoneao ajg weg Jessa AN/

v © 001:L :01e9g L Joslosd . |

00¢:i Ueld %90i1g9 8lIS

o
o
—
(D)
o)
©
P .
&




td 2c001/26091
e | ;i-

ot

A poman| ot
1 NS B
e g
SNYId HOOT 0380d0Hd
-
NOLAVHO LS3M
WY SOHVEENH
NHYE HISST
|

NOLLONYESNOD TIINVO SINVE

LIS iRl L
ety et i) 051

Aay abuelQ

SONIMYHO 3ONIY334

INOAYVT 90074 ISYI3 03S0d09d

Page 181

WAUDDL =0 VIS TYNIDIHO




vd L001/16091
i e bamna]

ko mmcSol-

SONIMYEO 30Ny

L~

E

I

.....
NOUYAMISNOD

Page 182

WAODL=0 VIS TVNIHO




Id Lo0g/ L6091

] — |

iy prmanran| oot

1 NS B

SNOLLDAS

NOLAVHO 1S3M
WY SOHVEENH
NHYE HISST

el

NOLLONYESNOD TIINVO SINVT

Patny e ) DL

Aay abuelQ

SONIMYHO 3ONIN33H

11

d0ad

JAvEd §350d0dd

JWVEd TVNIDIE0

1 I

xR /,\\\\\

Page 183

WAUDDL =0 VIS TYNIDIHO




P2

| oft | REvEw|

=T

JAMES DANIEL CONSTRUCTION
LESSER BARN
HUBBARDS FARM
WEST DRAYTON
SPROCKET DETAIL
A5 SHOWN @ A1
16092/SD001

..Orange Key

REFERENCE DRAWINGS

e mamer

48 08 1m

a7

L S A A

1:40

SCALE BAR

o 61 02 03 04 05 06

THIS DRAWING (S THE COPYRIOHT OF ORANGE KEY LTD. IT iS5
PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTAL AND 15 SUPPLIED OK THE EXPRESS CONDIION
THAT T 5 NOT USED FOR ANY PURPOST OR COMED OR COMMUNICATED
TO ANY OTHER PARTY WITHOUT THE WRITTEM CONSENT OF ORANGE

KEY LTD,

Page 184

WG -0 TS TYNINHO

SPROCKET DETAIL




WEST DRAYTON ROAD

it

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Greater & Lesser Barn

LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
5971/APP/2017/4190 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
June 2018

Central & Sopdle 185

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




Page 186



lala
_ 800 £¥88 0Z0 ‘¥4 BOEL L.S8 0Z0@L SHS ZAN "XPPIN 'I[EYINOS 'PEOY WBISaM 6EZ _ 19N 0L s 4 4 0 ;
I 08:1
— _ _ _ £ _355.‘”_
uDisInay 2
- aan
dneo - 999 P
“ON Bupeig uelg 10014 uuE SQUEGANH
ELDZ ¥0 :meEg puncusy pasadoig weg assa’ pesiieuy 8q jiM SUWN(E
oy @ 001 L eess aiL Joaloug By jo vosod exe ey ‘odal HIOM [EIpSwE
pue Aaans doysyiom pajep ayj jo uoy
U} UD "FL0Z 994 pajep Aanns a)is 0D 9
PapUaLE UOTONISUDD B Apinnagy uo eseq aue pUBR 'SUOKEDO| BjeLXode
‘PapUBLLE SUOHISOM MOPUIM F ULINGOD X3 JEM ur umoys aue sisod saquin Bunsie Jo uoisod
sloN sjoN
10— —H T — —i T 1 ; [ —
w i -
5 =]
=T
L @ uleg @ wos 9 it
wbd 16 wbs gL bs 0z alols
TS Z Wwooupeg T L ¢ wooipag € woojpag 1
= L ﬁ
el % -
=3 |
/ [ | ] v
| & . = N (|
=
=] ..”
wbs L'gL ] - ..\
= Jauig /usyopy = /
= ”...
/ ) ° A
al== “\.‘
g _ B ’
[ w bs g . whbsggy D w bs gz
e IleH wooBuIAr " Jaulg /usyouy wooIBUIAI
lleH _ﬂﬁ
g L
1 / _Nﬁ.
| i ] z.?\ I I i /




td 2c001/26091
e | ;i-

ot

L ] ot

1 NS B
e g

SNYId HOOT 0380d0Hd

NOLAVHO LS3M

WY SOHVEENH

NHYE HISST
|

NOLLONYESNOD TIINVO SINVE

LIS iRl L
i
ety et i) 051

Aay abuelQ

SONIMYHO 3ONIY334

INOAYVT 90074 ISYI3 03S0d09d

Page 188

WAUDDL =0 VIS TYNIDIHO




800Z £¥88 020 Xed

GOEL 1458 020 ‘Bl

SHS 28N XPPIN IIBLINOS ‘PROY WBlsap GEZ _

1919 0L

S 4 b 0
[ [ = [IH
ugIsiAay 2 C
- aan
n_s____eo.. mmma ey i
'ON Duieig uB|g 10014 UL SQUEGANH nn
ELDZ ¥0 meg 15114 pasodoug weg Jassa’ \_ POSIEUY 84 (|4 SLLNIOD
£ @ 00L:L BEog oL pafosd 1 muwmﬁ uﬁﬁmn wexe uuwuwnuﬂ_u%; (etpatas
U} UQ "PLOZ 4B PAIEP ABAINS 8IS 00 8
PEPUBLIE UORINASUOD [IBAY Apingopy uo aseq aie pue 'suoledo| ajeLwxaIde
‘PEpUBLIE SUCISO MOPUIM F ULWIN0D X3 £y U umoys aue sisod Jequy Bunsixe jo uolisod
;oN SICN
puodes Jad sai| 51 © pucaas Jad san L @ %
UoHE[jUaA [EDIUBLISW UONEHUSA [ED|UBLDEW -t
ahey 0] Jamoyg BABY 0] JAMOUS
()
&
wbhsgg o
Piofr T 0 A ] ~ Buipres
P T buipue TS U _ .
‘puE xfie Xnjan XNjPA E xnjan ’
il =
apeudosdde se qooiyyeg 11
paoE|ds) PaUOpUOIa) ® ¢
‘pasedas ‘inoybnosy; — o F & w
1 peasadsxa ya) aq o}
/ alwel) yeo Guysixg =1
- w bs g'g|
E ¢ wioolipag -
+-bE- u.. Gl
X [ | s L
= .
Ei u




Page 190



vd L001/16091
i) e bamna]

ko mmcSol-

SONIMYEO 30Ny

L~

E

I

.....
NOUYAMISNOD

Page 191

WAODL=0 VIS TVNIHO




bd Loog 16091
e |
e st

D S Y
o g

SNOILDAS

NOLAVHO LSIM
WY SOHVEENH
NHVE HISST T

NOLLONHLSNOD TINVD S3T

N wm:m_?

SONIMYED 3ONIHIS3d

SNOIIVEIIY JAVES HIIM oumomomm

WS0J09d SNINNY T TVNOTE0

Page 192

W L-0 IWIS WHIDHD




P2

| oft | REvEw|

=T

JAMES DANIEL CONSTRUCTION
LESSER BARN
HUBBARDS FARM
WEST DRAYTON
SPROCKET DETAIL
A5 SHOWN @ A1
16092/SD001

..Orange Key

REFERENCE DRAWINGS

e mamer

48 08 1m

a7

L S A A

1:40

SCALE BAR

o 61 02 03 04 05 06

THIS DRAWING (S THE COPYRIOHT OF ORANGE KEY LTD. IT iS5
PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTAL AND 15 SUPPLIED OK THE EXPRESS CONDIION
THAT T 5 NOT USED FOR ANY PURPOST OR COMED OR COMMUNICATED
TO ANY OTHER PARTY WITHOUT THE WRITTEM CONSENT OF ORANGE

KEY LTD,

Page 193

WG -0 TS TYNINHO

SPROCKET DETAIL




WEST DRAYTON ROAD

it

Notes:

Site boundary

For identification purposes only.

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents

Act 1988 (the Act).

Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2018 Ordnance Survey
100019283

Site Address:

Greater & Lesser Barn

LONDON BOROUGH

OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1TUW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Planning Application Ref: Scale:
5971/APP/2017/3478 1:1,250
Planning Committee: Date:
June 2018

Central & Seatfe 194

™ILLINGDON

LONDON




	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 9 Maygoods Green, Cowley - 73573/APP/2018/621
	621
	621 LP

	7 105 Sweetcroft Lane, Hillingdon - 2703/APP/2017/2579
	2579
	2703APP20172579

	8 Garage Site Adjacent to 45 Corwell Gardens, Hillingdon - 72968/APP/2018/199
	199
	199 LP

	9 The Prince Albert PH Pield Heath Road, Hillingdon - 704/APP/2016/3689
	3689
	3689 LP

	10 28 Oakene Road, Hillingdon - 4247/APP/2018/1451
	1451
	1451 LP

	11 Land Forming Part of 84 Church Road, Hayes - 72944/APP/2018/1225
	1225
	1225 LP

	12 Lesser Barn Hubbards Close, Hillingdon - 5971/APP/2017/4190
	4190
	4190 LP

	13 Lesser Barn Hubbards Close, Hillingdon - 5971/APP/2017/3478
	3478
	3478 LP

	 PART I - Plans for Central and South Planning Committee
	Central & South 6th June 2018 Committee Cover
	C&S Plans Booklet 06-06-18
	621 Stitched
	FS
	Location Plan
	Block Plan
	Proposed Block Plan
	621 LP

	2579 Stitched
	FS
	Site & Location Plan
	Existing Ground Floor Plan
	Existing First Floor Plan
	Proposed Ground Floor Plan
	Proposed First Floor Plan
	2703APP20172579

	199 Stitched
	FS
	Location Plan
	Floor Plans Resized
	Floor Plan & Elevations Resized
	Ancillary Parking & Amenity Space Resized
	199 LP

	3689 Stitched
	FS
	Location Plan
	Proposed Site Layout
	Proposed Floor Plans Units 1-5
	Proposed Floor Plans Units 6-9
	Proposed Front & Side Elevations Block A
	Proposed Elevations Front & Side Block B
	Proposed Elevations Rear & Side Block B
	3689 LP

	1451 Stitched
	FS
	Location & Block Plan
	Existing Ground Floor Plan
	Existing Floor Plans
	Existing Elevations
	Proposed Ground Floor Plans
	Proposed Floor Plans
	Proposed Elevations
	1451 LP

	1225 stitched
	FS
	Existing & Proposed Information
	1225 LP

	4190 Stitched
	FS-1
	Location & Block Plan
	Proposed Floor Plans
	Proposed Elevations
	Cross Sections
	Sprocket Details
	4190 LP

	3478 Stitched
	FS-1
	Approver Proposed Ground Floor Plan
	Proposed Floor Plans
	Approved Proposed First Floor Plans
	Approved Proposed Elevations
	Proposed Elevations
	Cross Section
	Sprocket Detail
	3478 LP




